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CORPORATE OVERVIEW £EBEE/

Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973 o B NEt=FREHENRHERG

e Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) o JEREBREBHERMBRAR (t/i BHEZ
becomes the Company’s ultimate holding company in September 2009 SR 2 BRI RER 600410)5"_ ZNFENA

BWEY NG St NG|

e Dedicated to delivering innovative, industry-specific and one-stop IT o HOABANEFPIRMAIF « 1TE AR —ULT
solutions and services to customers across the region with business BARBEATRENRE  £BEBNES - F
operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, United States, Europe, Wt - B - BUM - A - JRPT - RE - 3
Taiwan, Macau, Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia, etc. D3 I FS 2R PR S i,

Group Performance Overview
EEEENE
Summary HE
Revenue of the Group’s core businesses (businesses in Hong Kong and other Asia EEZO R (AVEEREMD KR 2 275) WASES
Pacific regions) was HK$2,049.6 million, up 3.1% compared to last year 2,0406 BB REFHER 3.1%
The Group's gross profit was HK$230.9 million (factoring out the government's grants EEFBENR 2309 BEAT(TERBNER 2 TE
for wage subsidies), an increase of HK$24.0 million or 11.6% compared to last HEh) - EIEFIEA 240 BEBITH11.6% ° :ZERER
year. It is mainly due to the significant increase of 17.4% in the orders newly RAEEE 7 EAEREMI KR 2 EEOHMFTERE
secured to HK$2,266.2 million by business in Hong Kong and other Asia Pacific FI17.4% £2,2662 AEFL B =F%F =
regions compared to last year, reaching a new high in the past 3 years
Adjusted EBITDA of the Group’s core businesses recorded HK$110.6 million, EE RO EF A EBITDA 81153 1106 AEB T - Bk
an increase of 16.1% compared to last year FIE16.1%

The Group recorded a profit attributable to the Company’s equity holders of HK$4.1 o AREBAFEZ AN RBRATEE ABEERNEZNAE 41 B
million, a decrease when compared to last year of HK$856.3 million. The decrease BB RAF 8563 AEAIL MK - Z TREEZEMH
was mainly due to a one-off gain of approximately HK$832.4 million recorded last W EFESFEME XS Grid Dynamics International,

year arising from the disposal and spin-off of Grid Dynamics International, Inc. Inc. FTEAEHR) 832.4 BEB LA — XM

In view of the special dividend of 24.0 HK Cents distributed in August 2021, ERFEER T _—F/\AR_T_—F+-AHEH
which the Group has paid due to the one-off gain arising from the partial disposal BN TR IS Z RIS ERE T tH,%lJHQ 8240 /ﬁ

of interest in an assodiate in July 2021, the board of directors has resolved to TIJJ TEY E%\}?&E%?\)ﬁﬁﬂi,ﬁﬁ%%% 3.0 A1l

recommend a final dividend of 3.0 HK Cents per share

Group's Major Financial Indicators £E X E §i5Z

[ Orders Newly Secured Revenue Mo Profit for the year °'°2 Basic Earnings Per Share \°t¢ 2
i#f METE o F R 2 FREARA T2

HJCI (HK Cents 7&1ll)

S A 17.4% $2,266.2 A 3.1% $2,049.6 W 99.5% $4.1 0.50

; (2020 : $1,930.3) (2020 : $1,988.8) (2020 : $856.1) (2020 : 103.37)

)

Core Business Performance /0¥ RIE

;5\ Orders 3] & - DevSecOps Orders i - DevSecOps Revenue "'
ﬁ'_g System Integration Z#EER Professional Service B3R5 'O
% A 27.6% $883.4 A 15.1% $1,063.5 A 3.1% $2,049.6
¢ (2020 : $692.4) (2020 : $923.7) (2020 : $1,988.8)
z
Adjusted EBITDA Note 1% Adjusted Net Profit "¢ '* Adjusted Operating Cash Flow "°®¢ 2*
ZHHE EBITDA 1% IERBEF 1 ERBCERSRE *2*
A 16.1% $110.6 A 20.1% $72.8 W 58.9% $75.1
(2020 : $95.3) (2020 : $60.6) (2020 : $182.9)

Interest in Associates & Non-Operating Items & A TR K IELEEE

ey e Y
5 Interest in Associates Bi& A TR | [ Non-Operating ltems FF#E & 1EH ]
b
fm
5 Loss on Deemed Disposal . Adjusted (Costs)/Incomes
z Share of R_esults of Partial Interest Adjusted_ I[\\_/es:ment Related to Corporate & Others*
s i A;se_c\lites in an Associate Activities RABEERHMIER
z kel A L] P RS AR RS 2 A L B FEBR () A *
$(30.4) $(176.5) $142.7 $(4.5)
(2020 : $(63.5)) (2020 : $(0.7)) (2020 : $819.3) (2020 : $42.0)

FARIEIEZ B2 B B ARRINTAE < Please turn to the last page of the section to read notes.



DevSecOps Core Business Highlights
DevSecOps #Z/UN3% = 2

Innovative Solutions Business BIF1T ¥R 7T REHK
Application Development F& FA#2 /7735 - Enhance Customer Experience with Innovative Applications (Dev) #8137 FE A2 R A & F 85

Win Cases

= Received multiple public health related orders from the government to support their efforts against the pandemic
= Took orders related to the Smart City Blueprint, including “iAM Smart” and an electronic tax service application benefiting
the Hong Kong working-class

Key Developments

= Successfully introduced new technologies that has drawn market attention such as the Internet of Things and
automation

= Newly-established Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC) in Guangdong Province

= Achieved fruitful results, especially in the public and private healthcare, logistics, public welfare and charity sectors

DeIESY]

o FETADBNERREEREANETE - ZELFTE T

o AT ESHTREBNGTE  EReEENEI AREREBRA T RENEFHBRBERRZN
ERIER

= RIS AMIEEE - BB ESRE NSRRI 2 SR

= RERENEEINE BN RO ERE

o REZRZ - LEEALEBERGLE  BELAGEERESEERAHE

EMPOWER
FRAE

Intelligent Cybersecurity Services Business & fEM#& 2 2 RIS X7
Cybersecurity 4848 % % - Protect your Assets with Intelligent Security Technology (Sec) & & 4 2 & H TR E LRI B B
Win Cases
= Managed and monitored the Asia Pacific network 24/7 in 14 countries for a Fortune Global 50 international
logistics company
m  Designed, constructed and managed the SD-WAN network for a multinational enterprise to manage
connections across office networks in Hong Kong, Singapore, the U.K. and the U.S.

Key Developments

m  Successfully introduced DevSecOps into the enterprise customer scenario, delivering the front-end to
back-end cybersecurity solutions

m Extended managed security solution to the Asia Pacific region and even as far as European and American
cities SECURE

m  Successfully opened up new industry markets with SOC business =

DESY]

. R—E(RRPE) 50 BZEFREH N RS REERMETE 14 BRRVEKREH

n A BECER BENEEH SD-WAN fEAEIRFREEESE - MK - REREERAZHNEE

BHIER

= KI5 A DevSecOps RIPERFIHRH - KITAIREIRIRNEELETER

n BEEREBEBIRIMEREGCAREZERBEET

= SOC ¥R T HMITHET S

Integrated Managed Services Business E:l R £ BB RIEER

Omni-channel Managed Services 222 78 & 12 Az 7% - Simplify your IT Operations to Increase Efficiency (Ops) F{b &8 IT &8 bAR B R
Win Cases

= Continued to provide IT services to support the fight against the pandemic

m  Received numerous long-term IT managed services orders from new and existing customers across advantageous
industries

= Received multiple orders leveraging UOC to provide cross-border IT managed services

I Key Developments
= Service center expansions, talent training, and introduction of automation to improve service quality
MANAGE = Continued to optimize UOC with smart and new technologies to expand its target customer base
TR -
DeIESY]
= BERECEMBRRS DR
= ENEERF BEEZTEPEEZARFHNENRERREE
s EEZRAMA UOCIRHERE AR B RRGHETE

EXEE

. BRRBPL AT SIABEBMERARBESR
»  ABRERIBAIEITRATRHEREL UoC - HBIAB IRE SR




DevSecOps, “as-a-Service” New Business Model Take Off
DevSecOps * [ BIART | F =B E N RUE

Our Strategy & Value to Customers KB R EFEE

Transformation from System Integrator
to Unified Technology Services Partner to Meet Customers’ Various Needs

HEGEXNEERIMENERBEBHREEFTRER

Connecting Your Business - ASL One-stop as-a-Service

EFERER - ASL — U5 B AR

WE BRIDGE
afE R

WE OFFER
R

Equipped with outstanding DevSecOps
technologies and application scenario capabilities
BB ER DevSecOps

BENHIBT R RIS R EE

WE DEVELOP

HFIpA R

Leverages innovative technologies with leading global IT
vendors (Alibaba Cloud, Cyberbit, Splunk, Commvault,
Microsoft Hong Kong, and Check Point, etc.)
BT IRETH 1T GLIE R E A AR Rl
(FTEZE - Cyberbit *Splunk » Commvault *
Microsoft &% & Check Point %)

Wide range of DX business solutions
J=9pa: ol ¢t kil
EERRT R

WE'RE UNIQUE

BRNBER 2R

Direct conversations with ASL experts via demo
labs, paired with central automated management
brought by the Group’s two largest managed
services platforms - SOC+ and UOC
BRERERTHRE ASL EXERHEEMAAES
FEMARBKEERTF A SOC+ & UOCTF&A
e RE L ER



. .. _Launch of “ASL Marketplace” Cloud-based Comprehensive Online Platform : : :

#EH [ASL Marketplace | ElRmEaWEFE A

Self-branded “as-a-Service” BZR &R [ ENRE |
i. series & .aaS series i. %%l & .aaS &%l

Customer Experience Intelligent loT

EFER B

f Property Sales )
Management Smart Office
YIREEEE e NS
—
LEE lgv
i.Properties i.DataHub

r

N\

Cybersecurity
Training

MErEEI

@

SecTraining.aa$S

Security Monitoring

REER

9%
1=

SIEM.aaS

App as-a-Service
App BNBRFE

Automated App
Testing

BEEEMFRE

i.AppTesting

Data Backup

HEED

e

DataBackup.aaS

Sec as-a-Service
Sec BNAR#

Managed Security Managed Services Secure Remote Workforce
EERE EER REEBETE

=

Secure
Connectivity

RREE

®)

SecConnect.aaS

Virtual Desktop

ERSHE

VDesktop.aa$

Ops as-a-Service
Ops BNAR#



Continue to Invest & Optimize UOC # &R EE 1t UOC

Optimize
uocC
2[4
uocC

rates Devgg
\(\" ﬁgDeVSecOpsoﬂs

Expand into
Mid-Market
BRA IR
5

Flexible
Services

PR
BEEE

Provide Cloud-native ASL as-a-Service &1

==

Transform Traditional Business, Brings Great Benefits

BUEEREY - TREANHFE

) Scale Up &
Pay-As-You-Go % @ Down Securely
R B ?

]
One-stop

ASL as-a-Service
— b=
ASL BENPR 7%

Cost Saving

@ . Connect with
LA &l["][l C@‘ our Experts

HZE B4 ASL BRI

BRAEMOFH

For more details, please visit

MR THES » BFRE
CO\ https://marketplace.asl.com.hk/)




Business Performance of Associates

BE L REHED

An Associate with Business in Europe and the U.S. {3 B A 7

Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (GDH)

(HK$ million BE#T)

A 89.9% A 221.4%
$1,643.27 $304.8"

Business Developments

Performance of its core business has recovered to pre-pandemic levels,
with continuous expansion of shares contributions from first-tier technology
companies such as Apple and Google

Rapidly doubled its employees to over 3,200

Became an outstanding partner of Google Cloud

Number of new customers increased by approximately 37.0%

Investment Achievement

Acquired Tacit Knowledge and successfully completed the second

acquisition since its public listing

A 244.5%
$188.4"

E

L ETE R NIRRT BB AT - SRR
#RTHRE Apple & Google &—&RHE
UNGIESES v

s BETABIREGEZEHIEB 3,200 A

n KABREEFEERBH

. HIEFPHENENE37.0%

REKR
m BT Tacit Knowledge » fXIN5ERK T £
LATREE —{EGHEIB R

One of the Major Associates in Asia Pacific T Ef KEE & AT 2 —

i-Sprint

(HK$ million B&#ET)

A 13.5%
$119.5

Business Developments

Business growths were primarily attributable to the demands for
cybersecurity brought about by the pandemic, as well as the development
of deeper relationships with major local and multinational banking
and financial customers in Singapore, Middle East, Hong Kong, Thailand,
Malaysia and China

An addition of 39 new customers

i-Sprint products have received 2022 Cybersecurity Excellence Awards
Gold Prize and won 7 awards at the 17th Annual Cyber Security Global

Excellence Awards

A 7.6%
$19.9

ERRRE

n RETHEKZEFTE WRHLIRFM
WoRER B R BRGNP
TEXRBREERTNEREF

n g 39 ARF

= iSprint EMEE 2022 FREKLTEEME
SRRNE 17 BFEERGLTERRE ML
FRERME 7 THRHE



05 pep
RIREE

m Take appropriate contingency measures during the pandemic, so
as to ensure smooth operations of the Group, while actively seizing
the opportunities in the new business model brought about by the
pandemic

m  Continue to assist local or cross-regional customers in achieving
digitalization through UOC, a one-stop managed services platform

m In the coming 5 years, the Group is expected to invest more than
HK$100.00 million in technologies and business-related fields

= Make continuous updates to ASL Marketplace with enriched the delivery
content

= Obtained the highest accreditation of CMMI at Maturity Level 5, a
worldwide model to evaluate the maturity of the enterprise’s software
development capability, which helps the Group provide better services

= In order to align with the overall development direction of the Greater
Bay Area,

e the Group has acquired a property in Guangzhou as headquarters
of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area

e the Group plans to add a security operation center in the Greater
Bay Area to assist the local enterprises in regulatory compliance

m  Continue to promote DevSecOps professional services, which are
industry-oriented and high-value added

REEHRRIVEE 1 - 15N EREE
EFENE RRERINTER BB A EHEEN
THIEH

A AERRE B UOC Ut —ubsVE IR IR T A 1H B A

HwREEE P

ARAE 5 FA - GBS R TSR AR
BERIERT RS 1 BEE

o}

S FHES T ASL Marketplace * 2ERZ A

BB EE L AN ED R KB B DA
EH) CMMIES B RRRIRE - A5 ERH
B R

RRABEAKNERBEEERTM

o KECUE-ENYEEREBREEET

.« EEREALBERRDEERL - HHE
b= SEv T

WU BB ATT 3 R E M H) DevSecOps mi41E
BB E SRR

Strive to be a Professional and Trustworthy Unified Technology Services Partner

To integrate various technologies and products using our rich industry domain knowledge so as to fit customer application
scenarios; to use regional layout for market expansion adhering to the footsteps of customer’s business growth

HNRBERETENEE BB RIEBHF

FMASENTR RS SERRERNSERMAERUREEFEASS
BE{LMAEUIER T ISZBUE &% F XK HEE M

=8 - )

Integration Regional Expansion

3244 EE

@
o0 I
Industry-specific

1751t




Adjusted EBITDA: Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and
Amortisation (Adjusted EBITDA) is calculated based on profit for the year from
operations in Asia Pacific excluding interest income and expenses, tax, depreciation,
amortisation, fair value change on revaluation of investment properties, equity-settled
share-based payments expense, government grants, one-off rebate, share of results of
associates, gain on disposal of the Disposal Group, gain on disposal of partial interest
in an associate, gain on additional interest in an associate, loss on deemed disposal of
partial interest in an associate, waiver of intercompany balances from Disposal Group
and one-off professional fees.

Adjusted Net Profit: Adjusted Net Profit is calculated based on Adjusted EBITDA and
added back depreciation, amortisation and Hong Kong profits tax.

Adjusted Operating Cash Flow: Operating cash flow of core business is calculated
based on net cash from operating activities of the Group excluding tax paid in
relation to disposal of the Disposal Group and partial interest in an associate, overseas
withholding tax, government grants and one-off rebate.

Adjusted Investment Activities: Mainly represent the gain on disposal of the
Disposal Group, gain on disposal of partial interest in an associate, gain on additional
interest in an associate, related professional fees, tax impact related to investment and
overseas withholding tax.

Adjusted (Costs)/Incomes Related to Corporate and Others: Mainly represent
the fair value change on revaluation of investment properties, equity-settled share-
based payments expense, government grants, finance costs, one-off rebate, waiver of
intercompany balances from Disposal Group and one-off professional fees.

System Integration: Being the business of information technology in supplying
of information technology and associated products carried out by a subsidiary,
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited.

Professional Service: Being the business of information technology in providing
systems integration, software and consulting services, engineering support for
products and solutions and managed services carried out by a subsidiary, Automated
Systems (H.K.) Limited.

Note 1: Represent the revenue from continuing operations only.
Note 2: Represent the results from both continuing and discontinued operations.

*: The information is not a measure required by or presented in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The use of this non-HKFRS measure
has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation from,
or as a substitute for analysis of, our results or operations or financial condition as
reported under HKFRS.

A Amounts stated were extracted from Form 10-K for the year ended 31st December
2021 (“Form 10-K") of GDH published on US Security and Exchange Commission
website.

{EFAEE EBITDA : SHERER - T8 REHATFE
S8 (LT BITDA) NER T ABLEER 2 F NG
FIINBRF B AR - BB & - B =EFHEK
BEMEZANEEES - AABRENURD AER
SRS BB —RME - R AT
B HEMBLAT 2  HEBME AR OERZ
Wk - A NRFEIMEREAS 2GS  BIEREH A
RNAElE DR EIE  RELESEZEEANA R
SRR EEBRE -

KAERR  CREREN 2 2ETERLCTE EBITDA
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SRR EBRIS 2 AR o
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H2 EREBERE IR FE -
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AR ) R BRI IR BB B IME LR 2T
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Quiality Policy of ASL
EEESH: i

Customer Service Excellence with Corporate
Responsibility
BITEXERE - HBREEEFRK
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Quality Policy of ASL
BERGNEE RS

We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing
customers innovative, quality and integrated one-stop IT services and
solutions. We aim at satisfying our customers’ business needs through forging
strategic alliance with our business partners and the core values of the Group
— "SPACT":

"S" — Strive for Excellence
Perform work with best effort and the highest standard. Always looking for
ways to make further improvement.

“P" — Problem Solving

Solve problem with effective solutions in a timely manner and be able to
identify the core of the problems and provide workable solutions in an honest
manner.

“A" - Accountable

Be accountable for one’s area of responsibilities whilst working towards the
goal of the company, be responsible for managing and following up with the
work until complete success.

“C" — Courage

To change and innovate — respond timely to change and to enable the
company to become efficient and competitive. Eager to invent new ideas and
new ways of work to advance in a leading position.

“T" — Teamwork
Work as part of the team, co-operate and contribute to team effort and
success. Willing to offer help, share ideas and knowledge.

RMEAERAREFNEABERBEE - AEFRUA
3 BER— R EA ENRERERRRSTE - RIS
BT BB AR BN EE  BORRERENE
BEE-

AREH - UERANB IS ORETK I - R

R - AR AR RARE - a8 5RE RSB
FfE - A B RO R R LD Rl TRV AR TS 5 ©

RECHE - EEANBESEEARRCE  RERRNER
MBNHMEE - EIRMRETEZEIRAKDY) ©

ERER - BICRERAF - sULERRE R AR BIME
SN - BREE - SRKEMOTETR - A

JRFH A -

BERS - BRAEGH—HT - REAERAE  BEH
- SEESHEEEERY o £E4TRAEE
B - REGRHETID A -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited and Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited

HERASGEEERARAREMNREXESEENRERLA

Capability Maturity Model Integration for Development (CMMI)
Version 2.0 without SAM -Maturity Level 5 -DEV
Software Development and Support Service Organization

BB R EREAS

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
BERS(BB)ERAA

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 1505
Service Delivery
BR#E 3243

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 5337
Sales Operation Division

SHEEERD

ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018
Certificate No.: CC5406
IT Service Center
Security Operation Center
B RS
EMR2ETHD

Annual Report 2021 4%

Certificate No.: HK12/00068
Security Operation Center

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
MM ERRRERD R

¢

1 SGS

ISO/IEC 27001:2013

R

S

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 3268
Service Delivery

EZ2EERL BRI AY



Customer Service Excellence with Corporate Responsibility

Over the years, not only has ASL been providing innovative solutions and services to
customers, but we are also committed to caring for the community, environment and
employees by contributing back to the society through sustainable development.

|
: Job Shadowing Programme — The Hong

,  Kong Association for Computer Education
I

IR RS -BEEKAEEe

|
: Friendly Football Match — ASL and Huawei
| RIRRGEE —ASLHEER

|
School Visit — Hong Kong Internet Registration

|
: Corporation Limited
| BER2E — HEEBHEEMEREGRAR

|
ASL sponsors and is invited as a judging panelist in
the “CoolThink@JC Competition 2021"
BEBRGED 28/ BEEERELFE 2021 I
EREENE

BITERER  NBREBEEREFPRK

—EWE - BBRSTERARPRHUAIFNERT R
IR TAERAFEZREBMLS  ROBEL
& BREURET -

ASL organizes Family Fun Day 2021 in Hong Kong Disneyland, and also holds the
Long Service Award Presentation and ASL's special Frozen concert at The Pavilion
ASL RESMTRRERI 2021 FRERER - ERRBENRITR ARG R
BERASL SN ESHHKRES

Solution Team Hiking Day Team Building Activity of Offshore Delivery

1 1

: R RERER : Excellence Center in Mainland China

: : AR B A SN B RS L 2 3R ST

I | BAEBEED

L T T [ ] b oo o o e e e e e e e e e o e e e e [ ]

ASL Human Resources Team wins CTgoodjobs “Best Graduate and Management
Grand Trainee Programme Award”, “Best Talent Acquisition and Onboarding
Grand Strategy Award”, “Recruitment Team of the Year”,” HRBP Team of the
Year”, and “Individual Award - Excellent HR Professional Award” .

ASL W AN ETREDFI515 CTgoodjobs [ SIER KA M ERIFIIERIEARE | - [&
ERERERABRRARE]  [FERBENK]  [FEANBREGBHEK ]
M MEAASDE - BEANEREEES | 808

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z 5B ER A A

1||||""||||



Corporate Information

NEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
WANG Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CUI Yong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

PAN Xinrong
DENG lJianxin
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

AUDIT COMMITTEE

DENG Jianxin (Chairman)
PAN Xinrong
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

PAN Xinrong (Chairman)
DENG Jianxin
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
PAN Xinrong
DENG Jianxin

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

WANG Yueou (Chairman)
WANG Weihang
CUI Yong

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
WANG Yueou

PAN Xinrong

DENG Jianxin

COMPANY SECRETARY

NGAN Wai Hing
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

SOLICITORS

Jones Day
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited
Victoria Place, 5th Floor,

31 Victoria Street,
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RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
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INTERIM ANNUAL

(for the six months ended 30th June 2021) (for the year ended 31st December 2021)
25th August 2021 30th March 2022
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10/2021 06/2022

Special dividend Proposed final dividend
(24.0 HK cents per share) (3.0 HK cents per share)

19th October 2021 24th June 2022
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(A% 24.074L) (% 3.0 7841L)
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Financial Summary

MR

RESULTS
N
X&
For the year ended 31st December
BZ+t-A=1-HLFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZBC-F (| Z2Z2E ZZNE ZE-\F T tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FER FTHEL THT THT
From continuing and REFELS
discontinued operations R IR EH
Revenue LON 2,049,620 2,155,459 2,828,773 2,344,457 1,917,453
Profit before income tax PR AT BT AR 29,909 | 1,143,206 139,381 127,335 69,748
Income tax expense FEHRX (25,777) | (287,064) (39,073) (43,002) (17,169)
Profit for the year £ R 4132 | 856142 100,308 84,333 52,579
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to RGN
non-controlling interests EN(BE) /EF - (156) 7,032 - -
Profit for the year attributable to ARARAREBA
equity holders of the Company RN & A 4,132 856,298 93,276 84,333 52,579

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREE
At 31st December
Rt=B=1+-8
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZE--F | ZZZ%F —T-NE TN\ ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT FiEr TAT THT
Total assets BEE 2,886,677 | 3247997 2798592 2,381,032 2,264,893
Total liabilities Bak 896,352 | 1,054,204 1345810 1,168,155 1,167,075
Equity attributable to equity ARARAREBA
holders of the Company EihiER 1,990,325 | 2,193,793 1405272 1212877 1,097,818
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

The Group will continue to promote DevSecOps
professional IT services which are industry-oriented
and high-value added, with its self-branded services
as the basis, thereby creating a win-win situation
for customers, ecosystem partners and the Group.

SERBEFBEDUITERE[H DevSecOps S E
EXEAMERE - LEEREmESER - HAIF
F - SREEBHEASEZRNEHE -

Mr. WANG Weihang
Chairman

T4/
ESE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to
the shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited

(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “ASL" or the “Group”).

Despite the raging global COVID-19 pandemic, as well as the turbulence
in international political and economic situations in 2021, the Group
has continued its successful transformation with the focus of addressing
customers’ needs, thereby achieving solid results. The Group’s total revenue
in 2021 was HK$2,049.6 million, representing an increase of 3.1%
compared to last year. The Group recorded a profit attributable to the
Company’s equity holders of HK$4.1 million, representing a decrease of
99.5% compared to last year of HK$856.3 million. The decrease was mainly
due to the one-off gain of approximately HK$832.4 million arising from
the disposal and spin-off of Grid Dynamics International, Inc. last year. The
Group’s financial position remained healthy, with net cash of approximately
HK$603.9 million. The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a

final dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share.

Annual Report 2021 4%
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The Group’s core businesses, namely businesses in Hong Kong, Macau
and the Asia Pacific region, recorded an increase in orders newly secured
compared to last year, driving more revenue for the Group as a whole. The
core business services — Innovative Solutions (Application Development,
Dev), Intelligent Cybersecurity (Cybersecurity, Sec) and Integrated Managed
Services (Omni-channel Managed Services, Ops) — remained broadly
stable year-on-year. In terms of service orders newly secured, the Innovative
Solutions Business had a more prominent performance than the other two

core businesses.

In the wake of enterprises’ rapid growth in demands for cloud development,
the hybrid cloud and multi-cloud environments are becoming the norm.
Additionally, enterprises are required to accelerate product launch while
taking cybersecurity and regulatory compliance into account, the Group
capitalizes on its unique advantage of integrating different DevSecOps
information technologies (IT) and provides “unified technology services” to

assist enterprise customers in digital transformation.

The Group pioneered as the first local IT company in Hong Kong to roll
out the DevSecOps business model. Based on its rich experience in serving
customers from different industries and following the trend set out by
some large IT vendors in Europe and the U.S., the Group launched the
“ASL Marketplace” cloud-native service platform in the fourth quarter
of 2021, offering a number of self-branded, cloud-based “as-a-Service”.
ASL Marketplace being the Group’s new business, features a pay-as-you-
go model to assist enterprises in embracing cloud development while
flexibly providing a series of services and application scenarios. Besides, as
the pandemic stimulated the enterprises’ demands for remote centralized
IT managed services, the Unified Operation Center (“UOC") business has

achieved fruitful results.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 2GS EHR A

Chairman’s Statement

EE
AEBZRLEY BB RFIRSABE
EHZHFTEREFHN  SPLEERE

WA R o ZOEBRIRES — BIFTTTER RS
22 (B 3 72 ¥ B9 % Application Development -
Dev) ~ BT 2 (HB L2 Cybersecurity -
Sec) MEMEHZ EK B IR RIS (2 RET RS
Omni-channel Managed Services * Ops) * A tt
REIBE - EPRIFITER AT REBNER
MERGETE T EHRREEBREZ L EB
i

BEECEPERRTKRRER  BREZE
R E WK AERE  MECEFTEMR

CNVARBREALDEERERE  AEER
ﬁ 4 DevSecOps MR A B (BB A &
2 RHIBERERE] UBEERFPH
PeEA o

W
=]

AN B {E B R St ) DevSecOps ¥ £ X K &
BARTEMBEGE  BERETRATERR
MEELER  BREEE—LAITHENSEE
MZT— —F M EHEW [ASL Marketplace ]
ERERBFEAE  REZHERGBEEH A
BR#% | (Tas-a- Servicel) o b Th AR BFT T -
REIRZWEE - T%Ej]ﬂﬂ‘?ﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁa—ﬂt?ﬂ:
MW BEEERESEREES

e 35 BEERIBRIMEELE EE‘:P%fEﬁ
AR BEENT R ER - R4 EEH L (Unified
Operation Center * UOC)FIEERIBERZR -



Chairman’s Statement
EFERE

The Group, as always, continued to step up its efforts in building its partner
ecosystem. With the Group’s excellent capability in cross-technology services
as a unified technology services provider, besides being awarded numbers
of most outstanding partner awards from its IT partners in 2021, but it also
received the most awards in the recent three years, including those related
to capabilities for integration, security, management and service under the

hybrid cloud and multi-cloud hybrid environment.

In addition to business expansion, the Group has also actively contributed
back to the society through its technological strength and innovative
thinking. During the year, the Group was accredited as the Caring Company
for the 11th consecutive year. It also undertook numerous healthcare related
orders from the government; while it contributed to the financial results,
it also fulfilled its social responsibilities to support the fight against the
pandemic together with the citizens. Moreover, the Group adhered to its
corporate social responsibility belief to cultivate outstanding IT talents and
empower the IT ecosystem in the Greater Bay Area. We believe technology
brings great importance to promoting urban growth. In particular, the
Group’s efforts to nurture its own talents have been recognized by the
industry. In 2021,we were awarded the “Best Graduate and Management
Grand Trainee Programme Award”, “Best Talent Acquisition and Onboarding
Grand Strategy Award”, “Excellent HR Professional Award”, “HRBP Team of

the Year”, and “Recruitment Team of the Year”.

As to the business of associates in the U.S. and Europe, total revenue for the
year of Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH") amounted to US$211.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,643.2 million), while the adjusted EBITDA
for the year was US$39.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$304.8
million) according to Form 10-K for the year ended 31st December 2021
of GDH published on the US Security and Exchange Commission website.
GDH achieved multiple milestones in 2021. It doubled its annual revenue
over 2020, accelerated new logo additions, elevated its status with tier-one
cloud providers, and successfully completed its second acquisition. As to
the associates in Asia Pacific, i-Sprint, as the world-class leading supplier of
management, unified authentication and access control solutions, recorded
stable performance and achieved a revenue of HK$119.5 million during the

year, representing a double-digit growth.
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Looking ahead, the Group will continue to promote DevSecOps professional
IT services which are industry-oriented and high value-added, and to
gradually expand and strengthen partner ecosystem with its self-branded
services as the basis. It will also continue to optimize UOC one-stop managed
services platform, enrich ASL Marketplace’s as-a-Service, and establish the
third security operation center within the region, so as to gradually extend
its services to the customers in Greater Bay Area. In turn, all technologies
and services in the ecosystem could be implemented and applied, thereby
creating a win-win situation for the customers, ecosystem partners and the

Group.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my gratitude to our valued
customers, business partners and shareholders for their support to the
Group during the year. | would also like to express my appreciation to the
management and all employees for their outstanding achievements during
challenging times. Finally, | would like to thank all the Directors for their

dedicated service and support.

Wang Weihang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2022

Chairman’s Statement
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

TR E

The Group will persevere to promote its role
transformation from “system integration” to
“service integration”, and strive to become a
trustworthy and professional technology and
service provider to customers.

SEFEEDH [ RAEER]E T RBEK] B A
BEE  ROKBESEFEENEENERR
TEHAIER o

Mr. WANG Yueou
Chief Executive Officer
TER

1TIABE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Results

For the year ended 31st December 2021, total revenue of the Group was HK$2,049.6
million, representing a 3.1% increase from the last year, in which product sales was
increased by 1.6% to HK$1,051.8 million and service revenue was increased by 4.6%
to HK$997.8 million. In addition, product sales and service revenue contributed 51.3%
and 48.7% to total revenue respectively, compared to 52.1% and 47.9% respectively
of last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2021, commercial and public sector sales
contributed 39.5% and 60.5% to total revenue respectively, compared to 43.1% and
56.9% respectively of last year.

Gross profit for the year ended 31st December 2021 was HK$230.9 million, an
increase of HK$24.0 million or 11.6% compared to last year, factoring out the
government grants for wage subsidies. The increases were primarily attributable
to growth in newly secured orders in Hong Kong and other Asia Pacific regions, as
compared to last year.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a profit attributable to the
Company’s equity holders of HK$4.1 million, a decrease of 99.5% compared to last
year of HK$856.3 million. The decrease was mainly because there was an one-off gain
of approximately HK$832.4 million recorded last year arising from the disposal and
spin-off of Grid Dynamics International, Inc.

Annual Report 2021 4%
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For the year ended 31st December 2021, orders newly secured by the Group’s
amounted to approximately HK$2,266.2 million. As at 31st December 2021, the
Group's order book balance was approximately HK$1,214.3 million. The Group’s net
cash stood at approximately HK$603.9 million with a working capital ratio of 1.85:1.
The Group maintained a healthy financial position. As at 31st December 2021, the
outstanding borrowings amounted to HK$101.1 million.

Core Businesses Review

Amid the pressure of economic downturn in 2021, the Group made unremitting
efforts to overcome operational challenges during the pandemic, and achieved
satisfactory results in its core businesses. Adjusted EBITDA recorded an increase of
approximately 16.1% compared to last year, mainly due to the significant increase of
17.4% in the orders newly secured in Hong Kong and the other Asia Pacific regions
compared to last year, reaching a new high in the past three years.

Under the new normal of the pandemic, the core businesses of the Group out
performed last year, with revenue recorded HK$2,049.6 million, representing an
increase of 3.1% as compared to last year.

To supplement the Group’s consolidated financial statements which are presented in
accordance with the HKFRSs, orders newly secured, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted net
profit are also presented as an additional financial measure, which is not required by,
nor presented in accordance with, the HKFRSs. The orders newly secured, adjusted
EBITDA and adjusted net profit of the Group recorded HK$2,266.2 million, HK$110.6
million and HK$72.8 million respectively, representing an increase of 17.4%, 16.1%
and 20.1% respectively as compared to last year.

The revenue of the Group’s three DevSecOps businesses was broadly stable compared
to last year. Besides, the services of DevSecOps businesses (see detailed description
below), the Group was also involved in the system integration, which has captured
significant growth. The success was due to the Group’s capabilities in providing
customers with bulk procurement of infrastructure, that has met their long-term
service needs.

Innovative Solutions Business

(Application Development - Enhance customer experience with innovative applications;
Dev)

Innovative Solutions Business delivered the most outstanding performance as
compared to the other two core businesses, with a significant growth in service orders
newly secured compared to last year. It was mainly due to the increase in orders
from professional services and application development. During the year, the Group
promptly recruited local staff, and fully utilized its resources of the newly-established
Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC) in Guangdong Province and also as a base
to cope with the challenges of local talent shortage, and successfully obtained relevant
orders. During the year, service revenue was HK$375.9 million, with a significant
increase of 23.8% compared to last year.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 R EHR AR

Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
ITBHERERE

During the year, the Group received multiple public health related orders from the
government to support their efforts against the pandemic. Meanwhile, we also took
orders related to the Smart City Blueprint, including “iAM Smart” and an electronic
tax service application benefiting the Hong Kong working-class. The Group is pleased
to make a contribution to the financial performance while upholding its commitment
to fulfill social responsibilities through such projects. In addition, the Group has been
deepening customer penetration and achieved fruitful results. Especially in the public
and private healthcare, logistics, public welfare and charity sectors, achieving continual
success in expanding the contributions from our current major customers. Innovation
is pivotal in the IT industry. For this reason, the Group has successfully introduced
new technologies, which drawn market attention, such as the Internet of Things and
automation to improve service quality.

Intelligent Cybersecurity Services Business

(Cybersecurity - Protect your assets with intelligent security technology; Sec)

During the year, the service orders newly secured in the Intelligent Cybersecurity
Services business recorded a double-digit growth compared to last year, with service
revenue reaching HK$124.5 million. The growth momentum was driven by the
digital transformation trend, which included the front-end to back-end cybersecurity
solutions, cybersecurity solutions under multi- cloud environment in the financial
industry, as well as remote cybersecurity and new managed security services under the
pandemic etc., so as to satisfy the demands for DevSecOps.

Following the successful introduction of DevSecOps into the enterprise customer
scenario in the first half of the year, the Group made substantial breakthroughs in the
second half of the year. It is worth mentioning that the managed security services have
been upgraded to the next level, from the previous delivery in Hong Kong, extending
to the Asia Pacific region and even as far as European and American cities for the
first time. Among them, the delivery advantages comprise of integrating the Group’s
two major managed services platforms, Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+) and
Unified Operation Center (UOC) platform, as the central automated management.
The projects included managing and monitoring the Asia Pacific network 24/7 in 14
countries for a Fortune Global 50 international logistics company; as well as designing,
constructing and managing the SD-WAN network for a multinational enterprise to
manage connections across office networks in Hong Kong, Singapore, the U.K. and
the U.S. During the year, the pandemic boosted demand for remote cybersecurity,
which contributed to the significant revenue growth in orders for Hong Kong's SOC+
and Macau’s SOC2 services, and helped the Group successfully open up new industry
markets.
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Integrated Managed Services Business

(Omni-channel Managed Services - Simplify your IT operations to increase efficiency;
Ops)

During the year, the service orders newly secured in the Integrated Managed Services
business was roughly the same as last year, with service revenue recorded HK$430.1
million, the decline narrowed to 0.1% compared to last year. The key growth engine
was driven by Information Technology Service Management (ITSM) and orders
benefiting from government policies.

In regards to the government sector, the Group continued to provide IT services
to support the fight against the pandemic, whilst secured a territory-wide large-
scale mobile device management solution project, which was highly appreciated by
customers. In addition, the Group has received numerous long-term IT managed
services orders from new and existing customers across advantageous industries. The
characteristics of managed services are tailored services according to customer’s needs
in specific scenario, with an aim to grow together with its customers and provide
them with dedicated support. The Group has received multiple orders leveraging
UOC to provide cross-border IT managed services, including providing desktop and
server support services for a client in global locations. The Group provided the best-
in-class DevSecOps services to our customers through its rich resources in talent, tools
and experience in processes. As managed services are people-oriented, the Group
maintained its resolute focus on strengthening the software and facilities of services
for its own transformation, including expansion of service centers, talent training, and
introduction of automation to improve service quality.

DevSecOps and “as-a-Service” new business model take off

Launch of “"ASL Marketplace” cloud-based comprehensive online platform

The Group has strived to drive developments for its DevSecOps, integrated IT services,
by integrating our unique advantages - application development (Dev), cybersecurity
(Sec), and omni-channel management services (Ops) into “ Unified Technology
Services”, to meet market needs.

Moreover, the Group launched “ASL Marketplace”, an integrated cloud-native online
platform, during the fourth quarter in 2021. Leveraging its own “Unified Technology
Services”, the Group rolled out the platform to the market in an as-a-Service business
model. The services are offered under a pay-as-you-go model. The newly-added service
bundle covers DevSecOps, so as to satisfy customers’ digital transformation needs in
efficiency and automation under the new normal, thus bringing new experience to
customers. Since its launch, the ASL Marketplace has received positive feedback from
industry partners and customer inquiries, demonstrating its immense potential.
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Strengthening Unified Operation Center (UOC)

Besides, the Group’s UOC is a delivery system that integrates DevSecOps professional
IT services. It is a cloud-based managed services center that integrates intelligence and
professional technology. By integrating DevSecOps with central management, UOC
brings together a well- rounded and professional talent pool in software development,
an efficient omni-channel ITSM team and leading cybersecurity experts to solve
the problems related to continuous operation and maintenance, and optimization
management in the digital transformation process for customers. In view of this, the
pandemic has fueled demand for the enterprises’ remote central IT management, the
Group continued to optimize UOC with smart and new technologies during the year
to expand its target customer base. In the second half of the year, the order revenue
of UOC surged, which demonstrated that the Group has properly identified the target
market and formulated the appropriate strategies for DevSecOps. The business has
secured many large-scale multinational management projects, involving enterprise
customers from different industries.

Business of associates

Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH", NASDAQ ticker symbol: GDYN), an associate
with business in Europe and the U.S., withstood the test of time during the pandemic
since its listing on Nasdaq. The performance of its core business returned to pre-
pandemic levels, with continuous expansion of shares contributions from first-tier
technology companies such as Apple and Google. During the year, GDH has acquired
Tacit Knowledge and successfully completed the second acquisition since its public
listing. Not only did it expand its business in Europe but also rapidly doubled its
employees to over 3,200, which holistically improved the overall service capabilities. In
addition, during the year, it became an outstanding partner of Google Cloud, and the
number of new customers increased by 37.0%.

According to Form 10-K for the year ended 31st December 2021 of GDH published
on US Security and Exchange Commission website, the annual total revenue of GDH
reached US$211.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,643.2 million), and
the annual Non-GAAP EBITDA was US$39.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$304.8 million). During the year, the share of revenue of GDH's non-retail
industry increased to 70.1% compared to last year, in which the IT, media and
telecommunications industries, constituted to the largest industry sector of GDH,
accounted for 32.0% of GDH’s annual revenue, representing a year-on-year growth of
49.2%. The retail industry was recovering with a revenue share of 29.2%, a year-on-
year increase of 81.7%.
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i-Sprint, one of the major associates in Asia Pacific and as an international leading
supplier of management, unified authentication and access control solutions, achieved
stable business performance during the year. Its revenue recorded at HK$119.5
million with a double-digit growth, while EBITDA and profits amounted to HK$23.2
million and HK$1.7 million respectively, with growth in both business indicators. Such
growths were primarily attributable to the demands for cybersecurity brought about
by the pandemic, as well as the development of deeper relationships with major local
and multinational banking and financial customers in Singapore, Middle East, Hong
Kong, Thailand, Malaysia and China. There was an addition of 39 new customers
during the year. Furthermore, i-Sprint products have received 2022 Cybersecurity
Excellence Awards Gold Prize and won 7 awards at the 17th Annual Cyber Security
Global Excellence Awards.

Outlook and Prospects

Entering into 2022, the global economic environment remains uncertain with lingering
threat posed by the pandemic. Hong Kong was caught in a tough challenge as the
COVID-19 variant continue to wreak havoc, hindering the economic recovery. The
Group will take appropriate contingency measures during the pandemic, so as to
ensure smooth operations of the Group, core actively seizing opportunities in the new
business model brought about by the pandemic.

In the post-pandemic era, the digital technology application has become the key to
adapting to new landscapes. Organizations enhance productivity through remote
office, automated procedures, and cloud computing. As the first local IT company
in Hong Kong to launch the DevSecOps business model, the Group will continue to
assist local or cross-regional customers in achieving digitalization through UOC, a one-
stop managed services platform. In the coming five years, the Company is expected
to invest more than HK$100.00 million in related technologies and business fields.
The Group will keep integrating its business resources, technical resources and human
resources with an ongoing focus to invest in scientific research, promote it technology
service level, and enhance application transformation capabilities. The Group will make
continuous updates to the cloud-native ASL Marketplace launched at the end of last
year with enriched the delivery content (such as adding automated services), in order
for our customers to enjoy better customer experience from a series of self-branded
as-a-Service.

In addition to the supply chain issue which resulted in delayed and halting delivery
of certain products, we are also facing a severe shortage of IT talents in Hong Kong.
In terms of the impact on the Group, the aforementioned factors has accelerated
customers’ demands for IT managed services and as-a-Service. On the other hand,
they pose a challenge to meet the rapidly growing manpower. In order to align with
the overall development direction in the Greater Bay Area, the Group has acquired a
property in Guangzhou as the headquarters of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area in early 2022, in order to accelerate the increased resources of the
offshore center to meet the needs of offshore delivery. The Group also plans to add
a security operation center in the Greater Bay Area to assist the local enterprises in
regulatory compliance.
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Meanwhile, the Group’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, Automated Systems
(H.K.) Limited and Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited obtained the highest
accreditation of CMMI at Maturity Level 5, a worldwide model to evaluate the
maturity of the enterprise’s software development capability, becoming one of the
few companies in the world that has reached this level. This signifies that the Group
can provide more mature and innovative industry solutions, as well as more high-
quality and efficient management and development services for onshore/ offshore
development centers, to fully meet customers’ ardent needs for digital transformation.

In 2022, the Group will persevere to promote its role transformation from “system
integration” to “service integration”. In the future, the Group will continue to
promote DevSecOps professional services, which is industry-oriented and high-value
added, through partner network with its self- branded services as the foundation,
and strive to become a trustworthy unified technology service partner which provides
technology and professional service to customers.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2021, the Group's total assets of HK$2,886.7 million were
financed by current liabilities of HK$721.0 million, non-current liabilities of HK$175.4
million and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$1,990.3
million. The Group had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.85:1.

As at 31st December 2021, the Group had an aggregate composite banking facility
from banks of approximately HK$346.6 million (2020: HK$386.6 million). The
Group had pledged land and buildings in an aggregate amount of HK$166.7 million
(2020: HK$166.7 million) and investment properties with a carrying amount of
HK$54.3 million (2020: HK$54.3 million) to secure the Group’s bank borrowings. The
performance bonds issued by the Group to customers as security of contracts were
approximately HK$102.5 million as at 31st December 2021 (2020: HK$84.8 million).
The Group's gearing ratio (bank borrowings over equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company) was 5.1% as at 31st December 2021 (2020: 6.7%).

Material Acquisition and Disposal

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 27th January
2021, 31st March 2021, 30th June 2021, 2nd July 2021 and 7th July 2021, and
the circular of the Company dated 7th May 2021, in relation to, among other
matters, major transaction in relation to the disposal of shares of GDH and closing
of partial disposal of GDH’s shares. Unless otherwise stated, capitalized terms used
hereinafter shall have the same meanings as those defined in the abovementioned
announcements and circular.
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Since the lock-up period of GDH common stock held by the Company had been
terminated, the Company intended to dispose of GDH Shares to realize its investments
in GDH. To allow flexibility in effecting the Future Disposal at appropriate occasions,
the Company proposed to seek from its shareholders the Disposal Mandate. The
Disposal Mandate constituted a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules and is therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, circular
and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. By
way of written approval by a shareholder, the Disposal Mandate authorising the Board
to effect disposal(s) from time to time during the period of 12 months from 31st
March 2021 of up to 7,900,000 GDH Shares (subject to adjustments).

On 30th June 2021 (New York time), GDD International Holding Company (“GDD"), a
subsidiary of the Group, GDH and the other Selling Stockholders and the Underwriters
entered into the Underwriting Agreement whereby GDD agreed, among others, to
sell part of its holding shares of GDH to the Underwriters pursuant to the Disposal
Mandate. An aggregate of 6,100,262 GDH Shares were sold severally and not jointly
by the Selling Stockholders, among which 4,800,000 GDH Shares were sold by GDD
(the “Disposal Shares”).

The closing of the Disposal Shares took place on 6th July 2021 (New York time) (the
“Closing”). After deducting commission paid to the Underwriters, the proceeds
received by GDD amount to approximately US$68.7 million (exclusive of other
expenses incurred and related taxes). Immediately following the Closing, the number
of GDH Shares held by GDD has decreased from 19,490,295 as at 30th June 2021 to
14,690,295. As the Underwriters exercised in full their option to purchase additional
shares from GDH, the percentage holding of GDD in GDH has decreased from
approximately 35.6% as at 30th June 2021 to approximately 24.4% immediately
following the Closing. GDH remains as an associate of the Company.
Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31st December 2021, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had other material acquisition or disposal.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated resources and
credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for the Group include trust
receipt loans, clean import loans, overdrafts and term loans. The interest rates of most
of them are fixed by reference to the respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The
bank deposits are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and United
States dollars ("USD"). The bank borrowings are denominated in HKD.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and USD. Foreign exchange
exposure to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to link HKD to USD
remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
and therefore no related hedging financial instrument was applied during the year
ended 31st December 2020 and 2021.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2021, performance bonds of approximately HK$102.5 million
(2020: HK$84.8 million) had been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group to
customers as security of contracts.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st December 2021, the Group had contracted capital commitment in respect
of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$0.4 million (2020: contracted
capital commitment in respect of property, plant and equipment and investment in
equity investment of approximately HK$12.3 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 32.1% and 14.4%,
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 45.3% and 13.2%, respectively, of
the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2021 did a Director, their close
associate or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) has an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2021, the Group, excluding its associates, employed 1,294
permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau
and Thailand. The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and the prevailing market conditions. Bonuses are granted on
a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident fund,
insurance, medical coverage and share option scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
2022 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Monday, 30th
May 2022. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 25th May 2022 to Monday, 30th May 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24th May 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The record date for entitlement to the proposed
final dividend is Friday, 10th June 2022. For determining the entitlement of the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 7th
June 2022 to Friday, 10th June 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 6th June 2022. The final dividend
warrants are expected to be despatched to the qualifying shareholders of the
Company on or before Friday, 24th June 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2021, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited
annual results.

By Order of the Board
Automated Systems Holdings Limited

Wang Yueou
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30th March 2022
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Activity Highlights
EEER

Despite the ongoing pandemic in 2021, the Group has successfully maintained BE 2021 FRIERE - AEERIEFESEFLES - T
smooth operations and launched “ASL Marketplace”, a cloud-based LT AE— RV B R mbE [BARTS ] (as-a-Service) #) ASL

comprehensive online platform comprising a series of self-branded as-a-Service, Marketplace EinfFa @ LT & @ BEREEEHER ARG
marking the Group's transformation into Unified Technology Services Partner. R BRTSFELE - tboh - EEIREMN T RRIES) » HEEE

Moreover, the Group has held various events to promote ASLs solutions and ERTREBERNERA RN [BIR

“as-a-Service” in different areas.

Launches ASL Marketplace, a new cloud-based comprehensive online platform, that integrates application development (App), cybersecurity
(Sec) and omni-channel managed services (Ops) into our unique “Unified Technology Services”, providing a complete one-stop as-a-Service
solution. By leveraging ASL Marketplace, we can enhance our technical capabilities in DevSecOps integration, optimize delivery resources
allocation, elevate continuous operation and maintenance standards, and bring a brand-new digital transformation service experience to
customers

2HITE T Einir a4 & ASL Marketplace » /& FIEF 3 (App) ~ 4% 2 (Seq) M2 REEIL R (Ops) B4 ABEIM [ mas RHIR
71 RE AR EEN [BIRS | - @B ASL Marketplace + F{PIFLASR{E T PIEE A DevSecOps HIELAMIAE 11 ~ BILERZMNELE - #EMIE
THHE L BREFITE - AR PRI EISEE RS2

' Holds “ASL Innovation 2021” webinar, introducing its newly-launched comprehensive cloud service online platform — ASL Marketplace

I
i SR TASL AR 2021 ) MR R - NMAR T H ST H A ASL Marketplace Einfr A LV &
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Activity Highlights
EETER

Takes part in Palo Alto Networks’
“Hong Kong CyberSummit 2021:
Powering Competitive Superiority”,
and shares how ASL'’s Unified
Operation Center (UOC) achieve
success in security operation

22817 Palo Alto Networks #J [Hong
Kong CyberSummit 2021: Powering
Competitive Superiority | & #t 15 & &
B DZEDEGHGEESEERO
(Vo) T ER L2 =8

@ - == —— e ———d

:' ________ - : Mr. Kenny Mak, Vice President, Solution Division

1 Opens g new Serv@e 1 of ASL, shares how ASL works together with

p Centerin I\.lor.th Point : Alibaba Cloud to assist Hong Kong enterprises

: to expand its mtegrated ,in accelerating digital transformation in “Alibaba

1 mahaged Services I Cloud Day Hong Kong 2021

! l?u5|nesE i : B #) Z 4t Solution Division #J Vice President Kenny
: mitﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁmgﬁﬂﬁﬁ%i 1 Mak 7 [Alibaba Cloud Day Hong Kong 2021 ] %
y D PETAREIRE |3 ASL MR BN AR E S EREN

, ERIEES !

[ ]

5 5 |
Participates in building the STEM classroom : Holds a graduation ceremony for ASL : Showcases our cybersecurity solutions at

of Buddhist Sum Heung Lam Memorial ,  Graduate Trainee Program 2018 - 2020 and 1 “Splunk Cloud Summit Hong Kong 2021"
College — D&T HUB I 2019 -2021 I 7 [Splunk Cloud Summit Hong Kong
EBRGSEUTEGITENCRHREBN | A2018-2020 £ 2019-2021 FEREE | 2021 BRRMOBHEZ2RAT R

STEM #4{Z= — D&T HUB | IIERTEIRITRES 1

Ms. Teresa Lau, Senior Vice President of ASL, !
attends the Hong Kong International Computer :
Conference (HKICC) 2021, and shares innovation
and technology trends in Hong Kong !
BB RS DREIEH Teresa Lau BB S BB EE |
BB [HERREMEH2021] - 95
EEBAITRRBE ;

: Government sales team and solution

| team attends a training — “Practical

: Training on Professional Scrum for Agile
, Transformation”

| BT SHE BB AT R E 2N

: T —155)E8) — [Practical Training

1 on Professional Scrum for Agile
: Transformation |

Opens 3 Offshore Delivery Excellence Centers (from left) in Guangzhou, ChangSha and FoShan

: % 3FEINE MR - DRI (ZE ) M - R Kbl
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

REAMEZEESH

CUSTOMER
P

SCOPE OF WORK
BHEE

A Fortune Global 50 international logistics comp

—ZRIHREE)5058 7 EERERH A A

A government authority

—BPRED

A government bureau
—HBUBRE D

A government department

—BRAFERFT

A leading global retailer
—RRARNTER

A multinational enterprise
—BE{E

A renowned bank in Thailand
—HAZRBRTT

A renowned gaming company in Macau

—HERPIERE AT

A renowned global airport services provider

— MBS RIGHIER

A renowned international school

—MBBER SR

A renowned local bank

— B AIIRTT

A Southeast Asian canned food brand

— R AR M amhE

A Taiwan full-container vessel shipping company
—REEERAMERAR

One of the largest local charitable organizations

R FABERE L —

Various government departments

Z{EABURF &R

Annual Report 2021 4%

any

Managed and monitored the Asia Pacific network 24/7 in 14 countries
PREBEMETH 14 HBE R KR AE4HE

Provision of prompt IT support to the government’s anti-epidemic work

RACIE N E AR CSIR RIS A SRR TR

Leveraged resources from the Offshore Delivery Excellence Center to provide
more flexible application development services

EREBNEMINFRLER - RHE AR R BEARERY

Provision of a large-scale mobile device management solution

REARBHREERRRTR

Provision of a cutting edge omni-channel platform
RHEANZRETS

Designed, constructed and managed the SD-WAN network to manage
connections across office networks in Hong Kong, Singapore, the U.K. and the
U.S.

FEt - BEFERH SD-WAN @M EIREEREEE - ST - £B&RER
/NN ok SF

Provision of hardware, software and systems installation services

REREM - MEMRGRERS

Provision of advanced backup and restore solutions

RESTEN BN MIRERRT =

Provision of desktop and server support services in global locations

NEHEERHERE R ERSEIERS

Provision of Security Operation Center services

REL2EED LIRS

Provision of Information Technology Service Management (ITSM) managed
services
R4 ITSM E IR BRTS

Provision of AccessReal product authentication solution
1R AccessReal E R B AR R

Provision of advanced persistent threat and ransomware protection

RESCENFERB NS HRE

Introduced DevSecOps to ensure its new private cloud services has a full lifecycle
Container Security Protection from development to production stages

5| A\ DevSecOps FEIR EL 2 ¥ FA A BRI HFBEAZEERE - 9ES 2 £
HRBLERE

Provision of application development and IT services for “iAM Smart”, the Hong
Kong Government’s mobile app, assisting the building of a smart city
RUEAEBERE REARBERE TEBSBNRBEAEN [E5E] - HyERs
2m



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HTES

Mr. WANG Weihang
THEMEE

Chairman

E:

Mr. Wang, aged 55, has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company since May 2019 and a Director of the Company since
September 2009. Mr. Wang has been a director of Grid Dynamics
Holdings, Inc., an associate of the Company which listed on Nasdagq
(ticker symbol: GDYN), since March 2020. Mr. Wang is currently the
chairman of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”), the
Company’s ultimate holding company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600410.SH) and the sole director of Teamsun
Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”), the Company’s
immediate holding company. Mr. Wang is currently a director of
certain subsidiaries of Teamsun. Mr. Wang was the vice chairman and
general manager of the first board of directors of Teamsun, the vice
chairman and president of the second to fourth board of directors of
Teamsun, the chairman and president of the fifth board of directors
of Teamsun, and the chairman of the sixth board of directors of
Teamsun. Mr. Wang was also the president of the seventh council of
Beijing Software Industry Association. Mr. Wang holds an Executive
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua University
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and a Master’s Degree
in Semi-Conductor Materials and Microelectronic Technology from
the Information and Electronic Engineering Department of Zhejiang
University in the PRC. Mr. Wang was awarded as A BISX{FEEZE AL H
B2 (China Software Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur Laureate#)
and FEIEHEEINBAY (China Software Industry Prestige Award
Laureate#) by China Software Industry Association in 2009. He was
also awarded the “Innovation Outstanding Personality of Chinese
Brand Award” in 2011.

FhE CBFRETAR BT NFRABLERARESEEE
MEZZENFHARBEEARAES - FEEG T -_TF=A8
EERDARMETER T (RERSEA [GDYN]) 2 # & 2 8 Grid
Dynamics Holdings, Inc. ZZ % » THAERARNARR LEFHRZ S
Bt £ (BRI SR : 600410.5H) Z B AEAR D BE mEE B R EHR IR
NABRABN(EBRR D ZESE - WARNARZABETRARIER
REBIER (BB BERAB([EBEBRX ] )E—EE - TEERK
ERAKETHBARIZESE - TALEHEBANFE —EEEEE
EERFMKE FZFNUEEFSAEFRRLY FREEF
BESRRBEURENEEFEEER - TAENRGEILRAET
¥MEELEREEER - TAEFAPEARKME ([HE])EE
REBEHZBREREABIHERETSMRPEINIAZEEE
TIREZFHWETFLRELTEM - TRER -TTNFEFERMF
TEMEREPERGELELCERRPERUELZDDAY - &
TR Z T ——FRNE [ BRI AITELE A EE] o

EENGREEAESHN

Mr. WANG Yueou
FTEBExE

Chief Executive Officer

TR

Mr. Wang, aged 47, has been the Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company since September 2016 and
September 2015 respectively. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2011
and was the Financial Controller, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Joint Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wang has been a
director of Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc., an associate of the Company
which listed on Nasdaq (ticker symbol: GDYN), since March 2020.
He is currently a director of certain subsidiaries and associates of
the Company (i.e. the directorships of i-Sprint Holdings Limited and
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd). Mr. Wang was a director of Teamsun,
the chief financial officer and a director of Carnation Software Ltd., a
subsidiary of Teamsun, a supervisor of Victorysoft Technology Ltd, the
joint venture company of the Company in the PRC, the chief financial
officer and a board secretary of Guangzhou Headway Technology Co.,
Ltd. and the regional finance manager (China) of Wistron Information
Technology & Services Corporation. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in International Accounting from Jinan University in the PRC,
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Wales
in the United Kingdom and an Executive Master's Degree in Business
Administration from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in the
PRC.

ThE  BEO++m DA E—A"FAAR-_Z—AFNARE
HERRRZITBAEHE RNITES - TRERN T ——FNEAEEH
REBRANE AL UKRERBFEARME - £X4H
TECTF= ARBEAARRRNETER ET (RERSEA [GDYN])
2 B X 7] Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. ZE % » #IREF AR R AE
FHIB AR Rt & A B 2 E S (BDi-Sprint Holdings Limited X i-Sprint
Innovations Pte Ltd 2 E =) » TAERTEB AN ES « EB RN
ZHBAREMAMS EREGERAR 2 MBRERES « AATA
R ZEE R RBBERRER AR ZES - BINEERRER
NRAIZMBBEREEEWE  UREAZTHRMHERAT ZHEE
BIISHEIE o TRERBRRERASEE 2 BEET2 80 - &
ERATASEEE r THEEBETE0 - URPEEERBHRIEE
CEMEEAEIEEEBLEN -
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESERSREEAEBRBN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FUTES

Mr. CUI Yong
EBRAE

Mr. Cui, aged 54, has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since September 2015. He joined Teamsun in March 2005 and is
currently the general manager of key client accounts business (division
1) in Teamsun. Mr. Cui was a director and the executive vice president
of Teamsun. During his tenure with Teamsun, Mr. Cui was also a
general manager of various divisions, including the system information
product (plate) and service (plate) division, the telecommunications
industry and value-added storage business division, and the system
product business division. Mr. Cui holds an Executive Master of
Business Administration from Guanghua School of Management in
Peking University in the PRC.

EaL RFEA+TWE - B -Z-—hFNAEZERARRENTE
= BR_ZERF=AMBEBRAK  BERBEBRRZIAREFPE
B AassIR - EXE L REBRANESLNITRIEE, - ERERE
BRBGERARE - TEREEZERPIAEE AP eERRERER
(o) FARFS (R HR) ~ BRITENFRIGESEBURRAREREE
e EAERATRILRARAEERERBEE  SREBAELR
EIBIE LB o
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BYFHTES

Mr. PAN Xinrong

Mr. Pan, aged 67, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since September 2015. He is currently an independent
director of Shanghai Bokesoft Information Co., Ltd.* (E/&ERIE
HRMD AR AT). He was an executive director and the deputy
chairman of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 934) from 2004 to 2007 and was the chief executive officer
of Petro-Cyberworks Information Technology Co., Ltd. from 2006
to 2014. Mr. Pan also held financial positions in various companies,
including China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“SINOPEC"),
China Petrochemical Corporation, China Eastern United Petrochemical
(Group) Company Limited and SINOPEC Anging Company (formerly
known as China Petrochemical Anging Petrochemical Plate). Mr. Pan
graduated from China Huazhong University of Science and Technology
with a profession in Quantitative Economics. Mr. Pan was awarded the
“QOutstanding Management Award” by China Petroleum and Chemical
Industries Integration of Informatization and Industrialization in 2011
and the First Prize of SINOPEC Technology Advancement in 2014.

EEE  BREANTAR - B RFNABEZERARFELIEAR
TEE - FEALDEEREFARNARAFBLES - WEN_ZTF
ME2 T FEFEBHERZIMBRAR IR ETARF ALY
BEEARAR (MO : 934) BERTESHRATFEEN_-FTZ
NEECZFRACARHE SR AREEARIREERFERTE
BAL  BAEETERPRAEIROARAB(TREAL]) -+
At TERERR  FERBACEEEREERAFAMFEALR
BEaRE(pis : mEAERERMETER) SZHARLERE
BT - BEERERPEEPHRABHEBLBEE - BEEN_F
——FEREOEMETITEM AR [HEERE] R -F
—NEERETEOCRERIE S-S5 -



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESERESREEAEBRBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

BIYEHITESE 9

Mr. DENG Jianxin
HEIFEE

Mr. Deng, aged 57, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September 2015. He is currently an executive
director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Capital Investment Management Co.,
Ltd.* ORYITTETERIEEEEBRAF), an executive director of
Shenzhen Zhuoyi Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (R3IIT1 &1z & 32
AR A R]), an executive director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Enterprise
Consultants Co., Ltd* (RIITTRTEEMBR A A]), the chairman
of Shanghai Debimai Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (&
HEVIRDEERAWAR AR, the chairman of Shanghai 4Smart
Technology Co., Ltd.* (/8@ sEEHE B R A F]) and the chairman
of Hangzhou Zhuoyuan Ledao Holding Co., Ltd.* (fi/l & T 43812 A%
BMR/AF]). Mr. Deng was a supervisor of Shanghai Dobe Cultural &
Creative Industry Development (Group) Co., Ltd., a partner of Beijing
JD Capital Co., Ltd., a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
("Deloitte”), a full-time member of the 7th and 8th Stock Offering
Approval Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission and
a director of Shandong Bori Bioenergy Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the New Third Board (Stock Code: 871585.0C). Mr. Deng was
mainly responsible for managing and auditing the listing of companies
as well as the merger and acquisition services in Deloitte. Mr. Deng
holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law in the PRC and an Executive Master's Degree
in Business Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in the PRC.

Bk BERA++Hm B2 —RAFENABERTARATE T IEH
TEF - HEARY ML TERIREERERARRMITES  FIIMm
Bl BEBEABRARNTES  FMETEEBRERARNT
BT DEEURCETERRNERADNESR - DERBETRERE
BRABDESEEMMETLBERERADESR - BAEETL
BENEAIEEEER(EE)ARARES LRETNGREE
BERRAEBA  EHSHMELEA(EHDERA  PREES
BELEMEEREETEREZECERZE R =R ETAFILE
EHEMERRRGOBRAR (BRMH A - 871585.0C) &S « B4
REHTZEELE LTI REL  TAEHEREER - 8%
ERERBEREMEBERE ST RET B KPR RIS
EREBAEBTIHERBLIEM

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina
mNEZE

Ms. Or , aged 52, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since April 2017. She has been a senior vice-president
of Schneider Electric SE (collectively with its subsidiaries “Schneider
Electric”), a company listed on the Euronext Paris Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: SU) since February 2019. She joined Schneider Electric
in 1994 and held various positions with Schneider Electric, including
the director and president of Schneider Electric (Hong Kong) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric between 2015 and
January 2019, the vice president of global purchasing of Schneider
Electric between 2012 and 2014, the president of Schneider Electric
Taiwan Co., Ltd. between 2008 and 2011 and the director of certain
subsidiaries of Schneider Electric. Ms. Or has also been appointed as
a member of Energy Advisory Committee of Environment Bureau of
The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region since
2016. She has more than 20 years’ management experience in energy
management and automation industry. Ms. Or holds an Executive
Master’s Degree in Business Administrative from the Kellogg School
of Management at Northwestern University in the United States of
America and the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, and
a Master’s degree of Science in Management from ESSEC Graduate
School of Management in France.

Rt WBEA+T - BT tFHUARZERARREILIFAR
TES - FE T NF-ABRECTIERZBESX S LM AR
BB R AR DR (RO RS : SU) CERIEMB AR - 4tfd [ 1
MEER]) 2 EREREIEE - R —NATFNAEMEEREZ G
EZERL - BER-_E-—AFE_Z-NF-ABMREMEER
2EMBRREMEER(FR)ARAREETRAR RT—=
FROZ-MEHBREMNEERZIRELRREE R-2TN\F
E-T——FHRAABERMEERAR AR L LETHEMEER
ETHEBARZES - MLEhE - "FEZERBERIITR
BRERERFEAZEGKE - RNEREEL BB EITEREBB
THEERER - MATHAERAILARIIERER B R BB
BARBITHAEIAERBE T2 REESSLBEREEIRH R
(ESSEC) B IR B2RE T2 ©
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREBEAEB/N

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SNEBAS

Mr. NGAN Wai Hing
BEERLE

Financial Controller and Company Secretary
BIBAEEER R A&

Mr. Ngan, aged 50, has been the Financial Controller and the
Company Secretary of the Company since September 2016. Mr.
Ngan joined the Company in 2009 and was a financial controller
of a subsidiary of the Company. He was also the Joint Company
Secretary of the Company from September 2014 to August 2016.
Mr. Ngan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Financial Administration (major
in accounting) from University of New England in Australia and is a
certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia.

BL  RFEATR BT R"FNARDEAR B BRLEER
RAME - BEER_ZZNFMBAARB LG HERRF —HHME
NEZERER - ZIFE T —HIFNAZ-ZT—RF/\ALER
RAZEERRIME - BEERARMNARBRAR 2B ERELT
B (ZEGTER)  BARTESHIASEME a0 KRN &6
NEHEGETED -

# For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying and
formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). During the year
ended 31st December 2021, the Company has complied with all the code provisions,
save and except for code provision E.1.2, details of which are explained below. The
Company regularly monitors and reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
these continue to meet the increasing stringent regulatory requirements and to
improve its practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors (the “Board”)
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and transparency and
accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a view to
enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the Company are
delegated to the management.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the Company, including
the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to capital and overall
corporate structure, risk management and internal control systems, material
transactions (in particular those which may involve conflicts of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services from the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals have to be obtained
from the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions by the above-
mentioned officers.

The Board has the full support from the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

SREARE

ARBRARFZEEERHANARRER . BR
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two Executive Directors, one
Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The number
of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents more than one-third of the Board
as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Weihang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Xinrong

Mr. Deng Jianxin

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina

None of the members of the Board has any financial, business, family or other material
relationships with each other.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 25 to 28 of this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules and is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and affairs of the Company,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflicts of interests and serving
in Board committees, all Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Annual Report 2021 4%
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for the
appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are available and accessible
on the Company’s website at http://www.asl.com.hk.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
are as set out in the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board established a Nomination
Committee to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually, identify suitable candidates for the Board, and to make recommendations
on any matters in relation to the appointment and re-appointment of members of the
Board. Appointment of new Directors is reserved for the Board's approval.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members with a diverse
range of skills and experience with the appropriate knowledge necessary to oversee
the business development, strategies, operations, challenges and opportunities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Nomination Committee takes that
person’s skills, qualifications and expected contributions to the Company into account
before making any recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment or
re-appointment of members of the Board.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process,
with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by making reference to the
proposed candidates’ skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments as well as the needs of the Company and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to
carry out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director shall be subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors is appointed under a specific term and they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

BEE=w
BEECZEREERE

AAREREF2EME  BUER  KFEZERA
BREZIEF

AAREREMBREZAEDERARREENEF
It 532 ] FA AKX R 48 Uk http://www.asl.com.hk & ]
RGFE -

ARAZ REMRFHARE  BEMEREFENERF
RFER - BERRERUREEEGE V) TFERIES
G - AR KRB Z T MEAEAR
MAEEG LA EMABZERENRAEEGNE
WEERHEBEZ FESNZEASESSOI
e

REREeMRESSNEARBBZMUENREE
BERMEE NGB NEEARRRRENE AR (5
[REE ) EBER - KIE - 28 SEREE- &
MEFEREZEXENZETESTINERFE S
BN REEBEZTREZEALHRE  EERHE
HEARRELNER -

HWEESHRER EFGH2ERRELESES
BEEREANTEE &% BENR - AASERA
B - ARANFEREMBREEZ L IR
MLz o B VR ISEINRIBNRIE - LT
RIS BRI

REARBZ RFAR - RE—RARRBREBEFK
F(ERBAFRGDMBEAR =Dz —2EE &
HBBEWF=sk=2F2 Aoz BB ENDR
A ZEEATRII MBUESAEZLE=F
TWERE—R - MER ARG Z R ERITIY
BEEEMFESARELZER CERERRAE Lk

BUIFRTESDRIBREEEEHNERE - KEF
BREARB 2 RRARANBRBFAE LRESER
BB -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 R EHR AR

31



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Company has formal letters of appointment for all Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) or service contracts for Executive
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment and the terms
of references have set out the work scope of the Board committees and delegation
were made by the Board in respect of the responsibilities of the Non-Executive
Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) in such Board Committees.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Deng
Jianxin and Mr. Cui Yong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company’s circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company. Each newly-appointed
Director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for its
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and the
business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for Directors are arranged where necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Training for Directors (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Company organised a training
session in November 2021 titled “Listing Regime and Comparison of Regulations of
Special Purpose Acquisition Company” and “New Guidelines on Environmental, Social
and Governance”, respectively, and a training session in December 2021 titled “Anti-
corruption”, and provided Directors with relevant training materials. The training
session was conducted by a professional institute with a presentation and briefing
materials. All Directors have provided the Company with records of the trainings
during the Year. According to the training records maintained by the Company, the
types of trainings received by each of the Directors during the Year are summarised as
follows:
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Types of Training
$E IR
Attending seminar(s)/
conference and/or
Receiving updates and forums conducted
briefings from the by the Company or

Company/self-study external parties

WEHADTE HERAATRIIBEN

RENEHFERR BRWHHHE
Name of Director BEENR BN/ 88 BER RwE
Executive Directors HITES
Wang Weihang FH#EMm v/
Wang Yueou FERS v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Cui Yong ER v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Pan Xinrong ERER v
Deng Jianxin il v/
Or Siu Ching, Rerina g v

Insurance Cover for Directors EENRBTH

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the Code.

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional meetings on
other occasions as needed.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Board held four Board meetings.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members
(Continued)

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)

The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, meetings of
Board committees and/or the general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31st December 2021 are set out below:

BEE=
BEERZEEREHFEH (B

DHANBREFLFEAZ(E)
REERBE-_T - —F+-A=t+—HLFEET
MARREFEREBTZESNEE R IREK
& 2 (BRI EFREER I

Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship

REZEDALE BEAEERY

Remuneration Audit Nomination ~ Management Investment 2021 AGM  Special General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee —BC-F Meeting
Name of Directors £33 £ FHzag ENzag R%Z88 ERZER REZBE REBFAE  REEHAE
Executive Directors HiTEs
Wang Weihang THf 3/4 N/A N/A 7 304 33 o o
TER TER
Wang Yueou TER 44 /A /A NA 44 33 N N
TER TER Tam
Non-Executive Directors ~ F#TEE
Cui Yong ER 0/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/4 N/A on on
TER TER TaR TER
Independent Non- BUFHTES
Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong e 414 2 414 101 N/A 33 0 0
TER
Deng Jianxin B 3/4 02 3/4 7 N/A 23 n o
TER
Or Siu Ching, Rerina g 4/4 2 44 N/A N/A N/A n n
TER TR TER
Note: Bff3E

1. Mr. Wang Weihang was not able to present in person in a Management Committee meeting
during his business trips, and the Management Committee meeting was attended and voted
on his behalf by Mr. Deng Jianxin.

Save as disclosed above, none of the meetings set out above was attended by any
alternate Director.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with
the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors)
without the presence of Executive Directors during the year ended 31st December
2021.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of
the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and Board committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days (or such other period as agreed)
before each Board meeting or Board committees meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and Board committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered by the Board
and dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution. The
Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power and authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Wang Weihang
and Mr. Wang Yueou respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined
and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning of
the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the support
of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board's approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective since 30th August 2013. All
board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
based on objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors. One of them is female.
Three of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby promoting critical
review and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, professional background
and skills.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy effective since 31st December 2018. This
policy aims to set out guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are
to be declared and paid, and the level of dividend to be paid to the shareholders
of the Company. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board should also take into account, inter alia,
the following factors:—

(a) the actual and expected financial results of the Group;

(b) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the Group;

(c) the Group's business strategies, including future cash commitments and
investment needs to sustain the long-term growth aspect of the business;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders;

(e) the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Group; and

(f) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Subject to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations, dividends may be paid in cash or be satisfied wholly
or partly in the form of allotment of shares of the Company. The Board may also
consider the issuance of bonus shares on a basis permitted by the applicable laws
and regulations. The dividend shall include scrip dividends, distributions in specie or in
kind, capital distributions and capitalisation issues.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

The Board may from time to time determine and pay to the Company’s shareholders
interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the position of the
Company. The Board may recommend the payment of final dividends which are
required to be approved by shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Management Committee and Investment
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and/or are available to shareholders upon request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to time to
facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Deng Jianxi, Mr. Pan Xinrong and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina. Mr.
Pan Xinrong is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management and share
options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual remuneration
packages of all Directors and the senior management and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2021. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the
Directors’ remuneration packages (including their service agreements) and bonuses
payable and matters concerning share options of a subsidiary, and determined, with
delegated responsibility, the change and remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5, the annual
remuneration of a member of the senior management by band for the year ended
31st December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of Individual

HKD2,500,001 — HKD3,000,000 1

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Pan Xinrong, Mr. Deng Jianxin and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, among
them one Independent Non-Executive Director possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. Mr. Deng
Jianxin is the chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company'’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the management, internal auditor or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor with reference to the work
performed by the auditor, its independence, fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor;

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems and associated procedures;
and

(d) to report the findings and make recommendations to the Board for improvements
or implementations in relation to the above matters.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st December 2021.
At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(@) the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures;

(b) the reports from the external auditor, management letters and management
response;

(c) the corporate governance matters;

(d) the matters in relation to the risk management and internal control systems as
well as internal audit function; and

(e) the re-appointment of the external auditor.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor three via video conference during
the year ended 31st December 2021.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st December 2021 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises the chairman of the Board and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Pan
Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

() to access the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman of
the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31st December
2021. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(@) the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(b) the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

(c) to make recommendation to the Board about the proposed re-election of
Directors who were due to retire at the AGM; and

(d) the time spent by Non-Executive Directors to fulfill their duties.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company has been adopted by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

A nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) has been adopted by
the Board on 31st December 2018. The key nomination criteria and principles of the
Company for the nomination of Directors constitute the Nomination Policy as set out
below:

(@) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive;

(d) before recommending an appointment, to evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board, and, in the light of this
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment. In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall:

(i) use such method or methods to facilitate the search as it may deem
appropriate;

(i) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds; and

(ili) consider candidates on merit and against objective criteria and with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, taking care that candidates
have enough time available to devote to the position; and

(e) to ensure that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive
a formal letter of appointment setting out clearly what is expected of them in
terms of time commitment, committee service and involvement outside Board
meetings, where appropriate.

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou and Mr. Cui
Yong. Mr. Wang Yueou is the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and reviewing
the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and making
recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the Group. The
Management Committee meets as appropriate and when required to discuss the
related issues.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou,
Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the
Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and evaluating
existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company, and making
recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee meets as and when
required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
December 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in performing its corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is responsible for
corporate governance functions with the following duties:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

to review the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2021.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of
the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant information
which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for approving the financial
statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
88 t0 92 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid and payable to the external auditors of the Group, in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31st December 2021
amounted to HK$2,112,000 and HK$984,000 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The main features of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the senior management. The Board
has evaluated and determined the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and has overseen the senior management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in providing direction
in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the senior management identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of
the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to a
set of standardised criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are then established
for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist the
Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of internal control systems
of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal controls are
identified and recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant internal
control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely
basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

Risk management report and internal control report which covered financial,
operational and compliance control for the year ended 31st December 2021, has
submitted for the Audit Committee’s and the Board’s reviews. The Group has an
internal audit function in place to provide an independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
in accordance with the Code. The Board had performed an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during
the year, including but not limited to the change, since the last annual review, in
nature and extent of significant risk, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and external environment; the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risk management and internal control systems; the extent and
frequency of communication with the Board in relation to monitoring result of risk and
internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance. The Board considers the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate. The Board in particular considers
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours
as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that
the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the information
to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear
and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors,
Independent Non-Executive Directors, and the Chairmen of all Board committees or
their delegate(s) will make themselves available at each AGM to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy setting out the
Company’s procedures in providing the shareholders with clear communication and
easy access to information about the Company.

The 2021 AGM was held on 26th May 2021 (the “2021 AGM"). The notice of 2021
AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the 2021 AGM.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board should attend the
annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wang Weihang, was unable
to attend the 2021 AGM due to other commitments. However, the chairmen of the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management
Committee and Investment Committee or their delegate, and the Company’s external
auditor have attended the 2021 AGM to answer questions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at http:/
www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships with its
investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws. An updated version of the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors. Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote
at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural matters) are taken
by poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after the general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS (continued)

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”), shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
may convene a SGM by written requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must state
the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in
giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the
Companies Act once a valid requisition is received.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to make requisition to the Company
to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution which is intended to be
moved at AGM of the Company or circulate a statement in respect of any proposed
resolution or business to be considered at a general meeting of the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for consideration
at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(@) either any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition

a right to vote at the meeting; or

not less than 100 shareholders.

(b)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders concerned and
together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company.
The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and unless the Company otherwise resolves, the shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:

Contact Details

The Company Secretary

Automated Systems Holdings Limited

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2608 6585

Email: ir@asl.com.hk

For avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Ngan Wai Hing (“Mr. Ngan”), a full time employee of
the Company, who is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman of the
Board on governance matters and facilitates induction and professional development
of Directors. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules since Mr. Ngan has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31st December 2021.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30th March 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group is dedicated to creating long-term, sustainable value for our stakeholders
and strive to integrate this objective into our practices and governance to promote
social and environmental sustainability.

For any organisation committed to being responsible and sustainable, Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG") reporting is important because it allows organisation
to demonstrate, with facts, what it have achieved and how it plans to meet the
challenges ahead. Not only that, but through the ESG Report we also want to share
our vision with all our stakeholders, providing them with a better understanding of
the Group’s progress and direction on sustainable development, and gaining their
commitment and support. As without them, it will be difficult for us to achieve
sustained growth.

Reporting Scope

Unless otherwise stated, the scope of this ESG Report include environmental and social
issues relating to the Group’s core business operations at the Hong Kong headquarters
for the year ended 31st December 2021 (the “Reporting Year”). Such scope has
included all operations and businesses under the Group’s direct management and
control that have a significant financial and operational impact.

Going forward, the Group will continue to determine the scope of reporting in
accordance with the “materiality” principle and improve our internal data collection
systems to provide stakeholders with more comprehensive and accurate information.

Reporting Standards

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Recognising the importance of being accountable to
our stakeholders for the information disclosed, we adhere to the following reporting
principles.

o Materiality: The Group continually communicates with stakeholders to
understand and identify the ESG areas that are most important to them.

o Quantitative: Where feasible, information is presented in a quantitative manner
and accompanied by narrative, interpretation and comparative analysis.

o Balance: The ESG Report is prepared in an unbiased manner, with clear
explanations of positive and negative impacts, enabling stakeholders to make a
reasonable assessment of the Group’s overall performance.

o Consistency: The ESG Report presents information on a consistent basis,
enabling stakeholders to analyse and assess changes in performance over time.
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Confirmation and Approval

A system of internal oversight, review and risk management has been put in place by
the Group to ensure that all information presented in the ESG Report is accurate and

reliable.

The ESG Report was confirmed and approved by the Board on 30th March 2022.

Feedback

If you have any questions about the content of the Report, please feel free to contact

the Group.

Address: 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: ir@asl.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance. The Company’s

Board is responsible for decision-making, strategy and risk management, and oversees

our ESG matters. Our Joint Company Secretaries are the coordinators of specific ESG

issues, helping the Board develop strategic ESG programmes, assess and manage

ESG risks, as well as set targets and review progress, while communicating ESG

management plans to other departments.

As an integral part of corporate governance, the Group believes that risk management
and internal control systems have a key role and importance in achieving business
objectives. Our identifying significant risks related to ESG matters relies on evaluation
of management of the Company. During the Reporting Year, the Group has identified
the following major ESG risks and ensured that the corresponding measures are

adequate and effective.

Major ESG risks
FTERE HERELAE

Impact
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Control measures

iR

Health epidemics

2

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a severe and
negative impact on the Chinese and global economy
since early 2020. Health or other government
regulations adopted in response to an epidemic may
require temporary closure of our offices or institute
travel restrictions which could adversely affect
our ability to provide services to our customers
throughout the world. Our operations could also
be disrupted if any of our employees are suspected
or confirmed of contracting a disease, which
could require us to quarantine some or all of these
employees or disinfect our offices.

B 2020 FHJ#E + COVID-19 £ 15 ¥ 7 B [ & BRAC
EERENEHETE - REEZIE MR E £
HBUTRAIR e 2R AEEEREANAZTRE
TR EEBR I - 1k AT AR AN SR (B I R R A B P 1R
HRBOEENELETFZE - WAKEZEAES
REOASK IR R R - AR ESRARR EFm R E 5

F2HAEREREIEMATEITHS  FEHZE
BIRAT BT -
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The Group strives to reduce the possible pandemic
impact on operations and employee health by the
following means:
REBFBUTARB R Z B 2E REEREN
BETE

— Implementing flexible and remote work options
B s R T(E%IE

— Sharing the up-to-date information about
COVID-19 symptoms and disease prevention
recommendations among employees
WMEEB 25D Z AR COVID-19 ZIE M K& fmTER
EER BT AR

—  Ensuring the safety of working environments by
thoroughly cleaning and disinfecting workplaces
FBHEBRIES TES AR TIEREN L
PaN

=2
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Major ESG risks Impact
FTERE  HERERERE &

Rk - HERERME

Control measures

BRI

Shortage of IT talents in
Hong Kong
EREARHLAT R

Hong Kong has made great strides in driving the
development of the IT industry over the years.
Owing to the rapid development of Fintech, big data
analytics, artificial intelligence and cyber security
in the industry, the related demand for manpower
with comprehensive knowledge and experience has
increased. While competition for recruiting IT talents
has intensified due to the huge demand in the
market, the political unrest and COVID-19 pandemic
over the past few years has undoubtedly caused an
outflow of local talent and limited inflow of talent
to Hong Kong. Since the customers’ demands are
growing, the talent shortage poses a challenge to
meet the rapidly growing Manpower.

B FREEDEARTEER A —EIUS
RENES - ERESEBE - REESHT - AT
BEERMRT2THMNMRERE  WEHAEEGRE
R ASBE AN BB T KB - EERTIS

BEARFH RBUEBIEE B AT #3555 R sz
2B BEEBFHBUAEE K COVID-195% 18 IR E

RMGBAI AT MERAT RATBOIERZE

Rl o AEPERREEE - EI AL E
RIS R A ) T EER K -

There are also ESG-related policies in place across the Group covering areas such as
employment and labour practices, business integrity, environment and community.
These policies help us to optimise our internal management system and ensure the
protection of our stakeholders. For example, a series of well-established employment
policies safeguard the rights of employees, regular training programme to employees
for providing of high-quality products and services to customers to maintain
sustainable business growth, and the compliance with applicable laws and regulations
to maintain healthy business development and strengthen confidence of shareholders
and investors in the Group.

The department heads are responsible for overseeing the implementation of the ESG-
related policies, ensuring ongoing communication with employees and reviewing
the policies on a regular basis. All employees and relevant stakeholders should be
informed of any changes to the policies.

With enhanced sustainability governance in the Group, we intend to continue to
assess our ESG performance and global trends from time to time and plan to set ESG
targets in the near future.

To manage such risk, the Group has actively explored
ways to close the skills gap, expand talent pool and
embrace new work models by:

RERA AR
BIRREZEE - BAAS BERBRFTIIEER -

C REBERBIREBAT T RSHT AR

—  Talent training

3

—  Expansion of service centers (i.e. acquisition of
property in Guangzhou as the headquarters of the
Greater Bay Area)

RSSO (BB RN R IE /AN ERAEER)

— Introduction of automation to improve service
quality

SIAB# AR
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values the participation of stakeholders' and strongly believes that building
a relationship of trust not only enables stakeholders to understand the Group’s work
and performance in promoting sustainable development, but also enables the Group
to understand stakeholders’ opinions and needs so as to examine potential risks and
opportunities. We regularly engage key stakeholders in daily operations through
meetings, events, and other communications and feedback channels.

Stakeholders
BHE

Shareholders and Investors

R EE

Customer

5P

Employee

(=35

Supplier
HIER

Community

o

Government and supervisory institutions

BT L8 B R

Note:

1. Stakeholders refer to groups and individuals who have a major impact on, or are impacted

by, the Group’s business.
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KO ESHE
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ERSHNETRARENMUGERFERRIEN T
ERRE  MASAEETHSNEZZREFE -
femEREGERRERS - AEEBBEHE  FBHR
HiBBERERE  THSIBERNEL2EATE
78 o

Methods of communication with stakeholders

BEEMENEBELR

e Annual General Meeting
BEBFERS

e Notices, circulars, and announcements

e Regular corporate publications including financial
reports
FEHR T (BEMBRE)

e  Corporate website
=T

e Press release
T

e  Enquiries or feedback to the Board via the Group’s
Company Secretary
FRAKE L ARIMERMEESEANRE

e  Satisfaction survey
WEERAE
e Customer service hotline and email

B P IRIE 2R S B

e Regular meeting
RS

e Annual performance appraisal
FERREZ

e Internal memos
MED %

e Training sessions

S s
BEilg=®

e Tendering

Eiele

e Business meetings
bt

e On-site assessment
BRI

e Charitable activity
BERY

e Community volunteering events
HEZITES

e  Statutory filings and notification
TETE TR Sm AN

e Regulatory or voluntary disclosures
ELE S B AR ER

e  Taxreturn
R

F5E -

1. BOERHEAKREEXGAAEATE  RREBFEN
BHEERAEA -
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To the Group, material issues are those that would affect the decisions, actions and
performance of our business and stakeholders. In preparing the ESG Report, the
consultant designed a survey to assist the Board in reviewing ESG issues against the
ESG Report Guide and industry trends, and identifying material issues based on their
importance to stakeholders and the Group. Below are six material issues identified by
the Board:

e Anti-corruption e Product Responsibility
e REF o EmAME

e Customer Satisfaction ® Innovation

o EFWEE o B

The Group believes that stakeholders’ views can provide management with a
comprehensive understanding of sustainability risks and develop improvement
measures accordingly. Going forward, We will continue to strengthen our interaction
with stakeholders and expand more channels, such as conducting questionnaires
among more stakeholders to increase opportunities to understand their expectations.

COMPLIANCE AND INTEGRITY

The Group recognises that breaches of laws and regulations will have a significant
impact on our business operations, performance, financial position and reputation.
Our business is governed by various laws and regulations, including but not limited to
the following which have a significant impact on the Group: the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, the Employment Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and
the Competition Ordinance. Measures are implemented to keep abreast of the latest
regulatory developments to ensure compliance.

Meanwhile, all operations are run with a high degree of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity. To meet the fair and ethical requirements, the Group has
established a Business and Ethical Code of Conduct, Competition Compliance Policy
and Whistle-Blower Policy to ensure that our operations are free from all forms of
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering and anti-competitive practices
and that employees are aware of and comply with these requirements and do not
engage in any improper activities.

Rk - HERERME
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&

e Cyber Security
o MWERZTE

e Training and Development
o FIINER
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Management Approach

EERG

Description

i

Business and Ethical Code of Conduct
EEBET AR

Competition Compliance Policy
BFEDI A RBUR

Whistle-Blower Policy
RIRTR

A briefing session on the above policies will be organised for employees upon their
commencement of employment. These policies are also available on our intranet
for easy access by employees. Any employee who is in doubt about the legality of
any business activity can seek advice from the Legal Manager. In addition, during
the Reporting Year, a one-hour anti-corruption training session was provided to our

directors to further enhance their relevant awareness.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations. There were also no legal cases of corrupt practices against the Group

and our employees.
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It is based on the Group’s values and aims to promote honest behaviour by all those
involved in our operations.

HUREEZ BEBAER  EEREMALEAEEZE ALTHHETR -
Employees must not solicit or accept an advantage as a reward or inducement for doing
any act or showing favour to any person or corporate without the permission of the
Group.

REAREBE - EETHE
HEAERITTAR  SEERE -

BAERRRPEMNEERBRMIAT - REMALTIOEEE

It has been adopted by the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong.
REBERAREEEENNBAREERKEBECER -
Its aim is to prohibit any conduct that prevents, restricts or distorts competition.

HEEZIEMGE - RERtHmE21TR -

It encourages employees to actively report any malpractice and misconduct that may be
detrimental to the interests of the Group to the Legal Manager.

HEi e S AL LS FMEMAIEEEAEEN R NETARTETR -
Anyone can report in real name or anonymously. The whistleblower’s identity will be kept
completely confidential, and his or her legitimate interests will be protected.
ERALHAELKELRR - BRAZ AN T2RE - AHAERRHZRE
All cases reported will be recorded and assessed. Upon receipt of the report, the Legal
Manager should promptly initiate an investigation of the case.

P L ReV B e ATl - AR B RERRE - BERRMERR
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CONTRIBUTION TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Group desires to unite all our staff members in working towards a common
goal - to participate in building the community in which we conduct operations and
protecting the natural environment from which we obtain resources, while always
meeting the expectations of our stakeholders and bringing them mutual benefits.
To this end, we seek to create value for each of the five capitals important to our

business.
Human Capital Social Capital Produced Capital
ABER HEBEX BEEX

While the financial capital is already reflected in the Group’s financial statements, we
highlight our performance in the other four capital areas in the ESG Report.

Produced Capital

The Group’s mission as a service provider is to create value for our customers by
providing them with quality and value-added services and solutions. Our produced
capital lies in the creation and management of knowledge and technology in the field
of information technology. In the ongoing digitalisation process, we are committed to
continuous innovation to better assist our clients in their digital transformation.

Quality Assurance

The Group places great importance on ensuring the quality and reliability of our
services. Through regular quality reviews and internal audits by the Quality Office, we
take initiative to identify potential areas for continual improvement on our services
provided to customers in the context of quality management standards. For any risks
that may affect the quality of our services, the Quality Office proposes risk mitigation
plans and monitors the effectiveness of the corrective measures taken.

Over recent years, our main subsidiaries, Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited (“ASLHK")
and ELM Computer Technologies Limited (“ELM"”), have been recognised for the
following quality achievements.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z 5B ER A A
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Major Subsidiaries

Quality Achievement

Type of Service Provision

Awarding Bodies

TEWBE AT mE R RAERBER FEIEHE
ASLHK ISO 9001:2015 Quality Enterprise Information Technology Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Services
S EEES ISO9001:2015MEEE A& RIRE EREMERE
R
ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018 Service Desk Operation, Hosting Services, Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
IT Service Infrastructure Hardware & Software
Management System Maintenance Services
|xmmzmm42ms RBEER, FERBEMERRED EEmERE
BREMREEERER  BEMSRGgE
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information Security Monitoring Service  SGS Hong Kong Limited
Information Security
Management System
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 BRI RS ERBRRAREERAA
BT R EERER
Capability Maturity Software Development CMMI® Institute
Model Integration® and Support Service
(CMMI-DEV) Organization
Version 2.0,
Maturity Level 5
Capability Maturity BB R SR ARG A 4 CMMIP B
Model Integration®
(CMMI-DEV) 2.0 i
FERBETR
ELM ISO 9001:2015 Quality IT System Integration, Software Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Development, Installation and
Maintenance Support Services
TRz ISO 9001:2015 EARHRGES  BRAE EBmERE

mEEEER

5 o M SR AR TS

Owing to the nature of information security involved in IT services, the associated risk
assessment and management are of paramount importance. The Group has developed
and implemented an IT Security policy which requires relevant staff to comply with
regulations in relation to physical security, access control security, data security and
network and communication security, to protect the customers’ information. To
address security incidents, such as network or system software failures, the Group
has adopted a set of reporting and handling procedures, which are implemented by
relevant personnel and a Customer Care Unit.

Intellectual Property

The Group is committed to protecting intellectual property of the Group and our
partners from infringement and to complying with non-disclosure agreement and
licensing system. Employees are reminded that the Group has exclusive ownership
of the intellectual property and that all material produced or edited by them in the
course of their work is the property of the Group, as set out in the Group’s Business
and Ethical Code of Conduct.
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Innovation

The Group has strived to drive developments for its DevSecOps, integrated IT services,
by integrating our unique advantages — application development (Dev), cybersecurity
(Sec), and omni-channel management services (Ops) into “Unified Technology
Services”, to meet market needs.

Following the successful introduction of DevSecOps into the enterprise customer
scenario, the Group made substantial breakthroughs. The managed security services
have been upgraded to the next level, from the previous delivery in Hong Kong,
extending to the Asia Pacific region and even as far as European and American cities
for the first time. Among them, the delivery advantages comprise of integrating the
Group's two major managed services platforms, Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+)
and Unified Operation Center (UOC) platform, as the central automated management.

The Group also launched “ASL Marketplace”, an integrated cloud-native online
platform. Leveraging its own “Unified Technology Services”, the Group rolled out the
platform to the market in an as-a-Service business model. The newly-added service
bundle covers DevSecOps, so as to satisfy customers’ digital transformation needs in
efficiency and automation under the new normal, thus bringing new experience to
customers.

Moreover, the Group has successfully introduced new technologies, which drawn
market attention, such as the Internet of Things and automation to improve service
quality.

Supply Chain

A good supply chain management enables the Group to provide high quality products
and services to our customers. Under the Vendor Management Policy, the Group has
established a vendor selection mechanism to assess, including but not limited to, the
background and specialty of the vendor and years of experience, recommendation
from the customer or head office, assessment by a recognised authority to a
National or International Standard e.g. ISO 9001, product certifications obtained and
information on potential business engagement. The policy also includes other controls
over vendors, including monitoring, suspension and blacklisting where necessary.
The certification of our vendors in various management systems demonstrates our
commitment to high standards in the vendor selection.

Rk - HERERME
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Number of vendors with certifications EEAENHERHE

ISO 9001 — Quality management systems ISO 9001 - B EIERHFE 23
ISO 27001 — Information security management systems ISO 27001 - B L E BB Z4LT 16
ISO 20000-1:2018 — IT service management systems ISO 20000-1:2018 - EFRHEARBEE R

ISO 45001:2018 — Occupational health and safety management systems ISO 45001:2018 - B @ REL 2 EIR RN 1
ISO 14001:2015 - Environmental management systems ISO 14001:2015 - IRIREILZ A 1

In our supply chain management, the Group closely monitors risks that may involve
cost control and procurement schedules, and takes appropriate countermeasures. For
example, as a result of the ongoing global shortage of semiconductor components
due to the tech war between the US and China, we have informed affected customers
of the current supply constraints and the actual lead time required. At the same time,
we have maintained contact with vendors to obtain the latest information and work
together to resolve difficulties.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 R EHR AR
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Additionally, given the increasing global focus on sustainable development, the
Group recognises the importance of managing environmental and social risks in our
supply chain. We have incorporated ESG factors, such as the implementation of ESG
policy and ISO 14001 management system, into our annual top 15 product vendor
evaluation to promote better ESG performance in our supply chain. Going forward,
the Group will continue to monitor our supply chain against environmental and social
standards and expand the scope of our ESG evaluation in due course.

Social Capital

Against the background of global interconnectedness and integration brought about
by the information age, the Group recognises that any individual or group in the
world, no matter how large or small, has an impact on others. It is only through
solidarity and greater understanding that solutions to the multiple problems facing
society can be found. Therefore, building trust and fostering long-term relationships
are essential for sustainable development.

Customer Engagement

The Group understand the importance of listening to our customers, and their
opinions can help us to continuously improve our services. We have long a policy with
a set of procedures to handle customers’ feedbacks or complaints in a professional
manner.

Customers can file complaints in writing or verbally. Upon receipt of a complaint or
feedback, the acknowledgement of complaint case shall be given on receipt of the
complaint by a member of the Customer Care Unit and subsequently our Customer
Care Unit must arrange for it to be dealt with by a dedicated person and give the
customer a response in due course. If necessary, it will also escalate the feedback
or complaint to the appropriate level of management. During the Reporting Year,
there were no substantiated complaints received relating to the provision and use of
products and services.

Customer surveys in forms of paper or electronics is available for customers to express
opinions on regular basis. The Group treasures every survey and open to listen
customers’ voices. With data collection by relevant parties, the measurement result of
customer satisfaction will be reported to senior management.

Privacy Protection

The Group places importance on customer privacy and all data must be collected,
held, used and processed in a lawful and discreet manner. In accordance with the
IT Security Policy, our employees are required to observe and comply with the non-
disclosure agreement entered into with the Group and the agreements entered into
from time to time between the Group and our customers.

Besides, the Group may collect personal information of different parties through the
enquiry box on the Company’s website, and information of candidates or employees
through recruitment or employment. The Privacy Policy Statement and related Personal
Information Collection Statement are set out and uploaded to the Company’s website
so that interested parties are notified in a timely manner before providing their
personal information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Community Investment

The Group takes its commitment to social responsibility and is concerned with helping
the disadvantaged in the communities in which it operates. Our core subsidiary,
ASLHK, has been awarded the Caring Company Award by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service for eleven consecutive years.

For more activities, please refer to “Customer Service Excellence with Corporate
Responsibility” on page 3 of the annual report.

Human Capital

A skilled and stable workforce is the engine of value creation for our stakeholders.
The Group therefore makes significant efforts to attract and retain talent, including
investment in capacity building, fair remuneration and management, and a safe and
healthy working environment.

Development and Training

The Group believes that the development of a corporate is inseparable from the
continuous development of its employees. With this in mind, the Group offers regular
training, development programmes and training sponsorship to our employees.

Orientation training
W E

R - g RERERS

REBAGHERITHEEE  LAOEBHEBMEM
EHSSB R - ARBZROMBARETEEB RS
BEET - SFREGSEELSREHSREENE RN

|EE pE =+
‘féz Rt ©

BEZAEHNER - F2HFREIAIETEEEML
hBEBEEP R -

ABER
PREBENE IO RAKE 2 ) EEIEEE
MHEEAZE - Bt - AREHE ARSI REREAT - £

RRERENETL - RFHFHRER  URRE2MRE
TR ©

B R axa

AEERE  bEZERALESZHEFRETA
oo Bt - AEBERREERHTEHIE - BRFAEK
EHIER -

Orientation is provided to new employees covering the corporate culture, corporate systems
and policies to give them a basic understanding of the different positions.

R ABE B RIVRE D E XL - DEFIERBEREDHEY - NS EETRBCAR

EARTH -

Internal on-the job training

P ERFE B3

business development needs.

Regular training programmes are designed for our employees to support current and future

EEIE B AARER 2 RERET - U BRI ARROEEERFF -

To raise the professionalism of IT staff, the Group promotes an e-learning platform where
they can learn hard and soft skills, and are required to take tests related to the learning
content. For the development of non-IT staff, we encourage department heads to maintain
close communication with them to assess their training needs in order to better assist their
professional development and competence.

RIRFTEMBMEE THERKTY - AREHEBEHETE  BABRETARFA L

BERERE - TF

2MESEANTHE N - ERFEAREINER - A5H

BEBHETEREESRFIBNER  FHEEEINIFTR - LE—THBRAEE c HEH

RMEEN °

Additionally, workshops are offered to management and supervisory staff with the aim of

enhancing their management skills and career development.

SN -

External training
SRR
the Group.

FEENTAEREREBARREHNE  SERSHEERIRBMERE -

The Group encourages employees to participate in training provided by external organisations
based on their needs. Sponsorship is available to employees who meet certain conditions set by

AEEFEESRIEFZ2MINBEBRRHEAE - FEREERENETHEZEES

AIESER -

Staff training for the entire Group amounted to 2,520 hours during the Reporting
Year. Going forward, the Group will establish a more systematic training management
system, further standardise staff training programmes and formulate relevant
management policies.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 R EHR AR
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Rk - HERERME

Employment System

As of 31st December 2021, the Group had 1,021 employees in the reporting scope. éﬁi_%_*EJr_ﬁ =+—H  AEERRELDE
ERE

ERFHE

The following table sets out the number of our employees by employment category. HE1021BEE - TREINAEEIZEEFRE
) Z EBHE -
Senior Manager AR AR 2
Middle Manager g 9
Manager s 178
Supervisor *E 53
IT professional BB EEAL 649
Others Efth 130
Total Hat 1,021

The Group believes that we maintain good working relationships with our employees —~ ZA&EEIEE - AEEEE S EFRITFHTEREKR - &
and we have not experienced any major labour disputes or difficulties in recruiting ~ SEIELBRAMNEALEUHINBEE T HEHE
staff. This is thanks to the Group’s employment system which respects and safequards @R o WHEEARAEEEERREEEL TR 2

the labour rights of our employees.

ERHIE

We have internal policies such as a series of Employment Policies that strives to ~ AEEIEHlE — RINMERERFAIMBER - BUE
improve the employment relationship and promotion mechanism, and protect the — {EEREE R EFA#E] - RIREE(E B ROMEF KR o A
rights and interests of our employees. The Group’s employment-related management = E SREEEENEREGIFF M T ©

practices are detailed below.

Recruitment

HES

Remuneration

A

Promotion

Bt

Termination of employment

SR

58  Annual Report 2021 % %R

All acts of recruitment are subject to employment-related legislation. Contracts are signed to
protect the rights of both the employers and employees.

PrERETALZRERBEIAOR - RN RFRERI RREET Z#ER -

Different remuneration policies formulated and reviewed by the Human Resources (“HR")
Department are adopted for different categories of employees. In general, employees’ salaries
include a percentage of performance incentives, the amount of which will be adjusted based
on the Group's performance and the results of the employees’ appraisals.
[FIA 5818 & 2R A 1 E BB ﬁ%ﬁft&%ﬁm}\ﬂ%“ﬁ(f/\#ﬁﬁb%B%Hi&%ﬁﬁ o —fR
M= - EEFMEIEE TR RE  H2EBRARENRE RESERERETH

B o
i

The Group follows the principles of consistency, objectivity, fairness and impartiality to conduct
regular performance appraisals for employees as a reference for their promotion. Employees will
be promoted based on merit, with due consideration given to their ability, past performance
and potential to take on new job roles. Department Manager shall submit detailed justifications
to support the employee’s promotion

AEEERE-3 B8 ATLAENRE THHESETREZZ (ERETHNZE -
EEH%ETJ““%FT?% Wy EEHGES  BERRREEFTIEACNED - HPILERE

A MBRBRARFREENET

Generally, either the Company or employees should terminate the employment by giving the
other party a notice period according to the agreement set out in the employment contract and
completing the handover procedures by the last working day.

—RiME  ARAIEEERREBRBENVAHELHE  ERE TR @A WHHE—
ETERRTTER R EFE - AR IEERERR -
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Working hours and rest period The Group is committed to managing employees’ working hours, rest periods and leave in

TR B accordance with our contracts and internal policies. In the event of overtime work, we will
grant employees compensatory time off or overtime allowances.
AEEFHPBREEANORABHRERES 2 THERRE - AERERRD - (EEFBR
THE - AEEEE T B T E M RERSGBR THERL -

Employees are entitled to paid time off such as annual leave, bereavement leave, marriage
leave, examination leave, jury service leave, maternity and paternity leave. Completion of the
leave approval process is necessary for the approval and payment of paid leave to employees.
BREZESHARER  WFER - BE - BR - Z5R BEER EBRMEER - THKRSE
BURE 7 R HLE R B TEFHINR 2 B ERS

Other benefits and welfare The statutory benefits for employees, including the Mandatory Provident Fund, are paid in
HAbH 2 K AEd| accordance with local policy requirements and the Group " s relevant systems. We also offer job-

related allowances, insurance schemes and share option scheme as company benefits.
EEZEERM(BIERHMEATES) NRBEARMBUERRE R A EE 2 HEAGIE T - REE
TR TVEARRE < i BE - (RIRRTEI MR ERT BIE R A RIEH o

Equal opportunity, diversity and anti- The Group recognises individual differences as a driver for sustainable development and
discrimination emphasises equal opportunities in recruitment or promotion, without discrimination against
TEEE - Lt RRER individuals on the basis of age, gender, race, family status, sexual orientation, disability,

nationality or region.
REEREBERERFERR CHPRAER - WHALABEIEARETSRE  T2RF
B MR B REMR - A SRR - B EAE IR o

Child labour and forced labour The Group prohibits child labour and forced labour. During the recruitment process, each
ERMWSE S EES candidate’ s personal details are confirmed.

REERIE T REESE - RIBEBIET - SRENEZEAERHGERR -

All employees who are required to work overtime or on holiday must be approved in advance
by their supervisors and compensated accordingly.

FrEREER THERKRNES - WASKEFSIEIE  WESHEME -

Communication There is an open dialogue maintained between the Group and our employees to promote
&R transparent two-way communication. If there are any comments or suggestions on
management and administration, employees can provide feedback to their supervisors or
relevant departments.
REEEES 2 MRBAFERE  UREFHNENER - WESHEBLKTRAEEMNER
SR - AlmEE SRR R ER

In future, the Group will improve its employment-related policies, including more ~ PAARIR » K B A5 20 &= E (B B AH AR - 47 S
specific guidelines on equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination, to better & ~ Z 7Tt KRIFR 5 HIE IR TEIE S| - LAE oF b 4
maintain a diverse and equal working environment. F—EZ Tt B FEMITERE -
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Health and Safety

Work related injuries and occupational health issues are not significant risk factors
due to the nature of our business. Nevertheless, the Group places importance on
providing a safe, healthy and high-quality workplace and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

With the view to ensuring the safety of our employees, the Group has defined the
safety responsibilities of the Administration Department to identify dangerous risks
and factors in the workplace and to take effective preventive and control measures,
including occasional monitoring and review of safety and security management and
regular inspections of the entire office to ensure that furniture, fixtures and equipment
are well maintained and replaced when necessary to avoid unnecessary physical injury.
In addition, first aid kits are available at an easily-accessible location on every floor of
the entire office.

On top of this, the Group wants to evolve from the traditional focus on the physical
safety risks towards a concept of a healthy and pleasant working environment in
our occupational health and safety programme. We prohibit smoking throughout
the office, including enclosed offices, meeting rooms and other open areas, while
maintaining proper lighting and ventilation to safeguard the health of our employees.
In addition, we promote health awareness and habits among our employees through
internal training and newsletters. The Group has also organised events to improve
work-life balance and strengthen employee relations.

Natural Capital

The community has called on business to engage in the implementation and
achievement of the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), specifically
Goal 13: Climate Change, to promote greater global ambition in mitigation and
adaptation actions. In the face of Hong Kong's 2050 carbon neutrality target, the
Group is also stepping up efforts to address the challenge of climate change, using
resources responsibly and wisely, and managing our impacts vigilantly, in the hope to
run our business sustainably.

Management of Emissions and Use of Resources

The Group is committed to complying with all applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Air Pollution Control Ordinance and the
Water Pollution Control Ordinance, and to going beyond minimum requirements to
manage and reduce environmental impacts of our day-to-day operations, fostering an
environmental responsible operating culture at each of our sites. To this end, we have
established specific management guidelines and measures based on our Environmental
Policy.
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Emissions of Greenhouse Gases and Air Pollutants

We generate greenhouse gas emissions mainly from purchased electricity and fuel
consumed by company vehicles. During the Reporting Year, we engaged a consultant
to assess the Group's greenhouse gas emissions, including carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide.

Rk - HERERME

BERERERTRUER
AEBEZREREBHRIZRNBEE ) LKA REH

HFEME c RIREFERN  AEEZREBMFTEAE
ErRERBEENE (BE A/ - BREkatE
&) e

Emissions

(Tonnes of CO? Equivalent)
e (M_gStnEE)

Scope

wE

Scope 1 Direct Emission E 1 B
Scope 2 Indirect Emission #5[E 2 BN
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions RERBELNE

RERBH AR
(W—atixEE /ER)

Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity
(tonnes of CO? equivalent/employee)

2.46
921.84
924.30

1.4220

Since vehicle use also generates air pollutants, the Group has also quantified the
relevant emissions to monitor our impact on the environment.

HREREAMEELEZRITRY  FEETESE(
HEASNENGEAREERE PR -

Type Emissions (Kilograms)
EE HHE(AF)
Nitrogen Oxides RED 1.12
Sulphur Oxides may 0.01
Respiratory Suspended Particles IR SRR F 0.08

As the COVID-19 pandemic continues in 2021, the Group has further adopted a work-
from-home approach and video conferencing system to replace its previous physical
meetings. In addition, half of the company vehicles are electric. These measures have
further reduced our emissions.

Waste

For the disposal of hazardous waste generated in Hong Kong, the Company has
registered as a Chemical Waste Producer under the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste)
(General) Regulation and sends the waste to specialists for recycling. In addition,
under the principle of waste reduction at source, the Group has promoted various
waste management measures and ensures that relevant employees are aware of the
disposal requirements for hazardous and non-hazardous waste. During the Reporting
Year, we have taken the following measures to minimise the waste generated from
office operations.

e Applied the “3R" principle of “reduce”, “reuse” and

wastes;

“recycle” to manage

e Redeployed usable and suitable office furniture within the Group to reduce the
amount of material going to landfill;

e Sent used batteries to specialists for recycling; and

e Reused or recycled computer parts through the selection of a team of engineers,
and sent parts and materials that the Group cannot reuse to specialist for further
recycling.

BEZ COVID-197& 1B 2021 F#545 -
BERITEN AR REGEERS  URRBTNE
ok N AR —FMEWMABHE - LFH
M — RO AREE 2 R E -

REEE— R

BEZY

BEREENEBEENEEREENTE - ARRER

BCEMERE (L2ED) (—R) REDEL AEE2EY

EEE  UHEMEEZPIREEIU - tih - BREBR

SEREEIRA  ANEEMITRIBEEYE LA - WE

RIEBEE THEEEEYMREEENMZREHRT
RREFER » NEBEDIREUA T EHEIASE SR i
NELBAEENEEY -

o ERTMEE] =M M@ &[3R]REIE
IEREZEY)

o ENEREAEEANTAMEAOHRA
REZ ML

RIBLAUR D

o EEARTERALFERU: K

o EMSEWAETIZMERBUE BB - KE
EEEEANSERMHRTERALEE—S
ER

T Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 X4 @AER AT 61



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRE

The Group analyses the use of resources and the generation of waste on a regular
annual basis. During the Reporting Year, the Group’s office operations generated 1.67
tonnes of hazardous waste, consisting mainly of used batteries and fluorescent light
bulbs, which were collected and disposed of by qualified contractors. As for non-
hazardous waste, it mainly consisted of paper and used computer parts, with a total
weight of 67.43 tonnes, slightly higher than in the previous year.

Energy and Water

A range of internal control policies and procedures have been adopted to improve the
efficiency of our resource consumption, including energy. For example, we promote
green office practices such as using high-performance and high-quality all-in-one
“multifunction printers” that combine the functions of printer, scanner and copier
in one device to minimise the power consumption of a large number of devices; and
using energy-efficient lights in all office areas. Environmental Policy is available on the
Company’s intranet which is accessible to all employees.

During the Reporting Year, total electricity consumption of our offices in Hong Kong
was approximately 2,310 MWh. Compared to last year, total energy consumption
increased due to increase in manpower and electrical appliances. In terms of water
consumption, the Hong Kong office operations consumed a total of approximately
546 m? of water, which represents a 20.9% decrease compared to 2020.

Moving forward, we will further strengthen education on resource conservation and
emissions reduction and will continue to monitor resource consumption and make
improvements to the policy, such as conserving water management, based on the
principle of “materiality”. At the same time, we will use the data from the Reporting
Year as a basis for setting improvement measures and energy conservation and
emission reduction targets.

Management of Environmental Risks

We regularly assess the environmental risks of our business and, where necessary,
take preventive measures to mitigate them and ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. Among the ten most significant global risks identified by the
World Economic Forum in 2021, five are environmental risks, namely, climate action
failure, biodiversity loss, human environmental damage, extreme weather and natural
resource crises. Among these risks, climate-related risks are considered to be the most
likely to occur and have a significant impact. To minimise the impact of these risks on
our business activities, we are discussing our overall approach and efforts to address
climate change on all fronts, including the development of a policy on climate risk
identification and assessment.
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PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Environmental

Key environmental performance indicators

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

BRREENESR
Unit 2021 2020
By —B-—F —E-TF
Air Pollutant emissions?
ZERSRY B E?
Nitrogen oxides kg 1.12 Not disclosed
AAtm N RERE
Sulphur oxides kg 0.01
ie=Rla7)] NI
Respiratory suspended particles kg 0.08
IR EBFRLF NI
GHG Emissions?
AERBHERE?
Scope 1 Direct emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 2.46 Not disclosed
SE EEYEN Mg S AERE
Scope 2 Energy indirect emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 921.84 Not disclosed
&2 2 e R HE ME—SbiREE REHE
Total GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 924.30 1,034.32
BERBEHENE M—etiRg S
GHG intensity (by area) tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/sgm 0.1156 0.1298
REREEE (REE) WE— S i 8, Tk
GHG intensity (by employee) tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/ 1.4220 1.7239
RERETE(ZEE) employee
M_AtirEE B8
Hazardous waste
BEEEY
Total hazardous waste tonnes 1.67 2.9
BEREEDRES 148
Hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonnes/sgm 0.00021 Not disclosed
BEEEZEDEE (RAE) g,k AERE
Hazardous waste intensity (by employee) tonnes/employee 0.00257 Not disclosed
BEEERNEE (REE) m 1R & AERE
Non-hazardous waste
EERREY
Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 67.43 63
BEBERYEE g
Non-hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonnes/sgm 0.00843 Not disclosed
BEEZYEE (RAE) g, R AERE
Non-hazardous waste intensity (by employee) tonnes/employee 0.10374 Not disclosed
BEREEDEE (KRES) L= REHEE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z 5B ER A A
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Key environmental performance indicators

BEREENIER
Unit 2021 2020
B —E-—fF —BECEF

Energy Consumption

HETRHAE

Petrol MWh 9 Not disclosed
pavii JKELEF KRBT
Electricity MWh 2,310 2,024
ES JEFLES

Total energy consumption MWh 2,319 2,024
BEIREFEEE JK LB

Energy intensity (by area) MWh/sgm 0.2900 0.2540
BERHERERE (REE) JERIE, T TT K

Energy intensity (by employee) MWh/employee 3.5677 3.3736
BERERERE (RES) JEH,(BE

Water Consumption

FEK

Total water consumption m3 546 690
BFEKE RPN

Water intensity (by area) m3/sgm 0.0683 0.0866
FREE (JRHEE) SRR

Water intensity (by employee) m3/employee 0.8397 Not Disclosed
FREE (REES) MK EE RERE
Notes: Ff5E

FREF2EHIA [ NMAGRERE e REaRE
- Mi8%2 - IRFEIRARURIRERIES] ]

2. Emission factor is referenced to HKEx “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: 2.
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs".

3. Scope 1 includes emissions from the consumption of fossil fuels by vehicles; Scope 2 includes 3. #E 1 BREEFBEFACAMBELOTHNRE © EE2E
emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity in offices. Emission factor is BRAEERBESHELENHENRZ - A TEES
referenced to HKEx “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on BRI INAGRERE e REAME - iE2 : R
Environmental KPIs” and CLP 2021 Sustainability Report. FRRBE RIS RIERIES| | R E2021 AIHEE RS -
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Social He

Key social performance indicators

BREL S EREE
Total employees*
EERAH
Male 772
By gender ESlia
=R Female 249
g
Below 35 445
35U
By age group 35-45 312
RERRAER 355 E 4558
Above 45 264
45 3R A
Full-time 1,006
By employment type £
RIEIEIRE Part-time 15
Total 1,021
st
Total other workers®
Hit S THRAHS
Male 214
By gender St
b desll Female 45
pegia
Below 35 132
35T
By age group 35-45 62
REHRAER 3552 45 5%
Above 45 65
A5pRPA L
Full-time 247
By employment type s
RIERIEA Part-time 12
FRB
Total 259
#Et

______ Automated Systems Holdings Limited B #1245 EER AT 65
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Rk - g RERERE

Key social performance indicators

BELFERIER
Turnover Rate
K=
Male 63%
By gender Elis
ZIER| Female 54%
7t
Below 35 83%
355A T
By age group 35-45 49%
RERAR 355X E 45 5%
Above 45 39%
4557 E
Total 61%
Bt
Health and safety®
REEEZ 26
Work-related injuries (employees) 4
ITEEz(EES)
Lost days due to work-related injuries (employees) 13.5
RITBMEE(EE)EEATIEAH
Percentage of employees trained
ZIEER D
Male 15%
By gender EElis
=R Female 9%
7t
Senior Manager 50%
mARAER
Middle Manager 100%
g
Manager 22%
By employee category e
ZEEER Supervisor 4%
B
IT professional 12%
AR EEAL
Others 8%
Hit
Total 14%
st
Notes: Wiz
4. All employees were in Hong Kong. 4. FIAEEBHUREE -
5. All other workers, i.e. secondment staff, worked in Hong Kong. 5. FAHEMET (MERBEETET)HONREETIE-
6.  There were no work-related fatalities in the past three years (including the Reporting Year). 6. NBE=F(BEREFRE)A  LERTEREERD

LAz -
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Key social performance indicators

BERLSENER
Average training hours
P15 32 5l B 21
Male 2.84
By gender HiE
=R Female 1.30
7t
Senior Manager 8.00
= AREIE
Middle Manager 19.11
IR
Manager 3.63
By employee category e
ZIEEER Supervisor 0.55
FE
IT professional 2.19
BARHREEAL
Others 1.79
Hith
Total 2.47
#3
Total suppliers
HEBAR
Australia 8
SEN
Belgium 1
il
Canada 2
meEx
Mainland China 1M
FREIA
Denmark 2
FHEE
By region Germany 1
RiblE fEE
Hong Kong 558
BB
India 1
HE
Ireland 4
EHRH
Macau 2
BT
Philippines 1
Ee

______ Automated Systems Holdings Limited B ¥ Z&EEBR AT 67
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RIE - ERER

Total suppliers

frEm A B
Romania 1
EEED:
Singapore 15
ESmIE
Taiwan 1
Thailand 2
=
United Kingdom 5
HE
By region USA 22
HIE =&
Finland 1
Y]
Cambodia 1
RIHE
Maylaysia 1
2R F TR
Netherlands 1
Gl
Russia 1
Service 290
By type PR
bize bt Hardware 352
ey
Total 642
Bt
Annual Report 2021 &% e




HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiR -8R

BREE

I=py=

Aspects Description
Em i pus
A1 Emissions
NE:9:¢7)]
General Disclosure | Information on: 60-61
—RIEE BRBERMBEREBYN - AKRIHAHS  BEREEEEYH
EEE
(a) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BIHBETABERYEOEMEELRPINEHR -
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 61, 63
PERCARAR S AR BB AR
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas 61,63
emissions and intensity.
HiE (8E) REREE (BE2) REREHERERTE °
A13 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 62-63
MELEEREENRENEE -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 62-63
FELEZEEYHEENEE -
A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 49, 61-62
PR SZEVHEE B IR MR E S B A B IRPTEREREY P58
Al1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 49, 61-62
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
RERIREERESEENOE - AR SLERE B R R RE
E B BRI B
A2 Use of Resources
A2 BiRfEA
General Disclosure | Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and 62
—MRHEE other raw materials.
BRERER (BIERR « K REMEME) AR -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by time in total and intensity. 62, 64
RSN EER REEEREEERTE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 62, 64
BREKEREE -
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to 49, 62
achieve them.
R PTRTSLEV AR IRME Rk EE B 1R M R E R G B B AR PR EREREY 258 -
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for | There were no issues in 49, 62
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. | sourcing water fit for
SR EUE KR BRI B AR - ARPRRI L Ak B IR R A purpose.
ERBREREREA TR o EEBGERKRA E
A T RE o
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RIE - HERERRE

Aspects Description Remark Page
EmE it i E BR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and per unit| The use of packaging
produced. materials is irrelevant
BNRFTABEMBNEERGEESBL(LE - to the Group”s
operating businesses.
BEMEH) R B
SEREERGER -
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 BERRRER
General Disclosure | Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the 60
— R FEE environment and natural resources.
RIRBEITAHRERRAREREKERTENBE -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 61-62
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
B EBFDEHRRERARE RN EAZERDRKNEREFAZEN
178 -
A4 Climate Change
A4 RiREE
General Disclosure | Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related 62
— R EE issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BRI REHE AR ARG HETAEEYENERRGEFEFENR
5% o
A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 62
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
BB ERAIEEHETAEELENERRGHEBER - RIELHT
& o
B1 Employment
B1 Ef&
General Disclosure | Information on: 51-52, 58-59
— I E ARG EE - BEREH  TERE  RE - TERE - 2
b~ RIEAR A R B A 15738 B AR A EY
(@) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
BTHETAGEATENEBEENLRDINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 58, 65
geographical region.
IR - EIERE - FERAR Rt E S D HES B2 -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 65

ZIER - FRAR MR E D HEBRMALLE -
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RIE - HERERRE

Aspects Description
EmE it
B2 Health and Safety
B2 @RHEZE
General Disclosure | Information on: 51-52, 60
—R P EE ERRHZE2TIEREMREREE CMENLEFN
(@) the policies; and

B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.
BTEHETABEATENR@ERRANKNER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past 66

three years including the reporting year.

BE=F (BREERFE) BFETTHAAZRLLE

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 66
EIGHEARTIERL -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and 60

how they are implemented and monitored.

R ER AN B R R R e 2 - ARMBRARITRER X -

B3 Development and Training

B3 R R
General Disclosure | Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 57
—ARIEEE duties at work. Description of training activities.
BERAREEITIIEREMNNZH R EEEMBER - fltFIES o
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 66
category.
IR R EEFRIBONZIEET DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 67

employee category.
RURREEFEFIESD - BREETKZIIN TR -
B4 Labour Standards

B4 55 T X8|
General Disclosure | Information on: 51-52, 58
—RHRE BRAMIEE Tekoa bl TH)
(@) the policies; and
B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
BRHEITAGEAZENREER RO ER -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 59

and forced Iabour

MARET RIS DRI e AR 2 B T g HI 25 T o

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. The Group did not
FEETE RIS N HR A ISR R 5 o encounter such

practices during the
Reporting Period.
REE R HRE AL
RHBRULERIER

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8R G EERAF 71



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

Aspects
i=J]

B5 fitEdEEE

Description
it

B5 Supply Chain Management

Remark

B

Page
BR

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain.
ERHEEENIRE R ERRECE

55

B5.1

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

i E B DR RR -

67-68

B5.2

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B AEARERNEN  mERTEREMNNHRE®RSEE - UKk
HERITRERITEA -

55

B5.3

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
G B SIH EE S AR R E M G R AED] - ARAERIH
TRERFE -

55-56

B5.4

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A BRE BB R (8 2 AIRRE m RRTSEVIE DI - LARIBRHIT
REERFE o

56

B6 Product Respons
B6 EMEE

ibility

General Disclosure

—RFEE

Information on:

FRFMRUERMRBNERERS  BE  RHELLEEEARME

R ER

(a) the policies; and
W& R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

BWTH BT ABERZENEBERRRIINEH -

51-54, 56

B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety

and health reasons.
BENCEXEMBRT AL EERERMALKMNE DL

The issue is irrelevant
to the Group”s
operating businesses.
UL RE AR E R
EETEER -

B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received and how

they are dealt with.
BERANEm L RISEIFE B AR EE A o

56

B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
Tt BA 4 R K ARBE AR E A 1B R -

54

B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
RS ST AR REMDKERF o

The Group was not
involved in any recall
procedures.

IR SR BN S [ A (A
EmEYAERF ©
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RIE - HERERRE

Aspects Description

EmE it
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how 54, 56
they are implemented and monitored.

BAUHBEEERRERALRBBER - LRABRRTRERTTE -

B7 Anti-corruption

B7 RES
General Disclosure | Information on: 51-52
— R ER BREADIEFERR - B3R - BGEFROERER
(@) the policies; and
B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.
BTHETAGERTENHEMERRPINER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought 52
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RERHAE HTAREEERETEEENESHARTHNEE K&
AFAAESR o

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 52
and how they are implemented and monitored.
e A R WIRT - AR T RER X
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 52
R mEE N8 TIRENRESE -

B8 Community Investment

B8 L EIRE
General Disclosure | Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 49, 57
—MR P EE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities” interests.
BRANEZERTREEMEMETEMERLEB TG E Bt
& A ZR BV BOR
BS.1 Focus areas of contribution. 57
HFERAEES o
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 57

EEIHBAPAER -
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EEEWMSE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate management
services. The principal activities of its major subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 48 and 23, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 93 to 94 and 95 of the annual report respectively.

The board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 3.0 HK cent per share
held by the shareholders of the company whose names appear on the register of
members on Friday, 10th June 2022 for the year ended 31st December 2021 (2020:
3.0 HK cent per).

2022 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Monday, 30th
May 2022. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 25th May 2022 to Monday, 30th May 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24th May 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2021 and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business as required by schedule 5 of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Chief
Executive Officer’s Statement” and Note 49 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 8to 11, 12 to 21 and 209 of the annual report, respectively. For the financial
key performance indicators for an understanding of the development, performance or
position of the Group’s business, it can also be found under the same sections and the
financial summary on page 7 of the annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 47 to 73 respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

To achieve the Company’s vision of becoming the most competitive entity in
Asia information technology (“IT"”) sector, strengthening business practices in
environmental protection and corporate social responsibilities are always an integral
part of the Group’s corporate business strategy.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31st December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 98 to 99 of
the annual report.

As at 31st December 2021, the Group’s special reserve and retained earnings totalled
approximately HK$1,233,393,000 (2020: HK$1,454,780,000).

The Company’s reserves are available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31st
December 2021 included special reserve and retained earnings totaling approximately
HK$96,806,000 (2020: HK$100,494,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2021, addition to property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$2 1,488,000 (2020: HK$16,196,000).

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December 2021 in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of the Group's purchases and sales attributable to major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 32.1% and 14.4% of the
Group's revenue from continuing operations respectively. The five largest suppliers and
single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 13.2% and 13.3%
of the Group’s purchases from continuing operations respectively.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2021 did a Director, an associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in
any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year ended 31st December 2021 in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31st December 2021 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Wang Weihang
Wang Yueou

Non-Executive Director
Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong

Deng Jianxin

Or Siu Ching, Rerina

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company, Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Cui Yong
and Mr. Deng Jianxin will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, be eligible, offer themselves for election.

As at the date of this report, each of the Directors has entered into either a service
contract or a letter of appointment with the Company. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

Mr. Cui Yong ceased to be the director, the executive vice president, and the general
manager of the system information product (plate) and service (plate) division in
Teamsun and has been appointed as the general manager of the major customer
business division in Teamsun since February 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Related Party Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company or his or her connected entity had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended
31st December 2021 or at any time during the year ended 31st December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st December
2021, the following Directors were considered to have interests in the businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out below:

Name of the entities which were
considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses

Description of businesses of the
entities which were considered to
compete or likely to compete with

of the Group the businesses of the Group Nature of Director’s
Name of Director ERAEEEEERERS WRRETEEEREAR T interest in the entities
ESps TRBRHRT 2 ERER BHATER 2 EBHT ESRZSER EENE
Wang Weihang Teamsun IT product service, application Chairman, director and
software development, value-added substantial shareholder
distribution and system integration
T4 EBRK BARRERRS - ERRABLRE EER EERFERR
HEAERERES
Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited Window company of Teamsun in Sole director
(“Hong Kong Teamsun”™) Hong Kong and mainly provides
administrative support to the clients of
Teamsun in the PRC and Hong Kong
EBREARR (BE)BRATA EBRREEBRELA  FEMEBRK 2
(TEBEBRH ) ZEPRPEREBRETHE
Certain subsidiaries of Teamsun IT related Director
EBRRETHEAR TEHERRE %
Wang Yueou Teamsun IT product service, application Director
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration
TER EBRK BARERRS - EREABRE EEd
REAHERFHEA
Cui Yong Teamsun IT product service, application Director, executive vice president and
software development, value-added general manager of the system
distribution and system integration information product (plate) division
ER EBRK BARIRE RS - ERREABRE EE  BTRBRLASESER
BENHKZGER (rip) @isre
Pan Xinrong Shanghai Boke Information software engineering automation research Independent Director
Technology Co., LTD management and new generation of IT service
BN HEERERRNERAR ERGNIREB AR —RESRMRE BuES
Deng Jianxin Shanghai 4Smart Technology Co., Ltd. Cloud computation and cloud services Chairman
=2l HERERERRARAR EHERERE xR

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid companies,
and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group is capable of
carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of

the aforesaid companies.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2021, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

EERBETHRAEZROREE
R 1AD 2 HE

REIBZ—F+ZA=+—H BEFRARAKST
BA BRARD R R AR EE CER R ES R

f%ﬂ@ S5 MG GG EXVED) 2 - BRI
D REEET IS @QRIEES RS RIIEXVAE
7 R8N EBMEARNT MR SRR (B
RIEE ﬁ&%fh%Z&ﬁMY&F“&ﬁ%%ﬁz
% SEAE) EEM%&%EMW%BQMK
/,ﬁﬁﬁzyéuaﬁﬁﬁuaﬁ'Z%‘ KR OB
%im%ﬁA§$ﬁﬂﬁﬁx%mﬁ #WUﬁE#
I D AMEARB Rz EamIAR ([EE L&
BITHA B Z Bty RARBR D 2 ez ) anF

Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (“Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows:

(a) Shares (B)  BH
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
RRER 3 A FhER PGl Aty & RESRASL
Teamsun, the ultimate holding Wang Weihang 77,069,358 - - - 77,069,358 7.01%
company of the Company T
EBRK - RRFZ
REERAF
Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. Wang Weihang 18,584 - - - 18,584 0.03%
("GDH") T -
Wang Yueou 18,584 - - - 18,584 0.03%
188
(b) Underlying shares () HER®G
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
RAER 3 A FhER PG Aty ax  RESOEIH
The Company Wang Yueou 4,620,000 - - - 4,620,000 0.55%
YN TER
Cui Yong 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.16%
EB
GDH Wang Yueou 42,397°# - - - 42,397 0.06%
88
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:
1. Common stock of GDH granted under the restricted stock units of GDH.

2. Share options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company under a share option scheme
adopted on 13th March 2017, further details of which are set out in section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below.

3. Share options to subscribe for shares of common stock of GDH under the equity incentive
plan of GDH effective on 4th March 2020.

4. In 2021, Mr. Wang Yueou exercised his options to acquire 148,206 shares of GDH in total
and such shares were fully sold on the market.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2021, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares.

# For identification purpose only

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”) on 8th August 2002. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on
7th August 2012. As a result, the Company can no longer grant any further
share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. However, all share options
granted prior to 7th August 2012 will remain in full force and effect. A summary
of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose of 2002 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards
to any employee and/or Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z 5B ER A A

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

EERBETHRAEZRMDREE
AT 2 R ()

FfEE -
1. IRIEGDHER BN B A B T 2 GDHE WA -

2. EA —tF= AT =ZARB BRI IR T REAR
LHxZ%HﬂE BRZE—FHBERRT X
%%E#%H —ff e

3. REGDHR-Z T4 = AN A 4%z RSB TEIR
8 GDH im0 RO REARAE

4, FTEBAEWN-_Z-_—FETEEBREUNRBEA L
148,206 fix GDH IR IR TI5 2 EE H -

BEXPRESN  RZB-—F+-A=+—H #
BEERARARETRAEBEAEAESZRN R
TRRARR D 2 #E ek

B REST S
A. ST _FHERETE

ARBRR-ZZFZ-F)/\A/\H %%ﬁﬁﬁﬂiéﬂr%
(=T _FREREFE]) - —FF fiﬁﬁﬁﬁfé
AR -E——FN\ALAER - Bk - A2
TEBERE T _FHERETITE— *F%HjE
B - A - R=F——F\ALRAICE
M2 ABEREBDARETRAARMA - =
TE_FRRE S 2 MENT

— T FRERE S ERARA R REEMAMN
BRAIMEEE & REERLE R -
RE-—ZFZ_FREEENE ARREFARA
ARER (BREARRARAMBARNER) KT
REEAR AR HO BB R -

79



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
2002 Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. As
at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares of the Company
available to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding options under the 2002
Share Option Scheme is 185,700, representing 0.02% of total number of issued
shares of the Company as at that date.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general requirement
that an option must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the directors of the Company are empowered to impose at its discretion any
such minimum period at the time of grant of any particular option. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of
the Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board and shall not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share of
the Company. Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 39(i)
to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year:

BRETE

A.

—EE_FERENEE

IR =TT — FRERAERT 817 D R AR5
RE - AR SBRARTEEITRAO S
10% o A —F R - A E AR T 8RR
RN RS - EAERRETERARAR D BT
BIDEI 1% > RAFRBE  RE-_SS_FE
IRAESH &I AR TRRE AR 2 A 1T AR (D 1B BB
185,700 1% + (%% B HAZR A A2 81T 0 4B 2K
#10.02% °

BB MARNE I A HIE 28 RN
BEMBEREBAXNIBTERARE - — KX
ERERRER A ITRAZERA 2 RERE -
AR BEZHEBBNER L EFER B RN E
SR AR - BRERTTEZ RS
HARBEEHNBET  EREBRET R
TOFFIRITHE

TEERTHEESET  EETELRUT=
HER2BEE  (QARRRMREL BEBEER
i ARERMFZITE : D) ARBRONE
ERREE T AR R EE ¥ B TS RAEH®
BRI FHYTE R —BRARF RS
HE - S _FEREANBZHERTHREY
TERF I TE39()

ARF =BT BB BB T2 IR
Rz EBWT :

Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RTEBRERABTZRE
Adjusted At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
Date of Exercise January during during during during during December
grant Exercise Price 2021 the year the year the year the year the year 2021
Participants R Period (e RZB=-f REE REE REE REE REE R=B=-f
28 RERH L] %R -A-H R w17 RRM Wit wEE  +ZA=t-H
HKS
AT
Other Employees  19.3.2012 1932013t0 F  0.7041 185,700 - - - - - 185,700
AfblER 183.2022
252012 25201310 F 0.7281 170,228 - (170,228) - - - -
1.5.2022
Total 355,928 - (170,228) - - - 185,700
CES
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

1. All of the above share options were vested equally on each of the first, second and
third anniversaries of the date of grant.

2. No Director held any share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the
year ended 31st December 2021.

3. The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$1.28.

2017 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2017 Share Option
Scheme”) on 13th March 2017. The 2017 Share Option Scheme will expire on
12th March 2027. A summary of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Company and/or the subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares of
par value HK$0.10 each of the Company. The eligible participants include any
employee, executive or officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors of each of the
abovementioned companies).

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 13th March 2017,
the date of approval of the adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme. The
maximum number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares of the Company available for issue under the
2017 Share Option Scheme is 52,618,335, representing 10% and 6.31% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme and as at the date of this annual
report, respectively. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company may be issued upon exercise of options which available
to be granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme is 22,854,250, representing
2.74% of total number of issued shares of the Company as at that date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

B.

2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be achieved by
the eligible participant before the option can be exercised. The period during
which an option may be exercised will be determined by the Directors at its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years
after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the higher of
(a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date an offer is made; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date an offer is made; and (c) the nominal value
of a share of the Company. Details of the 2017 Share Option Scheme are set out
in Note 39(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under
the 2017 Share Option Scheme during the year:

BRERE )

—E-tFRBRETE )

BRIEAR DT PRERHEAESD - FER 1218 A B A
E7TEuaBER2EENELE(BEETER
il AR T {68 O B P ) JE T8 1T 3897 St T 37T R0
s NEBEARNRTERITRN BN
1% °

BB MARE I A HIEE 28 RN
EMNSREREBAIMIBTERARE EXg
A 2B BRI SRR TITEA AR 2
ERFABRE M SERR R SR
FITEAAERSEERERZEARRAR
ATRERE R MEARREST2EREE
E MR- E SRR B A0
FBRITE -

TEENHREFEET TS LRUT=E
FrREE @ARARNRIZEZLNZ AHE
B3P ARERATS 2 WTHTE © (o) AARRRGD
REEBRER L B A EEEBEBIHME
BRERAIZ FHRHE R —BREAARR
MHEE - T —CFERES & ZFHBENER
& B RER M R 39() ©

ARA =T —CF R BIE T 2 R F
BNz g

Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

WMIEBRERARTZIRE
Vesting Period At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
Date of and Exercise January during during during during during December
grant Period Exercise 2021 the year the year the year the year the year 2021
Participants RHE ) £ Price RoB=-% REE REE REE REE REE WoZB=-%
S8% hERS RAT6EH & -A-H Rk RITE REX Rt wn#EE  +ZA=t-H
HKS
AT
Directors
2
Wang Yueou 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 4,620,000 - - - = = 4,620,000
TER (F&E1)
Cui Yong 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 1,320,000 - - - = = 1,320,000
EB (HE1)
Other Employees ~ 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 13,660,000 - (2,679,400) (238,300) - - 10,742,300
AfblER (FzE1)
28.4.2017 (Note 1) 0.909 7,260,000 - - - - - 7,260,000
(RzE1)
13.12.2017 (Note 1) 0.867 1,281,450 - (426,600) (69,300) - - 785,550
(FzE1)
Total 28,141,450 - (3,106,000 (307,600) - - 24,727,850
o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) B.

Notes:

1. RZE—LF=A=+—H0 FX2ARE=-F
—EEBRETHRETAERZRERNBR
- AREE A $£19,140,000 R AR A AR D - F7{E
BR1.2887L - R ZBBED(FMHL - SiLE
FEOS— 2 BRENENFEFBEHRRNZRRA
BEWE FERBENARFTRPA-_T—tF=
A=+—HzRER-

1. On 31st March 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of
19,140,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.28. The share options
are divided into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share
options and is associated with performance targets within a specific financial period,
the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31st March
2017.

RZZE—tFHA=-ZFTN\H AQ6RE=F
—tFERETSRETAERLEERLBR
1 - AREA £6,500,000 BARA RN © TEE
#1.208 7T c M ZERESETH - SHBIE
Moy — 2 ERE R S E RN RF B R
B FEHERARARBHA-Z—tEHA
Z+NBZRER -

On 28th April 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible participants
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 6,500,000 shares of
the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.20. The share options are divided into four
tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is associated
with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of which are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28th April 2017.

RZZE—+F+=ZA+=H ' ARFARE=F
—tFEREFERNETEERS2EERHER
- LARREE A ££ 1,388,000 R AN A RIS + 1T{E(E
£1.047%8 7T - WML ZBRES (ETHL - SHEE
My — 2 BEARE RS TSR RA B R
£ #EEERARARIBHA-Z—tF+=
A+=B22%R -

On 13th December 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 1,388,000
shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.04. The share options are divided
into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is
associated with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of
which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 13th December 2017.

DRR—E—+F=ZA=+—H  ZZ—+FN
AZ+N\BERZZ—tF+-A+=AREZE
AR 2 BB LA TR ERN T ¢

The vesting period and exercise period of each tranche of the share options granted
on 31st March 2017, 28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017, respectively, are as
follows:

Percentage of options
of each tranche shall
be exercisable

Date of grant  Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Periods BEB AR E
REBEH #x SR 1THEH AFIEZAEDL
31.3.2017 First tranche 31.3.2017 to & 1.4.2019 31.3.2017 to & 30.3.2027 50%
E—it 1.4.2018 to = 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2019 to = 30.3.2027 25%

Second tranche 28.3.2018 to & 1.4.2020 28.3.2018 to & 30.3.2027 50%

Fit 1.4.2019 to = 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2020 to = 30.3.2027 25%

Third tranche 20.3.2019to & 1.4.2021 20.3.2019 to & 30.3.2027 50%

F=it 1.4.2020 to = 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2021 to = 30.3.2027 25%

Fourth tranche 25.3.2020 to & 1.4.2022 25.3.2020 to & 30.3.2027 50%

Erit 1.4.2021 to = 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2022 to = 30.3.2027 25%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

BRERTE @)

Notes: (Continued)

1. (Continued)

Date of grant
BH B

Tranches
R

B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Vesting Period
SBY

i ()

1. (&

Exercise Periods

1M

—E-tFRBRETE )

Percentage of options
of each tranche shall
be exercisable
BRI E
AFIEZEDL

28.4.2017

13.12.2017

First tranche
E—H#t

Second tranche
St 19

Third tranche
E=4t

Fourth tranche
E Stk

First tranche
FE—H#t

Second tranche
<t 19

Third tranche
=4t

Fourth tranche
E Stk

1.6.2018 to & 1.6.2020

1.6.2019 to & 1.6.2021

1.6.2020 to £ 1.6.2022

1.6.2021 to £ 1.6.2023

1.4.2019 to £ 1.4.2021

1.4.2020 to £ 1.4.2022

1.4.2021 to £ 1.4.2023

1.4.2022 to £ 1.4.2024

1.6.2018 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027

1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2020 to % 27.4.2027
1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027

1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2022 to £ 27.4.2027

1.6.2021 to £ 27.4.2027
1.6.2022 to £ 27.4.2027
1.6.2023 to & 27.4.2027

1.4.2019to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2021 to £ 12.12.2027

1.4.2020to £ 12.12.2027
1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027

1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2023 to £ 12.12.2027

1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2023 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2024 to & 12.12.2027

2. The offer for a total number of 6,500,000 options was made to eligible participants,
in which an offer of 1,000,000 options was not accepted by an eligible participant,
pursuant to the 2017 Share Option Scheme, the offer of these options was
automatically lapsed and became null and void.

3. The closing prices of the shares of the Company immediately before 31st March 2017,
28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017 on which the share options were granted
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme were HK$1.25, HK$1.08 and HK$0.90 per share
of the Company, respectively.

4. The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$1.39.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year ended 31st December 2021 was the Company, or any of its
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company or their connected entities to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2021, none of the related party transactions
entered into by the Group set out in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
in Note 47 to the consolidated financial statements constitutes connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors and chief executives
of the Company, the following person (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:
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MISHRERME47[BBEALTR S| —fiNALE@EEEE
AT SERBERE ETER T LAEENBER H L
SEBER M - EEWR - ARAIERIE_ETAEA
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FERR

RIB-—F+-A=+—H REFRARAES
TRABMA - EEHARRRSTHRABRINA
T RARFZ B SABRE D A RIEE 7 K
BIRPIZEXV BB 2 3 70 BP R E SRR A A B BB 2
PBY B SR IR 8 55 S B 5P 6 336 IR A R BIZA T8
Tz ERMATR SR EEIORBIT -

(a) Shares (a) &t
Number of
ordinary Percentage
shares of the of issued
Company held share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity Nature BELXAT HE 81T
REREH BE HE EERZROEE REZBDEE
Hong Kong Teamsun Beneficial owner Long Position 564,110,657 67.67%
BBEBRK ZEmA ey}
Teamsun Interest of controlled corporation Long Position 564,110,657 67.67%
EBRK IR N R R 7R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Note:

1. 108,841,742 shares of the Company were sold by Beijing International Trust Co., Ltd. to
Hong Kong Teamsun on 29th January 2021.

2. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun and was
therefore deemed to be interested in the 564,110,657 shares of the Company in which
Hong Kong Teamsun was interested.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2021, there was no other person (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the register of interest required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2021, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the Company, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st December
2021, except as noted below:

With respect to Code provision E.1.2, Mr. Wang Weihang, the chairman of the Board
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26th May
2021 due to other commitments.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31st December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31st December 2021.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the Company may be
indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability incurred by the director,
to the extent permitted by Bermuda law. Such permitted indemnity provision has been
in force during the year and is currently in force at the time of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance during the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal actions
brought against its directors and officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong
Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director or a former director of the Hong Kong
Subsidiaries may be indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets against any
liability incurred by the director to a person other than the Hong Kong Subsidiaries or
an associated company of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval of this
report.

DONATION

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$25,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 31st December
2021. During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group including the review of the
annual results and interim results, and discussed various auditing, financial reporting
and risk management and internal control system matters.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as Auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30th March 2022
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~a' GrantThornton
- BE

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BBRGEEERRAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 93 to 209, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Annual Report 2021 4%

B} EBRAEEERLR
KRR
(REFETMA T2 BRAA])

=R

ARLERED (AT R [ 59 ) EERFHNEBES
200 B BEHEREEBRATATHEIELR D R
HMB AR (5t [ EEE]) 2R MBHRE - IER
EUBREREERN T _—F+_A=+—Ani&s
MEIRARABRBEZ A IEFENGEERER - Fa
ZHNER GaEaEBRIGARTRESR MU
FAR BB HmAM T BRTESHBRME -

BMRA  ZEEEVBRRERBEEESHNAS
(IBEEGHMAE )BHANEEVBREEN(EH
BUBRELE DEERATHR®R HEEER-F
THET A= ENEAEBIRAREEZA L
FENGEUBRALFEARERE - YEIRRES
CRRUEGDER R R L RS

RREXE
BMEREESGHMAGRONTEREN(E
BEATER ) ETER - BAINEFERIR AR
BEEERARE [RBEIR BRSSP IRRARE
MWEE] St — SR - RIBBFE ST AERA
mEREEEETA( D - BfEYR &S
C WEETTAIPREMEREE - BHMIRBAHM
PIESHMEREERTRELEE I RAMNERR
HEAE -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

KeéAudlt Matter
-

Revenue recognition

LON::2

Refer to notes 3(u), 4(b)(ii) and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements

ARERTERRAMAE 3(1) ~ b)) K 7
For the year ended 31st December 2021, revenue was approximately

HK$2,049,620,000.
Hz—Z-—F+_A=+—HB1IFE - RA#)2,049,620,000/5

JC °

nﬁ/

Revenue included revenue from contracts with customisation or
integration work of HK$225,291,000, which recognised using the
cost-to-cost method to estimate progress towards completion, which
is calculated as a ratio of “total cost incurred” to “total estimated
costs for each contract”. Based on the stage of completion, the
Group recognises revenue as a percentage of the total contract
amount at the end of reporting period.

WA BRI B TE HI Sk A T1ER & WA XY 225,291,000 7T © &%

ST ATERE AR SR AE G SERGEE nﬁk}‘ériﬁti‘/\ﬂ
2 [HERRA | 8 [ 4Bt AN | VLR E o BERBLATERGER RE
i ARSI E S LS NS %Eﬁﬁp LN

Revenue recognition is identified as a key audit matter because
of the significance of the amount of revenue to the consolidated
financial statemen
g $”E)\i%ﬁ§‘ii BUBRENEEY - WARREHED RERE
Z%ZEIF o
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FRRELSEE
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How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

RN ERNMEERREERER

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition included:

B ARRNEZIZF 21

understanding the revenue and business process of the Group and
the internal controls on revenue cycle;

R 5 ) I\ B T B AR LA T M A B BB B O BB )

assessing the appropriateness of the Group's revenue recognition

accounting policy in line with HKFRSs
SRS

AHEEEENBAER SRR Eﬁ/:.\ 3R

SR

performing analytical review on revenue and gross profit margin to
identify significant or unusual fluctuation on revenue;

SR AREF RETTAHTHEER - LSRN NEARRE RS :

testing, on a sampling basis, the existence of revenue transactions
recorded during the year by comparing the details of the underlying
documentation, including the underlying sales invoices, contracts
and reIevant documentation evidencing the delivery and acceptance
he goo S or servic
wﬁii,xﬁt/ﬁliﬁiﬂmaﬁ*muw\x% EVIFAENE, BB R S
%%F{F# BENEER  ARURBHE NSRS I REZH
A AT

selecting samples of revenue transactions recorded close to before
and after the year end and comparing the details, including the
date of the underlying sales invoices, contracts and relevant
documentation evidencing the date of delivery and acceptance of
the goods or services to assess whether the related revenue has
been recognised in the appropriate accounting period in accordance
with the Group S revenue recognition accountin policies;
TEELEZLEFXFN RICEREVRARZ HERR - J?t??ﬁﬁ“ﬁzi%’iﬁﬁi

BIEHEER A F ﬂlﬁﬁﬁ %Yﬂ&i‘kxh‘ﬂiﬁi‘aﬁﬁﬁ’]iﬁ
Fﬁxii SASHE A BN R SRR B IR A R iR
HEENSTHRARESR

testing, on a sampling basis, the accuracy of the revenue recognised
using cost-to-cost method by comparing the estimated cost and
the actual cost incurred, such as material costs and labour costs etc.
with the supporting documents; an

wﬁiiﬂ?ﬁ ﬂlJuﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁz$xiﬁﬂi§/§iﬁqurziﬂZLJ*E&w%U\E’Jf’%ﬁﬁ
BB A i AT AN B R B A RS (AR - A TR
%)Eﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁ?&ﬁtt?& R

identifying any significant adjustments to revenue during the
reporting period and after the reporting period, understanding
the reasons for such adjustments and comparing the details of the
%ustments with relevant underlying document
#ﬁiﬁﬂWﬂ#&iﬁﬂi&;ﬂﬁz)\ﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁ.ﬂﬁ PR T R
IJIH—iuﬂ%E’JiEﬂ 7 AR B0 B SO HETT EEER ©
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the 2021 annual report of the Company, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

90  Annual Report 2021 3R

Htp&ER
FEFAYHMENAE - KL EHRERAR =T
S ERAROREER - TR ESA R
RRPORBTRES -

B ZEEMBRENEREL TOREEMER - R
IR A& A AR R AT A Rz A

EMEHFAVBHRROEEZM S - RAWEEZH
EEMER - EMEZEEMENRTRGAFB®RE
HHMEFZBEFETNERFEEANS » KL
FIFEE AR -

B R PIERDRITH TIEPMEL 2 iR R E M E
BEEEARHERRL - RABARELEREE - R
UL A EE B TRE -

EERGEMBBRRAREZER

ERAAERBETESHOOGEN 2 EBPHRE
ER R FB(R TGN 2 WEREREIRE P BR
= NLEAVBHRRELREMAFHARER - &5F
BEERARVEZ BRG] AEFa I B®RE
ZRENFERRFFREER MG B EA SRR -

NRHEGEMBRERE  EFRATNE EEHE
SEEENRES  BEASBELEEHNFR(INE
B BIFEZEEREEEER  HFLEE - %
it 2SN EEA ER AT BRI R - TRIZARS
SRS L REWN G RIS -

ESEFERZEENBY TRTAREEREYHR
SREFHOBE

REMHRBERGESMBRRARE
HEE

BB R  RESAFBHREED T FERRIGE
IR G RN E R RRAES S IR RE - THA
BREEMBEENZEMNE - REARE-NAN—F
REVEE QG BMERMET (ERER) MERM
VER  BRICASNRSRE B EAL B H o AT EH
FHENARAEMEMALE ESAEEMEE -

o

B RERDKFHRE - ETERFZRELR
FEAPETHBERERX —ERERRAF AR AR
I o sHARBRI AT DA B BREF SR EE AR 51 - WA IR TR AT
S ERRELIR AT B AR A MIE IR LM & KA
A IEMATEH IR E - RGBS SRR
AIHARIEER -



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

e  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

30th March 2022

Lau Kwong Kei
Practising Certificate No.: P07578
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HZ=ZF=—

I"I = Nz
%/T/\ (=i

F+ZA=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B--fF —ECTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 FET FHET
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue L ON 7 2,049,620 1,988,849
Cost of goods sold HEKA (923,434) (924,392)
Cost of services rendered RUEARTE 2 B AR (894,996) (807,377)
Other income HAbgA 3,584 5,341
Other loss, net Hfth)F&518 (20,838) (3.362)
Fair value loss on BEMFE Z AREE
investment properties E1E 21 - (1,500)
Selling expenses HEER (87,409) (75,182)
Administrative expenses THER (62,506) (57,347)
Finance income B UA 10 271 359
Finance costs B T AR AR 1 (3,956) (8,520)
Share of results of associates i A NCIE S 23 (30,427) (63,480)
Profit before income tax MR8 B AR R 12 29,909 53,389
Income tax expense FriSBiF 2 16 (25,777) (28,053)
Profit for the year from BEREEBFREF
continuing operations 4,132 25,336
Discontinued operations IR
Profit for the year from AR 4 ZE TS S g A
discontinued operations 17 - 830,806
Profit for the year FREF 4,132 856,142
Profit for the year attributable AARREEH AL
to equity holders of the Company FRaF
— From continuing operations - REFHELEED 4,132 25,336
— From discontinued operations - RE RIS ETS - 830,962
4,132 856,298
Loss for the year FEREREEFR
attributable to B8
non-controlling interests
— From discontinued operations - RERIELEETR - (156)
- (156)
Profit for the year FREA 4,132 856,142
The notes on pages 101 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~— #5101 25209 B 2 s iR A M ISRz 2T

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBER

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HEZ - —

—F+ZA=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
Notes HK cents HK cents
P 5 AL il
Earnings per share attributable to AERARBRAEAFEA
equity holders of the Company: EhEERER 19
From continuing and discontinued REBESER
operations HRIEREE
— Basic - BN 0.50 103.37
- Diluted -8 0.49 103.28
From continuing operations REGEREER
- Basic - ®ER 0.50 3.06
- Diluted - #E 0.49 3.06
From discontinued operations REARIBEER
— Basic - E R - 100.31
— Diluted -8 - 100.22
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The notes on pages 101 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e ERER

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 FET FHET
Profit for the year FRER 4,132 856,142
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hib 2w (FE) -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently RG T EWENT LB &
to profit or loss: HIEE -
Revaluation surplus of land and buildings T RIEFE GRS 20 10,630 2,149
Deferred taxation arising from revaluation T RAEFEE R
surplus of land and buildings EAZELERIR 37 (1,754) (355)
Fair value loss on equity investment RHERE 2 AR BEREER 24 (598) -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to RN EREDIER
profit or loss: BamXHEE -
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEG 2B ER
overseas operations 6,651 (2,163)
Release of translation reserve upon HH S BT 1 R AR B B B (R
disposal of subsidiaries 44 - 3,413
Share of other comprehensive loss of associates FE(REE A B E 2 E &R 23 (924) (57)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENEERE 18,137 859,129
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FRAEZEKFLEEE
Equity holders of the Company RATRAFHFEA 18,137 859,285
Non-controlling interests Bl g T - (156)
18,137 859,129

BN 101 25209 B 2 B AR & BT 5@k 2 1
A SERERS

The notes on pages 101 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

an\ (= jﬁ%ﬂﬁ/‘ﬂl%‘%

As at 31st December 2021 R—E—-—F+—-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E=—-F —TTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE FEx FAxT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LER Y 20 306,419 297,711
Investment properties REYZE 21 54,300 54,300
Goodwill and intangible assets AERRENEE 22 - =
Interests in associates B N MR 23 1,191,768 1,769,196
Equity investment ARIER & 24 - 598
Finance lease receivables FEM B E T ERRIE 28 2,044 4,208
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS BB E 37 1,293 513
1,555,824 2,126,526
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 26 234,017 212,725
Trade receivables fEY & 5 5 IE 27 171,478 240,472
Finance lease receivables el R E TR E TR 28 2,244 2,779
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAibFEWEIE - 2e RIERRIE 29 21,872 18,032
Contract assets BREE 30 284,880 269,003
Tax recoverable AL B IR 12,415 7,939
Bank balances and cash RITFEA MRS 31 603,947 370,521
1,330,853 1,121,471
Total assets WEE 2,886,677 3,247,997
Equity =
Share capital [N 32 83,358 83,031
Share premium A& A7 4 (B BR 403,043 399,272
Reserves GG 1,503,924 1,711,490
Equity attributable to equity holders EATRAIFE AEGER
of the Company 1,990,325 2,193,793
The notes on pages 101 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ % 101 £55 209 B 2 AR & M Wk 2T

statements.

Annual Report 2021 4%

Al Sk R ER D



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma BRI R

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E=—-F —TTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FET FAxT

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHRAasE 37 169,209 203,886
Lease liabilities HEaE 38 6,176 1,175
175,385 205,061

Current liabilities nREAE
Trade payables FERTE 55038 33 258,508 282,557
Other payables and accruals Hib RN FIEREFER 34 156,738 171,511
Receipts in advance TEl s 35 195,898 239,629
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS R B (& 2,768 4,247
Bank borrowings RITEE 36 101,099 145,938
Lease liabilities HEARE 38 5,956 5,261
720,967 849,143
Total liabilities BEE 896,352 1,054,204
Total equity and liabilities BERRAE 2,886,677 3,247,997
Net current assets REEEFE 609,886 272,328
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARE 2,165,710 2,398,854
WANG Weihang WANG Yueou
FHM TER
Director Director
EZE 4

The notes on pages 101 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ #5101 258209 B 2 @Ak iR A HIEHRE 2 1
statements. AISRERER D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n‘/-ﬁ

ARHBBE

For the year ended 31st December 2021 #;

E-T——

FH—RA=t—RHLLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARARAHEAER
Share-
hased
Special Property Convertible payment
reserve  revaluation bonds reserve Non-
Share Share (Note (i) reserve Translation reserve DR{A Retained controling Total
capital premium BRIGE NEER reseve  ARES RER eamings Total interests equity
BE  RIVEER (R3E() L i3fe1 B S{IEE BEF g8 HiRER BREE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL AL T AT AL TAL THL AT AL THL AT
At 1st January 2020 R-B-Z£-F-A 82,731 395,830 34,350 251,734 (6,655) 10,209 49137 587,936 1,405,272 47510 1,452,782
Comprehensive income: 2N :
Profit for the year FRETF| - - - - - - - 856,298 856,298 (156) 856,142
Other comprehensive Eth2ERE/
income/(loss): (F8):
Revaluation surplus of ThREFERRR
land and buildings - - - 2,149 - - - - 2,149 - 2,149
Deferred taxation arising T RIEFEEEH
from revaluation surplus EEZERERE
of land and buildings - - - (355) - - - - (355) = (355)
Exchange differenceson ~ REBHER 2
translation of overseas ERER
operations - - - - (2,163) - - - (2163) - (2,163)
Release of translation HERBARRRR
reserve upon disposal B Gt (it 44)
of subsidiaries (Note 44) - - - - 3413 - - - 3413 - 3413
Share of other comprehensive  FE(SBFEAREMZE
loss of associates (Note 23) 518 (F3£23) - - = = (57) = = = (57) = (57)
Total comprehensive ER2ERE/
income/(loss) for the year _ (£5%8) 448 = = = 1,794 1,193 = - 86298 85985 (156 859,129
Transactions with owners: BEEAZRS :
Final dividend for theyear ~ HZ=F-NF
ended 31st December 2019 +=A=+—HLFE
and special dividend ZRHRERERIRE
(Note 18) (Pizk18) - - - - - - - (85,213) (85.213) - (85,213)
Issue of ordinary shares IRERERETL
upon exercise of share LBk (ME32)
options (Note 32) 300 3442 - - - - (928) - 2814 - 2814
Recognition of equity-settled  FESRLARR (D AERE
share-based payment S5 - - - - - - 11,635 - 11,635 - 11,635
Lapse of share options EETRERT
transferred to retained KGR E
eamings - - - - - - (239) 239 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(Note 44) (GRZ) = = = = = - (50,961) 50,961 - (47,354) (47,354)
Redemption of convertiole BRI TR E
bonds - - - - - (10,209) - 10,209 - = =
Total transactions with ~~ REEAZRZHE
owners 300 3442 - - - (10,209) (40,493) (23,804) (70,764) (47,354) (118,118)
At31stDecember2020  W=E=E&
+=B=1+-A 83,031 399,272 34,350 253,528 (5,462) = 8644 1,420,430 2,193,793 - 2,193,793
The notes on pages 101 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ #5101 258209 B 2 Ak iR & HIEHRE 2 T

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

MEEREER
For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AARRAEEAEE
Share-
based
Special Property payment
reserve revaluation Fair value reserve
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation reserve SR 43 Retained Total
capital  premium  BEIRE  WESH reserve  AREE BE#  earnings equity
BE  ROREE (G fiE  ERGE fiE  XARE  RERA EREH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TER FEr TER FER TER FER TER FER
At 1st January 2021 R-Z--%¥-H-H 83,031 399,272 34,350 253,528 (5,462) - 8,644 1,420,430 2,193,793
Comprehensive income: 2EME
Profit for the year FREA - - - - - - - 4132 4,132
Other comprehensive Hit2EKE
income/(loss): (B8)
Revaluation surplus of T RETERRH
land and buildings - - - 10,630 - - - - 10,630
Deferred taxation arising T REFERRHS
from revaluation surplus EEZIEER A
of land and buildings - - - (1,754) - - - - (1,754)
Exchange differences on BEEINEBZ
translation of overseas ERER
operations - - - - 6,651 - - - 6,651
Share of other comprehensive ~ [E(SE & AR E 2 HE
Joss of associates (Note 23) fEiE (P 23) - - - - (924) - - - (924)
Fair value loss on equity RIERE 2 DR EEBR
investment (Note 24) (Kt 24) - - - - - (598) - - (598)
Derecognition of equity IR AR IR A
investment (Note 24) (W 24) - - - - - 598 - (598) -
Total comprehensive FRZEKE/
income/(loss) for the year ~ (&518) 8% - - - 8,876 5,727 - - 3,534 18,137
Transactions with owners: ~ §2#H }\23’52 :
Final dividend for the year BE-_T-ZF
ended 31st December 2020  +=A=+—HILEE
and special dividend AR RERIRE
(Note 18) (FizE18) - - - - - - - (224979)  (224,979)
Issue of ordinary shares IERRER R T2
upon exercise of share LSRR (A 32)
options (Note 32) 327 3,71 - - - - (1,006) - 3,092
Recognition of equity-settled  FEFRLARR 1 AERE
share-based payment *fzR% - - - - - - 282 - 282
Lapse of share options BREREEAZ
transferred to retained KERE
earnings - - - - - - (58) 58 -
Total transactions with BEBAZRZBE
owners 327 3,771 - - - - (782) (224,921) (221,605)
At 315t December 2021 R=Z=-F
+=ZA=1+- 83,358 403,043 34,350 262,404 265 - 7,862 1,199,043 1,990,325

C BB EREBRBRAB(ARF ) REMEAR (4
B IAKE ) 2 HHRBER - NANEFARFR
D EMATETREEAR - BRBEZHBAREHE
TR ZEE - B ZREMETHARRRSD Z
EE MEZRZER -

Note () The special reserve of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares in 1997.

HNE 101 2E 209 B 2 FBKERE M BEHRETR 2T
A SR ER D

The notes on pages 101 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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The notes on pages 101 to 209 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2021 2020
—B-fF —ECTF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
P 5 FET FHET
Operating activities BB
Cash generated from operations KRB 2B IWA 41(a) 90,831 269,268
Tax paid [
— Hong Kong profits tax - BEMEH (16,240) (28,219)
— Overseas tax - BHMKEIA (53,736) (156,266)
Tax refunded REIFIA
— Hong Kong profits tax - BAENEH 169 208
Net cash from operating activities REEBBREWANFRE 21,024 84,991
Investing activities RETE
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries BEWERBARZRERE 44 - 232,618
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYIX - BE R&E (9,343) (8,866)
Additions to intangible assets R AR ZIGN - (3,587)
Net proceeds from disposal of partial interest in HERE QRO ER L
an associate Fr{S I F 58 533,967 =
Professional fees in relation to the disposal S N R B ARRE
of partial interest in an associate EXEA (1,640) =
Transaction costs in relation to the Disposal HESBERBZRBHEA (34,437) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWIZ - HEREBEE
plant and equipment 101 -
Interests received BUFE 43 839
Net cash from investing activities RETB2HS WA FE 488,691 221,004
Financing activities & ES
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBRITEE (45,000) (45,000)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAEBH (6,521) (5,899)
Payment for redemption of convertible bonds & Bl AT AR B 2 TR - (250,700)
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BT E RSB S 3,092 2,814
Interests paid [EENEESS (3.805) (6,654)
Dividends paid BEAIIRE (224,979) (85,213)
Net cash used in financing activities RMETE RS HER (277,213) (390,652)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRESEBYZ
and cash equivalents #m, CRd) B8 232,502 (84,657)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FHzHeRREEEY
the year 370,521 456,058
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEERE =B 2 F 2 924 (880)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRZRe RIREEEY 31 603,947 370,521
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1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At 31st
December 2021, its immediate holding company is Teamsun Technology (HK)
Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
ultimate holding company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”),
a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda, and 15th Floor,
Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of its major
associates and subsidiaries are set out in Notes 23 and 48 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board”) on 30th March 2022.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are summarised in Note 3. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for land and buildings, investment properties and equity
investment classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI”), which are stated at fair values.

1.

—RER

BEBESAEERR AT ([RAF])REREZM
RIZB—RKXHBEBRAT - HROEBBEES
RHMARAT ([HRA]) £ - RZT=—4%F
TZA=+—H  EEBEERARAKREEK L
ZEBRKEHR (BB BRAR(BEBEBX
K]) - EEEERA T AP EARLFER ([
Bl DR RERDR EEBFER S LMzt
REBRKBEROBR AR (EBHEREK]) -
RARZAMMPER R EEE S 2 M5
7l /A Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM10, Bermuda & & & ¥ & B %2 0
BT SREEEREIS 1548 o

ARARRBREER AT RIREAREERET
HWBAR  HEBHLENWNBARZ EBEK
2B RIBIRHIFE23 &% 48 ©

BEEERI - GRMBRERTIAET (THET)
27 - e BRAEEESS ((EFg )R-
Eo_F=F=THEHETIE -

fm BLELSE

Rira U BHRRERREEYHREER ([EE
MREER D RS LAEBEREREEE
SENAE (BB G QE ) BARERERH
BRI EER - BEETEA ([FEEE
A DFRBREERRZGFRE

iz e BRI AR A ERNEBCABEDD
WERTE N BIEERRRBRATES EWHRAN (£
MRAD) WEERE

R SR MR IRRE IR A ER G BERRN
BIRE3WEE - BEAMAN  WERRDE X
FERRPRE 2R - AT REBERT BB
BamEEREAEERRS P BREZFE(N
BN T -

R IERERTIRIBELRAERE - L
REF REMERDBERBRAAEBEBBEM
2EKEIIR(BRAREEREREMEE KT
BRD IRz S RE E 2 BRI BRI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The impacts of the adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

(a) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for the annual
periods beginning on 1st January 2021:

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following
amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning on 1st January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The adoption of these amended HKFRSs has no material impact on how the
results and financial position of the Group for the current and prior periods
have been prepared and presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. IRBEE )

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs: (b) EAEEARERNE B BERELE
al:
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, RULFERE SRR 2 IRETZERE - 5T
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet el REMERT BB B EERIKE FIFEE
effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group. BARER  BAREAEERERA -
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and other related BAMBHRELR REREOREM
amendments? ERWA HERAMER] 2
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework* BBMBRELR SR E R
F 35 (IBFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BAVBREER REEFEREBENR
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or FE105 % HE AR ZER
Joint Venture? BB BEHEHTE?
285 (1851 4)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond BEVBREER = —FKA
30 June 20215 F 1658 (BRI A) =+B&z
2019TBARE
RIAEA S ER
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or EESTEANF 1R BEaEIEARR
Non-current and related amendments to ({BFTA) SR BB
Hong Kong Interpretation 52 REE SR AR
B2
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies? BAGHEAF 1 SEHBURER?
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 KB GERE
HEREBRE
FE 25 (1B5TAN)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates? B AER BEHEETHER?
F 85k (BRI AN)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities B AR HE - FEER
arising from a Single Transaction? 125 (IBFTA) BEKE B
HOIRAERTE 2
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — B AR M B KkRE —
Proceeds before Intended Use' 165 (IBF]A) YEBE BRI 2
FriSsIE"
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling B AR EBEAH — BT
a Contract’ %37 5 (1871 A%) BR A
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards BEVBREER - \EZE
2018-2020' CCHEN) —ToTEER
WMIsHREZER 2
FEE
Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control* BFHESIE SR HEEHIE O
(Revised) ({85TA) Dz
' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2022 ' O RZE—F-A-HIZERROFER
PR AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023 2 O RZE_=F-A B2 ERBRNFEE
AR
3 Effective date not yet determined 3 ERETE R A E B
4 Effective for business combination/common control combination for which the ¢ HRWESREHBERE-S - —F—A—H
acquisition/combination date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period R BARME—EFEHRR R
beginning on or after 1st January 2022 A PR RIS B AR
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2021 S RZE-—FHNA—ARZEFABNFEER
PR AR
The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in ERFUAA AR &L £ A MR
the Group's accounting policy for the first period beginning on or after the Rtz B EMREARARE Z GEHHR
effective date of the pronouncement. The new and amended HKFRSs are Ha] RER] B ARG RELRBHL T &
not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements. HASBMBHRRENEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power over the entity, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other

parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised losses
on sales of intra-group asset are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted

by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the

subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the period between

non-controlling interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. TEEFHE®

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Where
certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee's pre or post-acquisition profits are
recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

(a) ZEEE )

EARSEKREMBAR ZZEHER - HEE
AR TIRIATME 2 25 E « ()P
REZAABEAETN REERZAAEE
2K RMBARZEE (BEBE)
K G BRI 2 SERTAREE - 14
ZBRAR 2B TEENRE[ESENRL
EBEFE  MEEZ Rt REmBRERE
2 E R P R N R R A RIEATE
REM 2 E KRR S Bt 2 2R
BMARREERHERBEEZTAA
RAEFIHEEGIERERERER
) o PR EEHIE 2 B AT B A RRE
ZEARE 2 AAEE  REBBVHRE
HRIFR [MT A SRERAIRRH
BROTHERZAREE - S (HER) 15
ERANBERRRABLEZREZMRA

RARBFBRARA - RHTE A BNIRE
VARKZREBR 5B (BB 18 T AR - HEDBRAH
EHEREFALEARNZRERN - 5K
AEEH B U RRIAREBETAEEZ
REEH - KANMBIFELRITEERAMZK
A o

BB A B2 A AR IR E Y e e YA
SELEAR - IEKBRTSERN RS
HBERARRIERPHER -

(b) %56

U BB T8 A B R E T IR B E AR - METS
EHRER REBEUAREENE  ARE
BERIEANEEMEREE - AAKERKIK
BHREE AMEL 2 ABEARAREE /KR
R 7y 2 IR M BT A R A U
HHz AABEEANGE - BEEFBZK
FENELEREERER -

RERH - REBHE Gt T UE 2 7T 35l
BERAEAEZABERIANAEZEARE
BT AR -
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Business combination (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value on the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is

recognised immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounting
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as a financial
liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value with

corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains

control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period,
or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that

date.
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(c) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale. The component comprises
operations and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss comprising the total of: (i) the post-
tax profit or loss of discontinued operations and (i) the post-tax gain or
loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell or on
the disposal of the assets or disposal groups constituting the discontinued
operation.

(d) Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control of those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using equity
method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the acquisition-date net fair values of the investee’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the
Group, plus any costs directly attributable to the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the determination of the Group’s
share of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate is carried
at cost and adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's share
of the associate’s net assets less any identified impairment loss, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Where
unrealised losses on assets sales between the Group and its associate
are reversed on equity accounting, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where necessary, to
conform the associate accounting policies to those of the Group when the
associate’s financial statements are used by the Group in applying the equity
method.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

After the application of equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group’s
investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in associate is
impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable amount (i.e.
higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate
and its carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the investment,
the Group estimates its share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the associate, including cash flows
arising from the operations of the associate and the proceeds on ultimate
disposal of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date when it
ceases to have significant influence over an associate. If the retained interest
in that former associate is a financial asset, the retained interest is measured
at fair value, which is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a
financial asset in accordance with HKFRS 9. The difference between (i) the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate; and (ii) the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the equity method was discontinued, is recognised in the profit or
loss. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis
as would have been required if the associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by the investee would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the entity
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(d) Interests in associates (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

(e) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

(f) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HKD or HK$), which is the Company’s functional currency and
the Group’s presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement
of profit or loss on a net basis within other loss, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETBE =

(Continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (f) INEHE @)
(iii) Group companies (i) EE 2 A]

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which SEMAERZNEEBINEEY|EH

has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional D (A I E B 5 A BRER

currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the BRBERRACER)  EEXERMBHR
presentation currency as follows: SEA T AT ERZ25| &

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position )y BHPBRARZEERAEDS
presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date; RZ AR A 2 Wi ERTE

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss presented iy EMHBRRZIWARRAZHERE
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not HEEFE (BRIFZTFHERLIE
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates FERMIERZ AP BITER
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and AECRFER  EBERT
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); AR S A ZERFTERAR
and %) &

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other (iy PIEEECZEHREZZARAR/E
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the tEEKE RS B RETEERD
translation reserve in equity. M 3 (7 o

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a WS BINEBELE 2 ERARER

foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity AEGGERBINEBCEAERBE I

and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences RWTERITE  FREA B ZER

arising are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated Hih 2 EW =R R DRI R IR E RS

separately in the translation reserve in equity. T 34 (i

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s B HEBINER(BNHEASEEREH

entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of 2R P RAEA—HES

control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of joint BINERS 2B AR 2 i - kE—
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or loss of MEEEINER 2 A E D KRE

significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), RS REE — A GINEB 2 E R

all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation RAIZEAFENZEE) K RAEE

attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange BEZEB 2B RITELERSEH

differences that have previously been attributed to non-controlling DEEER o IHERERSTRIEL 2 E

interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassified to profit or loss. N ZRGHKLILER - BT ERN

DIREEE °
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(9) Property, plant and equipment (9) ¥% - RERRE

Land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property, plant and equipment,
other than cost of right-of-use assets as described in Note 3(y) and land
and buildings which are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Land and buildings are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting
date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is
credited to the property revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously recognised
as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt
with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Land and buildings Over the remaining term of the lease or
50 years, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10% - 333%

Motor vehicles 20%

Computer and office equipment  162/3% — 50%

Right-of-use assets Shorter of lease term or useful life of

2 - 5years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
other reserves are transferred to retained earnings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Investment properties

(i)

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment properties. Investment property is
measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment property.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting date
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Research and development expenditure

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred. Costs that are directly attributable
to development activities are recognised as intangible assets provided they
meet the following recognition requirements:

(@) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product for
internal use or sale;

(b) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(c) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is demonstrated;

(d) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through
internal use or sale;

(e) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for
completion; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be reliably
measured.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

0]

()

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is
the sum of the direct costs incurred from the date when the intangible asset
first meets the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Direct costs include employee
costs incurred on development activities along with an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is
reported at cost less amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 3
years.

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

e Intangible assets;

e Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets);
e Interests in associates; and

e The Company’s investments in subsidiaries

All assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions
less costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some
are tested at cash-generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

r e PR R M

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial assets and liabilities

(i) Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

° debt instruments to be measured at amortised cost; and

. equity instrument to be measured subsequently at FVOCI.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For debt instruments, the classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and its contractual cash flows
characteristics. For investment in equity instrument, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)
k) eREEREE®
() 2HEE &

(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other loss, net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.

The Group's financial assets are amortised cost comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”, “finance lease receivables”
and “bank balances and cash” as set out in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investment at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive dividend
payments is established. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETBE =

(Continued)

k) eREEREE®
(ii) Financial liabilities (i) THEE

(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities include “trade payables”, “other
payables and accruals”, “bank borrowings” and “lease liabilities”.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. Financial
liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially measured at fair value,
and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group
designated a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method except
for derivatives which are not designated and effective as hedging
instruments and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are
carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss.

All interest related charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note 3(w)).

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in Note 3(y).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade payables and other payables and accruals

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Bank borrowings

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

They are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

k) tRMEEREB @

(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(iij) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

(I) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses
("ECL") associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
contract assets as recognised and measured under HKFRS 15.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 6(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, contract assets and finance lease receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For all other financial assets, the Group adopted a “three-stage” model for
impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as
summarised below:

e The receivables with low credit risk on initial recognition is classified in
“Stage 1" and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Group;

e If asignificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified,
the receivables is moved to “Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit
impaired;

e |f the receivables is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then
moved to “Stage 3".

Receivables in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events possible within the
next 12 months. Instruments in Stage 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based
on ECL on a lifetime basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETBE =

(Continued)

() Impairment of financial assets and contract assets () eMEERSHNEEZRE @)

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs TR s BB 2

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate EHEEBEC T EReRTAEERASE

of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument. FRAE B BRI R EE -

When estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable EMERHEERER ASEZEEIERH

information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This BHREFERZHANE NI EEEER AR

includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based BHEH - ERRBRERAEEABTLRE

on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and MEEATENEEEEENEANR ST -

including forward-looking information. TEFERTIEIE SR o

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: TREMEEEIERA A T EE S ¢

e 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from o TEAEEMEERIE  HAEHRA
possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date; Br—EAAMERECENSHME
and BoER Rk

e lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all o ZHIRHMEEEIE - HHIRABEBEE
possible default events over the expected lives of the items to which the BEEER BB AR FRAMA A8
ECL model applies. BEZENSHMEBS2EIE -

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss allowance HRABEEMERIANS  ANEEBRZE

equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit BRERSEN T _EAEREESE Bk

risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the BYARRECH TAZEERKEEE

loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. - RUEERT - BEBERESN R

HEEBRCSEIE -

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables, contract assets, EWE 5HIE - aREE  BIKEEHEER
finance lease receivables and other financial assets measured at amortised T8 & IR SR ST BV @ R E E RV TR ER
cost are set out in Note 6(b). EEEETE 2 T ITH SR HIFE6(b)
(m) Contract assets and contract liabilities (mENEEREHNEARE

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue (see IR BTE A RE A AR R & RO Pl TR AR
Note 3(u)) before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under Z RERTRERU S (RMEE 3(u) RRERE A
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for BE - GHEERBW () EBERTE
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note 3() and are reclassified to HE BB - WERERERIK A&
receivables when the right to the consideration has become unconditional BES D EEEYGIE (RHE3K) °

(see Note 3(k)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration AEBBERABRER - GHBEERER
before the Group recognises the related revenue (see Note 3(u)). A contract AR ERER (R 3W) - WAEEE
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to AR R A AR A 7S B2 (B B R A B i BT LRCER AR
receive consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In B BlaHaETSEER - REBERT -
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see Note MEERFENSERER (RIFE3K) - &
3(k)). Contract liability is disclosed as receipts in advance in the consolidated R BEEGE VMR R T 1R TR ES B
statement of financial position. B

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net HEEFPZE—AOME - TUEIFEL
contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and BEFFEHNBERE— BEHEeHMS -
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis. THEGHNZEHNEERANBETSRF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(n) Inventories

(0

(ii)

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending for
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory (Note 3(n)(i)), property, plant and
equipment (Note 3(g)) or intangible assets (Note 3(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the group
incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised
when incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in
a future reporting period and the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used to provide goods or
services in the future; and are expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only because the group entered into
the contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors). Other costs
of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory, property,
plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are recognised to
the extent that the carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds
the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or services to which the asset
relates, less (i) any costs that relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out in Note 3(u).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that
is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 27 for further information about the Group’s accounting for
trade receivables and Note 3(l) for a description of the Group’s impairment

policies.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks with original

maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

(q) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction, net

of tax, from the proceed.

(r) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not

due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(s) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax

is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the places/
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For investment property measured using the fair value model in
accordance with the accounting policy above, the measurement of
the related deferred tax liability or asset reflects the tax consequences
of recovering the carrying amount of the investment property entirely
through sale, unless the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average tax
rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of the periods in
which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an estimation of (1)
when the existing temporary differences will reverse and (2) the amount
of future taxable profit in those years. The estimate of future taxable
profit includes:

— income or loss excluding reversals of temporary differences; and

— reversals of existing temporary differences.
Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. TEEFHE®

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial
guarantee contract

(i

(ii)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the
contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.

Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. TEEFTHE®

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial

guarantee contract (Continued)
(ifi) Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer (or
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with ECL under HKFRS 9 and the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee period.

(u) Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of IT products and contracts for the IT
services.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a 5-step
process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. lIdentifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the
various performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts collected
on behalf of third parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(u) WATERE (8)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the
Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised goods
or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition policies
are as follows:

(i) Sales of goods and rendering of services

Revenue from the sale of goods for a fixed fee is recognised when (or
as) the Group transfers control of the assets to the customer.

For stand-alone sales of goods that are neither customised by the
Group nor subject to significant integration services, control transfers at
the point in time when the customer takes undisputed delivery of the
goods.

When such items are either customised or sold together with significant
integration services, the goods and services represent a single combined
performance obligation over which control is considered to transfer
over time. This is because the combined product is unique to each
customer (has no alternative use) and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for the work completed to date. Revenue for these
performance obligations is recognised over time as the customisation
or integration work is performed, using the cost-to-cost method to
estimate progress towards completion. As costs are generally incurred
uniformly as the work progresses and are considered to be proportionate
to the entity’s performance, the cost-to-cost method provides a faithful
depiction of the transfer of goods and services to the customer.
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Installation service

For sales of goods together with installation service, where the
installation is simple and does not include an integration service and
could be performed by another party, such installation is accounted
for as a separate performance obligation. In this case, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on the
stand-alone selling prices. Where these are not directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus margin. For sales of
goods, control transfers at the point in time when the customer takes
undisputed delivery of the goods. Where the installation is complex
and goods or services are highly interdependent or interrelated (i.e. the
sales of goods are significantly affected by the successful installation
services in the contract), the installation and goods or services are not
separately identifiable and revenue is recognised upon completion of
the installation.

Maintenance service

The Group enters into fixed price maintenance contracts with its
customers. Customers are required to pay in advance and the relevant
payment due dates are specified in each contract. Revenue is recognised
over time based on the maintenance service period.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Finance income

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest income
over the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of return of the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(v) Retirement benefit costs (v) BIRERIEA
The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF rEERFEEEREE SN —HRESH
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all 2l [(aEesEl]) REMRERFETE -
qualifying employees. The MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory RIERFTEI IR ST FE+ = AIRER
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made MATEREHIFRT - HERDVIZEEEXRF &
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged ZE—BASLEE - WHIRERESEZ
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable RAESZNRRGEBRERTPHR - @Ee
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF STEIREMAERAGTEZ BEHETAE
Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans are held 2 EEeHE  BAKEEESRFW ° &
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. B RsRIE® R & R E M R E @ AET B4t
The Group’s contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed & HHRE2ERHEERE ©
into the MPF Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit
plans.

(w) Borrowing costs (w) fEE R
Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred. EERAREERF Y o

(x) Share-based payment (x) URBAER I 2FIE
The fair value of services received were determined by reference to the fair RIS 2 A ABETIZZERE L A BAm
value of shares and share options granted at the grant date and expensed RERNDEBEREZ AAEBEMERE - LE
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an expense BOERBEBEN S - SR 2R R
in full at the grant date when the shares and share options granted vest ARBEZENERE - AIAMR L B BRS8N - I
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment R st A MBS (LARR ) /5 20 2 9 8
reserve). #) -
At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of REHRE - REBEFTEHEHRK KRS
shares and share options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of B2 Bt KRB B 2 {5 o fhETEER
the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised BB (INE) 2 BN R BRRER - I
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding H AR D AER S N EEELAEAZE -
adjustment to share-based payment reserve.
At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously BERAEREITER - BARERERER ER
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. ZHREBEBRERNDHER CHBERE -
After vesting date, when the shares or share options are forfeited after B IR SRR B B 1R R SR fE
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount BEDARTTEE « RAE R AR AR AT
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to HEER S HHERERE AT -

retained earnings.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(y) Leases

(i) The Group as a lessee

Definition of lease

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract,
that conveys the right to use an identified asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets
three key evaluations which are whether:

e the contracts contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly
identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at
the time the asset is made available to the Group;

e the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of
use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract;
and

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use. The Group assess whether it has
the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

For leases of office premises, staff quarter and computer equipment
in which the Group is a lessee, the Group elects not to separate non-
lease components and instead accounts for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability on the consolidated statement of financial position.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred
by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made
in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any lease incentives
received).

While the Group’s land and buildings presented in property, plant and
equipment are carried at revaluation model, the Group has elected not
to apply revaluation model to right-of-use office premises held by the
Group as the Group exercises its judgements and determines that it is a
separate class of asset apart from the land and buildings which is held
for own use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(y) HE®)
(i) XEBEBFRBA

(y) Leases (Continued)

(i) The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (Continued)

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis
from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease term. The
Group also assesses the right-of-use assets for impairment when such
indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at
the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available
or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are
made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable payments based on an
index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payment of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for lease
payments made and increased for interest cost on the lease liability. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in
the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use
asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, the payments in relation to these leases are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

On the consolidated statement of financial position, right-of-use assets
have been included in property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities
have been presented separately.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(y) Leases (Continued)

(ii) The Group as a lessor
Assets leased out under finance leases as the lessor

When assets are leased out under finance leases, the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred out to customers. When assets are leased
out under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments is
recognised as a receivable.

(z) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grants are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that compensate the Group for staff cost incurred are
set-off with relevant staff costs included in the respective line item of “cost
of services rendered”, “selling expenses” and “administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(aa)Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in the year
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

(ab)Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEBE =

(Continued)

(ab)Related parties (Continued) (ab)BAEA L (1)
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions applies: b) EEFARE ﬁaI[ﬁ THE(AT R - Bl
HAZRER [B75

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which (1) %&E i%EﬁiZ!KEI SR —SE KB
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related NI SN -=PNS DA E AL )
to the others). B ﬂﬁlﬂ:?ﬁﬁ ) o

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or 2 —EERBARS —EBHE A
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the BERE (RS —BRMEREET
other entity is a member). KB RBIZHEARHEE RS

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. G MEEBHAR-—F=F2z8%t

E

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is 4 —HERBRE=-"FTERZE6&D

an associate of the third entity. ¥ ME—BEBRRE=ZSERZ
i YNCI

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of (5) BERANSENHEASEFHEEL

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group. EEIIE S TSR 2 SRR A
2l -

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (6) EEEXZ (a)THFTIMA TIEHI sk K EIE
(a). il o

(7) A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence over the entity (7) R@MIBRTLA THEREEE AR
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or L AER(KERBZIRAA) 2E
of a parent of the entity). ZEEEEKE -

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides (8) ZEEIEMBER ZEMKER
key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the AR E EBAREFEBIENF
parent of the reporting entity. RIEFZEIBABREY -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who EALZERIERZERR ZRIENA
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their BIANTHIZZATHEZKEKE °

dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's

accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant effect

on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

(i) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

year in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and certain
tax losses are recognised as management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in which such estimate

is changed.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Provision for impairment of trade receivables within the scope of ECL

under HKFRS 9

The provisioning policy for trade receivables of the Group is based
on the evaluation of the risk of default and the expected loss rate.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, which include the current
creditworthiness, the past collection history, the realisation of any
repayment pattern promised as well as forward-looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period. Details of which are as set out in Note
6(b). As at 31st December 2021, the aggregate carrying amounts of
trade receivables amounted to HK$171,478,000 (net of ECL allowance
of HK$8,483,000) (2020: HK$240,472,000 (net of ECL allowance of

HK$7,646,000)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. E K55 R A B
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(u), the Group
uses the cost-to-cost method to estimate progress towards completion
for revenue recognised over time. The progress is measured by reference
to the actual costs incurred up to the reporting date as a percentage of
total estimated costs of completion. When the outcome of a contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it will be probably recoverable.

Valuation of investment properties, land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
values estimated. In making its estimates, the Group considers the
information from the valuations of investment properties and land and
buildings performed by external professional valuers by using the market
comparison approach. The market comparison approach is referenced
to recent sale price of comparable properties on a price per square foot
basis, adjusted for a discount specific to the quality and floor of the
Group's buildings compared to the recent sales.

Had the Group used different valuation techniques, the fair value of the
investment properties and land and buildings would be different and
thus may have an impact to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31st December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group's land
and buildings and investment properties carried at revalued amount/
fair value were HK$281,700,000 (2020: HK$281,700,000) and
HK$54,300,000 (2020: HK$54,300,000) respectively.

Estimated impairment of interest in an unlisted associate

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

(b) EETAEMREZENRR (&)

(ii)

(iir)

(iv)

WA TETR

REMI T3 ATt 2 SRR - AEH
RARAOEA BT E 8 m IR R
ZTERREE RERBER RS 2 Yas o 5T
THPI2ZBRERRAILIEEEZER
BRANME e T2 [ AHARR AR 2 B 0 Le &t
BT AN AN ZERTEENUA
FEAMEE - WEEREHNRAREER
HigrIge a2 1550 T REERR

REYXE T RETZI5E

N

NABEZFRERERBUEE MEM
BHNERMIZH ZRITERS - W5k
ZHRBEN  AEEBSILSBE T
SRz AABEMGFTEER o RMEHE
ST - ANERE E B SN H R A ERDIA
TIGLEOREITZIREY R - T RiE
FHEMSFEN - MSLBET2E &K
AL EMEG T TR HEERME
T WIRAKENEEERGEIHEEL
EVEHTINHEE

A A AV E AR 2 BT - A
% THWREFZAREEBEAMN
A A AR T RS -

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—0 K&
B REFUARBEYEIRE RN
B AREEIEKEZEEED
#281,700,0007%8 ;o ( = T = T 4 :
281,700,000 % 7T ) K 54,300,0007% JT
(ZZ=—Z4F : 54,300,000/87T) °
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. E KT R H B )

JU DG EM ENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv) Estimated impairment of interest in an unlisted associate (Continued)

The value in use was determined based on the estimated present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
unlisted group, namely i-Sprint Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
("i-Sprint Group”), including cash flows from the operations of i-Sprint
Group and estimated terminal value. Based on the assessment, the
recoverable amount of i-Sprint Group is higher than its carrying amount.
Hence, no impairment loss (2020: Nil) on the interests in i-Sprint Group
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during
the year ended 31st December 2021.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be

(b) HEFFEMHREEZERIE (&)
(iv) —FIIE | A TR 2 1A (4

Al £ A B 8 79 & R i-Sprint Holdings
Limited } E B 8 A &) (£E 78 & [i-Sprint
SEDEHEEZAGFRARRERE
(BEISpint S EEBKLEENR S
mERRREE) 2 EAREMEE °
RIFFAE - i-Sprint EE R ATIRE & 3B =
REREE - Bt - RBE-T=—F
TZA=T—RHILFE  REsEEER
B i-Sprint &£ B = R RE R ©
(ZZ=TF : &\)

EXEREE

AEEERABADSRANEE 2 ERAEN

able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders SELE - WRRBLERRERTE - KRS8
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. AR 2 B3R -

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors of the Company prepare the annual budget taking into
account of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed annual budget, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management of the
Group, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues, bank borrowings and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

As at 31st December 2021, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 5.1% (2020:
6.7%), which was calculated as follows:

AEBZ ERNEEBRIERERAARBARTZ
R WHEBHRTRA - RERRERIIEK
ZER AR A RSB RAWE -

ARABESTEHRTEEARER - (ERIRFTEP
—R ARREFEBRLESBETRAEFER
B BB ZFERE  ARREEEEE
ARA R B REEEAER 2B - RIEAEH
BEEZEE  ARERBBXMNBE - BITH
et RITEERBORH REERERSTEH
EREERBEY - LN TFEERENEE

R-ZE-_—F+_A=+—H ' AEEZREH
YHERESLL R AB51% (ZE-FF 1 6.7%) ' b
BRI ETE

2021 2020

—E-—F T -TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHT

Bank borrowings RITEE 101,099 145,938
Equity attributable to equity holders RATRARFEE AEIGER

of the Company 1,990,325 2,193,793

Debt-to-equity ratio HBETS B LR 5.1% 6.7%

There are no changes on the Group’s approach to capital risk management
during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. ¥EMERER X REER

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

(a) Market risk

0]

(ir)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and United
States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange exposure to USD of the Group
will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR Government”)
to peg the HKD to the USD remains in effect. There was no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, and therefore no related
hedging financial instrument was applied during the years ended 31st
December 2021 and 2020.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation in relations to variable interest rate on bank balances and
bank borrowings. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments including bank
balances and bank borrowings, at the reporting date and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments that
have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31st
December 2021 would increase/decrease by approximately HK$167,000
(2020: decrease/increase by approximately HK$4,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank borrowings and bank balances.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank balances and cash, trade receivables, contract
assets, other receivables and deposits and finance lease receivables.

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. The Group’s policy is to deal
only with credit worthy counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a credit worthiness assessment by the credit control
department. When considered appropriate, customers may be requested to
provide proof as to their financial position. Where available at reasonable
cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers are obtained and
used. Customers who are not considered creditworthy are required to
pay in advance or on delivery of goods. Payment record of customers is
closely monitored. It is not the Group’s policy to request collateral from its
customers.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating
e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to
the debtors’ ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the
debtors;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the
same debtors; and

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of
the debtors, including changes in the payment status of debtors and
changes in the operating results of the debtors.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. I RAKREE R A AEES
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) B

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) SERR (&)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets using a provisional matrix.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that receivables with credit
terms are made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the counterparties.
The credit period granted to the customers and the credit quality of
these customers are assessed, which takes into account their financial
position, past experience and available forward-looking information. The
management would make periodic collective and individual assessment
on the recoverability of trade receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, current external information and forward-looking
information. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue receivables.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates
for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

ECL loss rates are based on past actual loss experience. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

== L =
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. B EREE R~ A EEGT
=L -
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) = (@)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERM (&)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) JERE ZHER & #EE (B8)
There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to trade HRAEE2EFHERE - ERKE SR
receivables as the Group has large number of customers. FAENEERENEERRE
For trade receivables and contract assets, ECL allowance as at 31st REZEZ—FR T ZTFF+_A="1—
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: B BRESRERANEENTESREES
BRENT
Trade receivables Contract assets
EWES7HE ENEE
Weighted Weighted
-average ECL -average ECL
ECL rate Gross  allowance ECL rate Gross allowance
ETHES BEEE METHES BHEE
FEERE “Em FRRE CEFEZR am  FERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THER THER TET
At 31st December 2021 R-E-—-5+-A=t+-H
Collective assessment B
— Current to 1 year past due -HHEel—F 0% 171,059 452 0% 285,223 343
— 1-2 years past due - BH-EmE 27% 1,195 324 - - -
— Over 2 years past due - BB AME 100% 1,435 1,435 - - -
Individual assessment (&R 100% 6,272 6,272 100% 504 504
179,961 8,483 285,727 847
At 31st December 2020 RZZZZFE+-A=+—H
Collective assessment BEELT A
—Current to 1 year past due - B —4F 1% 240,148 2,604 0% 269,003 =
—1-2 years past due - B —EmF 21% 506 105 = = =
— Over 2 years past due - B HARR B 100% 1,524 1,524 = = =
Individual assessment AR 57% 5,940 3,413 = = =
248,118 7,646 269,003 -
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6. ¥EMERER X REER

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(9]

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include finance lease receivables,
other receivables and deposits and bank balances and cash.

The Group applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime ECL for
finance lease receivables that results from transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 16. Based on individual assessment, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement records, past experience
and available forward-looking information. Management believes that the
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other receivable balance is not
significant. Besides, management is of opinion that there is no significant
increase in credit risk on these other receivables and deposits since initial
recognition as the risk of default is low after considering the factors above.

While bank balances and cash are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the Group only places deposits in reputable banks
and financial institutions, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board,
which has built a liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The Group relies on its operating cash flows as a
significant source of liquidity.

The table below shows the Group’s financial liabilities analysing into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

6. ¥BEMEER D REER

==NG-)

(c)

AEMERRE (®)

On demand Over 1 year

or within  but within

1 year 5 years Carrying
BRERY, BR—F Total amount
R—FER EREFER st IREE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET TET FET

At 31st December 2021 R-ZE-_—-%+=-A=+—H

Non-derivative financial liabilities PTETESMEE

Trade payables FERTE 55038 258,508 - 258,508 258,508
Other payables and accruals HE b E R R E A 156,738 - 156,738 156,738
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (H5) 101,099 - 101,099 101,099
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,292 6,314 12,606 12,132
522,637 6,314 528,951 528,477

At 31st December 2020 RZZE=ZF+-_A=+—H

Non-derivative financial liabilities AT ESREE
Trade payables FERTE 55038 282,557 - 282,557 282,557
Other payables and accruals EAb BRI R IEET &R 171,511 = 171,511 171,511
Bank borrowings (Note) IRITIEE (M) 145,938 = 145,938 145,938
Lease liabilities HEBE 5,498 1,308 6,806 6,436
605,504 1,308 606,812 606,442
Note: ffsT -

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand
or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31st December 2021,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of such bank borrowings amounted to
HK$101,099,000 (2020: HK$145,938,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the banking facilities.

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank borrowings with
repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
banking facilities. The amounts include interest payment computed using contractual
rates.

Bt iR ESRE R R IR TERE LR BB S
et A [BRERSE R —F R OEMBEER - B
—T-—F+-A=1+—H8  ZSHRITEZRNR
BLIR NS 4856 5101,099,00058 7T (ZE T4 :
145,938,000 47T ) ° & & 2| AN & B 59 B ik -
AN R E B RITA] BT BB 7 Bk AR
B ARREFE - ZERITERGRER
TREZ EERMERETEE AHEN -

T RBL AP T B SRAE R GRFR A IRIT S R IR R
TTRVE P TR 15 BV E SR B B R E R 0 AT
ZECHEBERAAHNRFTENTIBR

Ondemand  Over 1year Over 2 years
or within but within but within
1 year 2 years 5 years
BEERR BB—F BIBWE Total
R—FR ERMFER BREFR Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
At 31st December 2021 R=-E-_—$+=-A=+-—H
Bank borrowings RITIEE 47,170 45,957 11,300 104,427
At 31st December 2020 RZZE-_ZTF+_A=+—8H
Bank borrowings RITEE 48,383 47,171 57,257 152,811
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement

Financial instruments and non-financial assets measured at fair value

in the consolidated statement of financial position are categorised into
the three level fair value hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value
Measurement”:

0

Level 1: Fair value measured only using level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement dates.

Level 2: Fair value measured using level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet with Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

6. ¥EMERER X REER

=

B (&)

(d) AREETE
REFEFBARARANUAAABEFEZ S/
TARFEREE  DA=EAREBEREX
(EERBEBMBRELENE13R[AARE
BEfE]) :

o FE:UE-—EBABAEZANE
B ALEREESABEREREE
EMEHRRABRMETE

o FRE:UE_EBRABEAEZANE
B AEHABEZAEREL RIS —
EBRAE  BERAELMER AL
RZBE - THEBRZBABRLET
SHBBAHELE ZBAE -

o FZE: ERBEXRABZTIEEHK
BEEZRABNAEZRAEE -

() TABERCHBREZASIEE

ok

At 31st December 2021
R-B=——#+=A=+—8

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
=] BB =B wEt
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT THT THET THETL
Recurring fair value measurement && M A R EEE
Financial asset at FVOCI RAABEZEREMEZME
WEFIRNEREE
Equity investment (Note 24) ARAEIE & (Mf3E 24) - - - -
At 31st December 2020
R-ZB_TF+_H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E FEE B= #aEt
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
Recurring fair value measurement &EE A ABEFE
Financial asset at FVOCI RAARBEEBHEMEZE
WEFIRNERMEE
Equity investment (Note 24) AR A% & (PiaE24) = 598 = 598

As at 31st December 2020, the fair value of equity investment was
determined by using the adjusted net assets value method. The effects
of unobservable inputs are not significant for equity investment.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, there were no transfers
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2020: Nil).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial
assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

RZZEZTF+A=+—H ' RE&
BZANBERAEEARFELE
E o N BRHABBRYMER ST E
BEAME-

EZF-—F+ZA=+—HLHF
B B F_ENE-EzEITE

EER/NGEEMBIMRRERA - Rt S
MEEMTRAEBZREELOUARE
=10
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(if) Fair value of non-financial assets

The following table presents the Group’s properties measured at fair
value on a recurring basis categorised into the three level fair value
hierarchies:

6. HBERERER LD

N S EERT

- {C)
(d) X AREEE @)

(i) FEHEELTIEE

TREJNAEBREFEELEARNAE
BifBzW%  HENAABEN=E
=N

At 31st December 2021

R-B=—-F+=-HA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E BT £=E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value measurement EE M QA R EETE
Investment properties (Note 21) wEMZE (H5E21) - - 54,300 54,300
Land and buildings (Note 20) T A2 F (FfaE 20) - - 281,700 281,700
- - 336,000 336,000
At 31st December 2020
RZZEZZF+-_A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
o F[E EF=E wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FABT
Recurring fair value measurement &EH A ABEFE
Investment properties (Note 21) WA (K3E21) - - 54,300 54,300
Land and buildings (Note 20) + 3 R AEF (K5 20) - - 281,700 281,700
- - 336,000 336,000

The Group’s investment properties and land and buildings were stated at
valuations made at 31st December 2021 and 2020 by an independent
professional valuer at market value basis which is determined by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar
properties.

The Group’s management reviews the valuation performed by the
independent valuer for the financial reporting purposes. Discussion of
valuation processes and results are held at least once every year, which
is in line with the Group’s annual reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

The valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs of the fair

6.

BEEREERAAEBE
= (a)
(d) DAREEE E)

(i) 2 BEEREE ()

REMER L HRETRABENMGE

value of investment properties and land and buildings are as follows:

Valuation techniques

fEERR

FHEREETAESRRABIENT

Unobservable input Range
TAEREARE BiBIEE

Investment properties
— Hong Kong
REME
-&B

Land and buildings
— Hong Kong

T RIEF
-&E

The fair value of investment properties and land and buildings located
in Hong Kong is determined using market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price per
square foot basis, adjusted for a discount specific to the quality and
floor of the Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales of similar
properties. Higher discount on quality of the buildings will result in a
lower fair value measurement.

Market comparison approach

TS EVE

Market comparison approach

[E 124297

Discount on quality of the buildings 9% to 12%
(2020: 7% to 12%)
9% £ 12%

(ZB-ZF 7% ZE12%)

BTEENE

Discount on quality of the buildings 9% to 12%
(2020: 7% to 12%)
9% £ 12%

—ECTF 7% E12%)

BFEEIE

UREBEZRENERLHRETZA
ABETEATSLEE2ERFARG
B LLEMEESF I R ZHEERT
BE  URAKBMEEES(ELAE -
YELENR SR TEHEENR
REEME -

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the Group’s investment RARBEBIE=EBRNSENIER
properties and land and buildings classified within level 3 of the fair BEMEL L RIEFTEMEYSEN
value hierarchy is as follows: T:
Investment Land and
properties buildings Total
REWHE T REF #Et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET TR
At 1st January 2020 R-ZE_TF—H—H 55,800 290,100 345,900
Depreciation charge e - (10,549) (10,549)
Fair value loss RABEER (1,500) - (1,500)
Revaluation surplus EHEAR - 2,149 2,149
At 31st December 2020 R=-Z-TF+=-H=+-—H
and 1st January 2021 kR==F=—-%—-HA—H 54,300 281,700 336,000
Depreciation charge e - (10,630) (10,630)
Revaluation surplus BHRAR - 10,630 10,630
At 31st December 2021 RZZE=-—F+=-A=+—H 54,300 281,700 336,000
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

Fair value loss of investment properties is recognised under line item “fair
value loss on investment properties” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Revaluation surplus of land and buildings are recognised under line
item “revaluation surplus of land and buildings” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and included under “property
revaluation reserve”.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, there were no transfers
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2020: Nil).

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

6. ¥BEMEER D REER

=
==NG-)

(d) AREEFE @)

(i) HFEeMEENLIEEE)

WEMENANBEBENRABER
W TREMEZ ANBEEE] BB
R ©

T RET 2 EMBRNES 2 HKE
REM [MEEGFHE] BB TR -

E_E_—F+-_A=+—HItF
B B F_EBRE-EZEITE
B (S TF &) o

7. RAR D EBBER

The Group's revenue is analysed as follows: REBERBRASTT :

2021 2020
—B-—F —ECTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Continuing operations BEREXR
Sales of goods HEEM 1,051,860 1,035,415
Revenue from service contracts R E RIS E £ .2 WA 997,760 953,434
2,049,620 1,988,849

The executive directors have been identified as the chief operating decision
maker. The executive directors have reviewed the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources. The executive directors
have determined the operating segments based on the Group's internal
reporting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The Group is currently organised into two (2020: two) operating divisions —
Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and Information Technology
Services (“IT Services”). These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information to the chief operating decision maker. The
business nature of each segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products

Being the business of information technology in supplying of information
technology and associated products.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems integration,
software and consulting services, engineering support for products and
solutions and managed services. The Group's IT services segment included
the Group’s operations in United States of America (the “US") through its

7. AR DEBER =)

AEEAME(CTFF - mE) LEABPIEK
- BB E S (fﬁaﬂﬂ&%uﬂ) R ERRHAR
ﬁ%(fﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁzﬂﬁ%ﬁ%) o LAEFIRAKE 2 HE

ENHMERTEER] E/?%ﬁ%zﬁ/ﬁ o BfED
ﬁBZ%i% MEE BT

AN ER

BN AE A MBHRE KRR G 2 A A
7& o

AP R

EfR R AR - S RERRT - EmRER
FRZIBXERERRE 2 EMABHRER -
AEEE ARS8 211K E 2 7 Grid

Dynamics International, Inc (I Grid Dynamics) &

previous subsidiaries, Grid Dynamics International, Inc (“Grid Dynamics”) and H B A 7 ([Grid Dynamics &£ & |) R EFIER &
%H(F%HJ)Z%% F REBRE AR RS
DERz —EEBHEH - TRABEST =T
i‘f‘fﬁ:ﬂ-*ﬁtig DERIRI IR E T
(MtzE17) »

its subsidiaries, (“Grid Dynamics Group”), which was a significant geographical
component of the IT service segment and classified as discontinued operation
upon disposal (Note 17) during the year ended 31st December 2020.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below: ZEXEB L DEERZHNAT ¢

Year ended 31st December 2021 BE-_Z-_—F+=-A=1+—HLEFE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

BEREER RIS

IT Products IT Services Total IT Services

EAREER EMNEERE wir EMBERE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHERT FHER FHER

Revenue from external customers REIINBEP ZWA 1,051,860 997,760 2,049,620 -

Intersegment revenue BRI A 2,474 18,875 21,349 -

Segment revenue HEBUEA 1,054,334 1,016,635 2,070,969 -

Reportable segment profit A& 7 BB A 91,782 45,838 137,620 -

Segment depreciation DEBITE 2,514 10,059 12,573 -
Additions to property, NEWE

plant and equipment* e 135 6,811 6,946 -

* BRERRIEREZRENE  BERKHEHR
14,542,000 87T

* Additions to property, plant and equipment of HK$14,542,000 were related to
unallocated assets.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HZE =T =—

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Year ended 31st December 2020

FH—RA=t—RHLLFE

7. WA R D EBER =)

HE_Z-_ZEF+-_A=1+—HIFE

Discontinued

operations

(Note)

Continuing operations BRI a7

FHEIS 2 %75 (F5E)

IT Products IT Services Total IT Services

BB ER EARHRRS BEr ARBHRRE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET FHBT FAET

Revenue from external customers KEINBES ZUA 1,035,415 953,434 1,988,849 166,610

Intersegment revenue pan= il ON 2,698 23,753 26,451 -

Segment revenue 2 EBUTA 1,038,113 977,187 2,015,300 166,610

Reportable segment profit AJ¥RE 5 B s A 76,413 99,476 175,889 25,216

Segment depreciation DEPITE 2,492 9,041 11,533 1,622

Segment amortisation B = = = 2,364
Additions to property, NEWE -

plant and equipment * R R R 12 6,196 6,208 1,852

Additions to intangible assets REEFAE - - - 3,587

* Additions to property, plant and equipment of HK$8,136,000 were related to

unallocated assets.

Note: For the period from 1st January 2020 to 5th March 2020.

The Group's assets and liabilities by reportable segments as at reporting dates are

presented below:

As at 31st December 2021

*

M EE=

BERRDEEEZRENE  BERR

8,136,000 & 7T °

LEEARS -

AEERHRBIEA @S

E5T -

T_FF-H-HEZ

R-B-—-f+=-A=1t—H

T-TF=AAAH

DB EEREE

B

IT Products IT Services Total

BN EMR BB R et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET FET

Reportable segment assets AIREDHEE 376,687 329,333 706,020

Reportable segment liabilities AIHRED AR 306,208 194,421 500,629
As at 31st December 2020 RZZB=ZF+=-_A=+—H

IT Products IT Services Total

BB ER BRI HET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHIT FHETT FHET

Reportable segment assets ARESHEE 368,092 368,137 736,229

Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 408,428 201,573 610,001

146  Annual Report 2021 &R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R ZHE R )

(Continued)
(a) Segment accounting policies (a) DEPEFHBEER
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the AI¥RE D EBFTER A Y& ST IR T BT 5 3(e)
Group's accounting policies described in Note 3(e). Performance is measured Frifi AR R B R T ECRAAR o RIFBIIREE
based on segment profit that is used by the chief operating decision BRERRERARDIRERRTE D EBRIR
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment D BaFETE - EHRAZ TR
performance. Income tax expense is not allocated to reportable segments. WEDES ©
The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated AEENKA - B - BERBENES
based on the operations of the segments. HIFEBEEDTC -
Reportable segment profit is profit before income tax, excluding unallocated WwEDEER N BRATEHAIRES - 6
other income, unallocated other loss, net, share of results of associates, %% AEEMA « RO BEEMFEE - &
unallocated depreciation for property, plant and equipment that are used for HEEE N RIEE  RETEDEEA Y -
all segments, fair value loss on revaluation of investment properties, finance B RSEE 2 RO E - EEIREMES
costs and unallocated corporate expenses (mainly include staff costs and AAEEEE UK EARBHERE RS
other general administrative expenses) of the head office. RARRX (EEBFEE TRAKREM—K
TREAR) -
Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred income WMEDIHEETBIBEE N AR R
tax assets, tax recoverable, bank balances and cash and unallocated Lﬁﬁ %Rﬁ? AT EIFIR « RITIFRRIER
corporate assets (mainly include property, plant and equipment and ERRHABEAREE(FEBRFEME DL
investment properties that are used by all segments, prepayments, deposits, ﬁﬁZ%% ﬁ%& SEARKREYE - FaRt
other receivables and equity investment). TIE - Ee - A ENGRIE RARRERE) -
Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities, deferred Tiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ &?‘Eﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ SHAasE -
income tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities, which mainly BIEMBHRABRRSEAFTABE(ZES
include lease liabilities, accrued charges of the head office and bank EHEBE - %@#ﬂ#%EZ%ﬁ%}ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%
borrowings. B o
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIHEZ2T WA - Bix - BEER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities BEMNHER
Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are AREZAHWA - B BERBEEAR
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as SR EERBEERBAEHEROT
follows:
Continuing operations BHEREER 2021 2020
Revenue 'ON —E=—-F —ECTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment revenue RIS D EBULA 2,070,969 2,015,300
Elimination of intersegment revenue HiEE 7 B A (21,349) (26,451)
Revenue per consolidated statement of REREBmERYIH
profit or loss FIdA 2,049,620 1,988,849

IR Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 R BB R AR 147



148

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT RAR M

II'/T

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

7. WA R D EBER =)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIHE 2D WA - B - BER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHE®
Discontinued operations HIbREER 2021 2020
Revenue 'ON —EZ-F ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Reportable segment revenue AR E D HBUA - 166,610
Elimination of intersegment revenue HEH 2 PRI - =
Revenue per analysis of results from NSl P *ﬁﬁ‘]i&
discontinued operations (Note 17(a)(i)) B A (FF3E 17 () () - 166,610
Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of profit mark- 73 BB UL AFZ B 2 hn K ) B o
up.
Continuing operations HEREER 2021 2020
Profit or loss B —E—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Reportable segment profit ﬂiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ/ﬁﬂ 137,620 175,889
Unallocated amounts: ROBLHKIE
Unallocated other income KRB ﬁfﬁl”ﬁl?\ 3,337 4,852
Unallocated other loss, net RO BLEMFEIE (20,838) (3,362)
Fair value loss on investment properties BEREMEZ
NAEEERE - (1,500)
Unallocated depreciation ROBITE (10,940) (10,135)
Share of results of associates EIEEEE A RIESE (30,427) (63,480)
Finance costs RS R AR (3,956) (8,520)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAMATFX (44,887) (40,355)
Profit before income tax per consolidated RERE B RER VIR
statement of profit or loss R PTG A AT A 29,909 53,389
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R ZHE R )

(Continued)

(b) AIHEZDEBBA - B - BER

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHERE®
Discontinued operations bR 2021 2020
Profit or loss B —B-—f ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment profit A ¥RE 5 B A - 25,216
Unallocated amounts: ROERIA :
Unallocated other income RAOEMUA - 317
Unallocated other loss, net ROBLEMFEE - (381)
Unallocated depreciation RAOMITE - 91)
Finance costs TSR AR - (8)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBARFE - (44,821)
Loss before income tax per analysis TR B 275 2 SEIE DTSR
of results from discontinued operations HIBR TS TR R
(Note 17(a)(i)) (MIsE17 (a) () - (19,768)
Assets BE 2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Reportable segment assets ARESHEE 706,020 736,229
Unallocated assets: ROBEE :
Interests in associates kNSl 1,191,768 1,769,196
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTHE E 1,293 513
Tax recoverable AT el A I8 12,415 7,939
Bank balances and cash WRITHFERRIRE 603,947 370,521
Unallocated corporate assets RAOMAREE 371,234 363,599
Total assets per consolidated statement RERE ISR RS
of financial position BERTE 2,886,677 3,247,997
Liabilities afE 2021 2020
B —TTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Reportable segment liabilities AHREDHBEE 500,629 610,001
Unallocated liabilities: ROBALE :
Current income tax liabilities BVERFTIS T & fE 2,768 4,247
Deferred income tax liabilities RSB E 169,209 203,886
Unallocated corporate liabilities V2N /NCTH=Lr= 223,746 236,070
Total liabilities per consolidated statement — W4R& BIFSIIROR KT ERA
of financial position BERE 896,352 1,054,204
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 #;

E_T_—HF+_A=1+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following table sets out information about the geographical segment

location of the Group's revenue from external customers and its non-current

assets (other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets).

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at which

the services were provided or the goods were delivered. The geographical

location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset in the case of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties, the location of the operations to which they are allocated in the
case of intangible assets and the location of operations in case of interests

in associates.

7. WA R D EBER =)

(b) AIHEZDEBRA - B - BER
BENHR@®

TRESIBEAREERBINIES 2 WA
ERBEE(ERMIAREEMSRHEER
SN ZHBRAENE - BP 2R ETHE
REAEREREHE LT 2 A - 1 E
BERDEECHBLEMNS @ W% BE
BB ENEDRBEZEEZENMZ R
i BIPBEEREE RO BREBZAE
My~ TR A R B E TS A ©

Place of domicile Fricits Revenue from external customers
REIMPEE ZBA
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RS RIS ER
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETF —E--F ZTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FExT FHET
Hong Kong B 1,948,100 1,846,011 - =
us e - - - 166,610
Mainland China LETPN 3,531 3,437 - -
Macau SERFT 37,841 50,195 - -
Thailand e 42,948 73,947 - -
Taiwan =) 17,200 15,259 - -
2,049,620 1,988,849 - 166,610
Place of domicile FriEis Specified non-current assets
EEERBEE

2021 2020
—EZ-F —ECTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong BE 355,246 349,294
us E3E 1,172,303 1,749,392
Singapore i 18,736 19,055
Mainland China e N 4,816 805
Macau SRFY 1,183 1,797
Thailand = 124 308
Taiwan B 79 556
1,552,487 2,121,207
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

7. AR DEBER =)

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,

(c)

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Information about major customers from continuing operations

The Group has one customer with whom transaction exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenue from continuing operations amounted to approximately
HK$294,697,000 during the year ended 31st December 2021 (2020:
HK$277,738,000). The revenue attributable to IT Products segment
and IT Services segment amounted to approximately HK$169,058,000
(2020: HK$177,007,000) and HK$125,639,000 (2020: HK$100,731,000)
respectively during the year ended 31st December 2021.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time
and at a point in time, details of the Group’s timing revenue recognition
during the years ended 31st December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Continuing operations

(b) AIHEZDEBBA - B - BER

(c)

SENHER @)
BRI SR HNEBES BN

HE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HIEF
E AEEE—URFHARZHEBA
AEBZHFEELEEBRANIOSS
%8 #) A HK$294,697,000( — & — T 4 :
HK$277,738,000) - HE T = —F +=
A=+—HBLFE HBEREMBRE
mDHREAB RSB AD A
%) /169,058,000 # jL( = T = & F :
177,007,000 #7T) & 125,639,000 AT (=
T T4 : 100,731,000 B7T) ©

REAFEFEHNZBATE

AEER-BEEIX -BEHEEERX
RISLADTEWA » AREHE—T—_—FR
TEROREF A=+ RIFFEZWAE
BT

Discontinued operations

BREEEER HIEEE T
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EZ—F —EEF —E-—fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FHT FHIT

Timing of revenue recognition Y ARETRRS 25

At a point in time R 1,196,861 1,212,679 - =
Over time — R 852,759 776,170 - 166,610
Revenue from external customers 38 B 4MEER P 2 Uk A 2,049,620 1,988,849 - 166,610

Revenue relates to performance obligation from continuing operations that
are unsatisfied as at 31st December 2021 amounted to HK$1,214,337,000
(2020: HK$1,042,957,000) are expected to be recognised within one to five
years.

R-ZE-—+=-_A=+—RB E#H
SEELEEBATHKBEHNEET Z KA
#1,214,337,000 jt( = T = & &
1,042,957,000) A Tl FEEH A — 2 A F NFE

7 ©
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HAthlx A
2021 2020
—E-—-F —EEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest on bank deposits RITIFRFNE 43 522
Rental income from investment properties REREMFE 2 BEWA
(Note 21) (PfFEE21) 2,425 3,886
Others Hits 1,116 933
3,584 5,341
3 gt § — |
9. OTHER LOSS, NET 9. HithEE1E
2021 2020
e —ToTF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Continuing operations BEKEER
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE&E¥I% « BB K& #E 2 e 98 -
Gain on additional interest in an associate Bh &8N Rl RESME R EE A 2 W 25,909 =
Gain on disposal of partial interest in an associate & H & A Al E9 #am 2 W 129,617 -
Exchange gain/(loss), net & 5 s (&18) 2 /3@ 9 (1,621)
Loss on deemed disposal of partial interest WAL S N RIF D a2 18
in an associate (Note 23) (Pt 23) (176,471) (708)
Waiver of intercompany balances from HEHESE 2 EBADN RIS
the Disposal Group - (1,033)
(20,838) (3,362)

10. FINANCE INCOME

Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial

recognition of finance lease receivables to their fair values.

11.FINANCE COSTS

10. B B U A

MW ASE NI E AT
IR HER BRI IE N -

1. B B B2

EERIARKRETESE

2021 2020
—B-—fF —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Continuing operations BEKEER

Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBEMBEER 530 339
Interest on bank borrowings RITEERE 3,426 5,997

Interest on liability component of AR &S 2 LS
convertible bonds - 2,043
Other interest expenses HiF 2z - 141
3,956 8,520
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 BE=-T=-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

12.PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 12. FRFT S B AR A
2021 2020
B —E-TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Continuing operations BEREER
Profit before income tax is arrived BR TSR AT S A T kR,
at after charging/(crediting): (BT A) F3IEI8
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEET N -
Audit services ZE R
— Current year - REE 2,172 2,553
— Over-provision in respect of prior year - BAFERERE (32) =
Non-audit services IZE RS 1,601 1,274
Depreciation: e
— Property, plant and equipment — owned -V BERSE-HEEE
assets (Note 20) (5 20) 16,708 15,870
— Property, plant and equipment — right-of-use - ¥1% « BE K& #E - FREEE
assets (Note 20) (K% 20) 6,805 5,799
Professional fee related to partial disposal of SRS R AR D R R R S X
an associate 1,640 -
Lease charges: HERS -
— Short term leases - EHHEE 1,236 1,270
ECL allowance of trade receivables (Note 27) FEUE 5308 2 TERE B s a B (FIsE27) 3,768 6,141
Reversal of ECL allowance of trade receivables FEWE 55038 2 TR HA(E B S R B E Rl
(Note 27) (K¥&x27) (2,934) (551)
ECL allowance of contract assets BREE T EEEEEE 847 -
Provision for/(Reversal of provision for) obsolete  BREfFE# S,/ (B EE ) FE
inventories, net 63 (265)
Write off of inventories TFEMH 74 1,226
13.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES BESEARX(TEREES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) <)
2021 2020
—ECF —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Continuing operations BEREER
Salaries and other benefits (Note (a)) e REAMEN (M @) 418,118 346,628
Performance related incentive bonus FIBBRE 2 REITEAL 63,177 47,414
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR D REBE ST 2 B2 241 702
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RNEFETEI R (3 (b))
(Note (b)) 15,534 11,151
497,070 405,895
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

13.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group received government grant
of HK$45,504,000 from the Employment Support Scheme (“ESS"”), which aims to
retain employment and combat COVID-19, under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by
the HKSAR Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to
enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under
the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make redundancies during the
subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the employees.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group received government grants
amounting to HK$524,000 (2020: HK$580,000) from government authorities in
Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan for supporting the Group’s foreign operations.

Total government grants received by the Group during the year ended 31st December
2021 amounting to HK$524,000 (2020: HK$46,084,000), of which HK$246,000
(2020: HK$36,983,000), HK$180,000 (2020: HK$6,704,000) and HK$98,000 (2020:
HK$2,397,000) are offset with staff cost recognised in “cost of service rendered”,
“selling expenses” and “administrative expenses” respectively.

During the years ended 31st December 2021 and 2020, there were no contributions
forfeited by the Group on behalf of its employees who left the plan prior to vesting
fully in such contribution, nor had there been any utilisation of such forfeited
contributions to reduce future contributions. As at 31st December 2021 and 2020, no
forfeited contributions were available for utilisation by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contribution.

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure

B.EEFEAHEX (FTEREESE
<€)

B -

(€)

HE-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HILEFE &K
CSEEEBRRNR I ZRAETETESET
45,504,000 8 T2 E& X FF - EERERERNR
B2019BMRAER - B2 Z BN YA ERMH
B URBIREEWHE 2B - REMHED
A& AR B EREHM AR TETRE
WEFEESHREINEITE -

BHE_T-_—&F+-_A=+—RHILFEEXREEN
ERRBIARE  RPIRAEBRA M ZBTHE
524,000 7T (== — 4 : 580,000/ 7T) * AL
RASERNBEINER 2 B8 -

N5 E TR ER 2 BT # Bh 48 88 & 524,000 8 T (=
T T4 : 46,084,000 7T) + E A 246,000 7T

— & — T4 :36,983,000/8 7T ) + 180,000 T
(ZZ=Z4 :6,704,000;87T) &% 98,0008 7T (=
TZTF :2,397,000757T) 5 RIER [REARF 2
A [SHEER] R I1THER| BRZEIK
ZNIKGH o

HE-ZT-—F tZA=1+—BN=Z=FF
FTZA=T—RHLFE AEERAERRETSE
FENZERZ AR L EMEERKRER - B
RAEFERZERRERIHE D ARKEK - R
T-—F+-A=+—HBM=T=FT F+=A
=+—8 - REBELU T A UARRKIR
BHEFOKFE -

11EEMHNE

Rz ETRA - FECR BRGNS 383 (1) 15 IA
ML AR (BEBEEEMEER) ROIDE 2 BRED

of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: BEEsMEeT

2021 2020

—B-—-F —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

Fees we 525 513
Other emoluments: Hubiig -

Salaries and other benefits e REAMER 2,755 3,474

Performance related incentive bonus FRIBA 2 RENEAL 7,710 52,808

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFEIHEER 18 18

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR 1 A E S 4 2 s 4 447

11,049 57,260

Annual Report 2021 4%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) UVESMWE @
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2020: seven) directors were AARBNHENAM(ZEZZF - L) ESF
as follows: ZHEmT

Year ended 31st December 2021
BE-E-_-S+-A=t-HLEE

Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive  Retirement  share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ~ ®FEBEHZ contributions LR
Fees HeR RERA BIVER  REBEXM Total
Name of director EZEB ik HitEH (MizEa) SRR 2% am

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FEx FEx TER

Executive directors BTEE

Wang Weihang (Chairman) T4m(ERE) 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) TER(1THAH) - 2,755 7,710 18 32 10,515
Non-executive directors FHiTES

Cui Yong ER 55 - - - 9 64

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTEE

Pan Xinrong BN 147 - - - - 147
Deng Jianxin s 147 - - - - 147
Or Siu Ching Rerina RNE 121 - - - - 121

525 2,755 7,110 18 41 11,049
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 BE T -—F+-_A=+—HItFE

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

UBVEEME »

Year ended 31st December 2020
BE-_Z-EE+-A=+-HBILFE

Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive Retirement ~ share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits &AW contributions MR
Fees ek SEEEA RBIVER  RERSA Total
Name of director EELRE e Hit iz (FizEa) IR 53 ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Executive directors HITES
Wang Weihang (Chairman) Figm(ER) 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) T 2B (17HH) - 2,979 52,808 18 464 56,269
Non-executive directors FHTES
Li Wei (Note (b)) FE (M b) 14 495 - - (45) 464
Cui Yong ER 55 - - - 28 83
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Pan Xinrong BN 134 - - - - 134
Deng Jianxin B 141 - - - - 141
Or Siu Ching Rerina TNE 114 - - - = 114
513 3,474 52,808 18 447 57,260
Notes: Bff3E

(@) The performance related incentive bonus are reference to the profit for the year of the

Group.

(b)  Mr. Li Wei resigned as a non-executive director of the Group on 31st March 2020.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, no remuneration has been paid by
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group

and no directors have waived any remuneration (2020: Nil).
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 BE=-T=-—F+-_A=+—HItFE

15.FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included one (2020:
one) director, details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 14 above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2020: four) highest paid individuals for the

BLEBREEHEZEE

FANLERSHLRERFE R (2T _2F:
—R)EF REZMSFBER EXMFE 145
B FNEBIE(ZT-TF : R ZHREH

year were as follows: EEZMEFFBIT

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Salaries and other benefits Fre REMET 5,945 5,115
Performance related incentive bonus FIRE 2 SREEAL 20,111 14,233
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIETEI LR 198 198
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR 1D BB 2 2 B2 41 119
26,295 19,665

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

REZMENFTFIHE

Number of individuals

BRAH

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7L % 4,500,000 57T 1 2
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 712 5,000,000 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 /7T % 6,000,000 /7T - 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 70 7,500,000 77T 2 -
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 7T % 8,000,000 47T 1 -
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16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

16. FTSHi B <

2021 2020
—E=—F —TTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FiET
Continuing operations BEREER
Current taxation: BNEATRIR :
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (i) BEFER (FIEEG)) 14,814 14,698
Overseas taxation (Note (i) ESNEITE (93T (i) 11,879 465
Overseas withholding tax (Note (ii)) YESNEIES (B EE Gii)) 1,745 13,117
Overprovision in respect of prior years: BT F SRR
Hong Kong profits tax BAFER (196) (132)
Overseas taxation TEHNEITE (126) (288)
28,116 27,860
Deferred taxation (Note 37): IRIERITE (F7E37)
Current year REE (2,339) 193
Income tax expense FRiSHi Az 25,777 28,053

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iif)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
qualifying entities will be taxed at 8.25%, and the profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. For the years ended 31st December
2021 and 2020, Hong Kong profits tax of a subsidiary of the Company is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.

Taxation on overseas profit has been calculated on the assessable profit for the year at
the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act, a tax law enacted in the US,
a 30% withholding tax is levied on interest income received by a non-US resident from
a US resident. The Group is liable to withholding tax on the interest income received
in cash by non-US subsidiaries from the US subsidiary during the year ended 31st
December 2021 and 2020.

158
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@i

(ii)

(iif)

BEMERFFESHEEGE  cEREEEEN
B2 EEBTTRNINGIE8.25% HH: - MiBiB2 &S
75 7T 80 5 1 Bl B 12 16.5% #HE o A AR HIF
BRBEFENEETRGEEIZ16.5%NEE
MR - BE-_ - FR-_FT_TF+_HA
=t+t—ALFE ARRZ—FHBRRZES
B EBRBEMRHIF SRR ERGETE -

BINGEF TR EAREZERERR 2T
ERFRNERTORNAE -

RIEBEEBGINEPRHMERER - — R EE
FEZ L EEEEREEBRE R KA F 51
ABHEU30% 2B - AEBBETH—H
FEBHBATREE T - —FR T _TF
+ZA=+—HBLFEAEENE QB WERF
BrESWARRIENH -
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= N
16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 16. R B X )
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical SR BEIRR TS0 Al Al 2 B0 TE B R A A S & O
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits EREMNMEFOREFH  BReECER
of the consolidated entities as follows: I
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Continuing operations BEKEER
Profit before income tax R PS5 AL A 29,909 53,389
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% REBNGHB X 16.5% 8 2H1E
(2020: 16.5%) (ZZZZF : 16.5%) 4,935 8,809
Tax effects of: M2
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose MBS E AR 2 2 5 37,284 15,379
Income not taxable for tax purpose TR BT ERE 2 WA (13,415) (8,884)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas operations &/E4NEBATER 2 TRIF R 2 /& 3,592 398
Tax losses not recognised REERR < T TE R 18 - 285
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised i Fi 5t BT AR < B TEE 18 (946) -
Overprovision in prior years BT S RrEEE (322) (420)
Effect of two-tiered profits tax rate regime MR TS R GIE 2 2 (165) (165)
Overseas withholding tax on interest income FEWA 2 BINEITE 1,745 13,117
Others EAh, (6,931) (466)
Income tax expense FRiSHi 25,777 28,053
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 86.2% (2020: 52.5%). MEFHEAB X R8E2% (T =T F:
52.5%) °
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17.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 13th November 2019, the Company, Grid Dynamics, ChaSerg Technology
Acquisition Corp. (“ChaSerg”), CS Merger Sub 1 Inc. (“Merger Sub 1”) and
CS Merger Sub 2 LLC (“Merger Sub 2") entered into a conditional merger
agreement (the “Merger Agreement”). The transactions contemplated under
the Merger Agreement involve the acquisition of Grid Dynamics by ChaSerg, a
special purpose acquisition company the shares of which are listed on National
Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations (“NASDAQ") through
the two-step mergers between Grid Dynamics and the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of ChaSerg, Merger Sub 1 and Merger Sub 2 (the “Mergers”). The Mergers are
effectively an injection of Grid Dynamics in exchange for cash and equity interests
in ChaSerg and thereby effecting the separate listing of Grid Dynamics on
NASDAQ.

On 5th March 2020, all the conditions precedent set out in the Merger
Agreement have been fulfilled in accordance with the terms of the Merger
Agreement (the “Completion”). Upon Completion, Grid Dynamics and its
subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”) become wholly- owned subsidiaries of Grid
Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH", formerly ChaSerg) (ticker symbol: GDYN). In
connection with the Mergers, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
GDD International Holding Company (“GDD") received cash consideration of
approximately USD93,820,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$727,507,000)
and 19,490,295 consideration shares of GDH, which represents approximately
38.34% of the issued share capital of GDH as at the date of Completion (the
“Completion Date"). Accordingly, Grid Dynamics ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Group (the “Disposal”) and the Group's interest in GDH is treated as interests in
an associate and accounted for using equity method.

Details of the Merger are set out in the circular of the Company dated 31st
December 2019 and the announcement of the Company dated 8th March 2020.

The Disposal Group represents a significant geographical component of the
Group's IT Service segment, the results of the Disposal Group for the period
from 1st January 2020 to the Completion Date are presented as discontinued
operations in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st
December 2020. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of and calculation of
gain on disposal are disclosed in Note 44.
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17.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (coninued 17,48 L AR T (o
(a) Analysis of results and cash flows from discontinued (a) RAULREEB X BREASHRESD
operations r
The results of the discontinued operations included in the consolidated EA TEBEERIBENE LSS XBERER
statement of profit or loss and the cash flows are set out below. MEEHNR T °
(i) Profit for the year ended 31st December 2020 from discontinued () BE—Z-_TF+_A=+—HLEFE
operations: RERIEEEE 2 FRR -
Period from 1st
January 2020 to
5th March 2020
:%:%i—ﬂ—a
ETFTF
= AR B ILHE
HK$'000
FAET
Revenue A 166,610
Cost of services rendered RUEARTE 2 AR (121,503)
Other income EAbA 615
Other loss, net EAbFE1E (381)
Selling expenses HEER (20,185)
Administrative expenses TR E A (44,916)
Finance costs BIISRAR (8)
Loss before income tax KRPT1SRLATES 1 (19,768)
Income tax credit FriSFET A 18,147
Loss for the period of the Disposal Group HESEENER (1,621)
Gain on disposal of the Disposal Group (Note 44) HEEE Y HE K (FisE44) 1,109,585
Current income tax expense arising from the Disposal HESBEEEMNRBMEHAX
(Note (a)) (MtE(a)) (130,041)
Deferred tax expense arising from the Disposal (Note (b)) & EIEE AR IELER B (M (b)) (147,117)
Profit for the period from discontinued operations BRI EER 2 AR T 830,806

Notes: BisE

(a) Current income tax expense arising from the Disposal of HK$130,041,000 () RAEEFHEMESZAEMSHEX
relates to US tax on assessable profit of GDD which mainly contributed by the /130,041,0007% 7T J3 £ GDD Ji& 3R i
cash consideration received from the Disposal of HK$727,507,000. Such tax mAZERFHIBRERB ERPEERE
is calculated based on the US federal tax rate of 21% and the applicable US 727,507,000 T iH E &£ B 2R &K
states tax rate. 8 - BRITIIA RIS BB R 21%

REBSMBEEAREAE -

(b) Deferred tax expense arising from the Disposal of approximately by AHEFHEEAZETEHERIL
HK$147,117,000 relates to the deferred capital gain on the consideration 147,117,000 7T » JhEEH B R IEHAR
shares received from the Disposal. Such tax is calculated based on the US MREZIBELEE AR EAERE - BRETE
federal tax rate of 21% and the applicable US states tax rate. THAR 5 35 B Bt FP AR R 21% MBI &M

BIERN R E -
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

17.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 17. 8 IEREHEE @)
(a) Analysis of results and cash flows from discontinued (a) RILREEB X BREASHRED
operations (Continued) @)
(iiy Cash flows for the year ended 31st December 2020 from discontinued iy BE-Z-ZFT-_A=1T—HIFE
operations: IR EERR SRE ¢
Period from 1st
January 2020 to
5th March 2020
—T-TF—A—H
ETTF
= AR HIEHME
HK$'000
FiET
Net cash inflow from operating activities RELEFD RS RAFE 2,562
Net cash outflow from investing activities REFREFEE R FHE (5,122)
Net cash outflow from financing activities REREEES 2R R LT (99)
Net cash outflow R TR (2,659)
(b) Loss before income tax from discontinued operations (b) B IR &K 7 BRATEH AT
B8
Period from 1st
January 2020 to
5th March 2020
—T-TF—-A—H
E_TTF
= AR HIEEE
HK$'000
FHT
Loss before income tax is arrived KR PTG AL AT
at after charging/(crediting): Tos&kk/ (GEA) T3I& 1A
Auditors’ remuneration: it Gl
Audit services ZE R
— Over-provision in respect of prior year - BEFE R (410)
Depreciation and amortisation: e R
— Property, plant and equipment — owned assets - BERZRE-HEEE 1,622
— Property, plant and equipment — right-of-use assets -M% - BEREE-EAEEE 91
— Intangible assets (included in cost of services rendered) - B AE (REEREREZKA) 2,364
Directors’ emoluments EEME 362
Employee benefit expenses (excluding Directors’ emoluments) &S @FIH% (TMEEEEME)
— Salaries and other benefits - He REMEF 117,255
— Performance related incentive bonus - RIRB B RENEAL 10,644
— Equity-settled share-based payment expenses - AR BERI S ZFAX 10,486
— Staff retention bonus -BIBR%s 26,073
Lease charges: HEHS :
— Short term leases - RRHEEE 7,434
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

18.DIVIDENDS 18. 1R 2
2021 2020
=—fF —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Dividend approved and paid: R ZFTEAR S
Final dividend in respect of the year ended HE_Z-ZE+_A=+—HIFE
31st December 2020 of 3.0 HK cents Zﬂiﬁﬂﬂﬁ SRR 3.0
(2020: in respect of the year ended (ZZE=ZTF  HEZZ—NF
31st December 2019 of 3.0 HK cents) per share  +Z=A=+—HILFEAER3.071L) 24,973 24,819
Special dividend of 24.0 HK cents FERIRR B8 A% 24.0 3L
(2020: 7.3 HK cents) per share —TTF  GR738) 200,006 60,394
224,979 85,213
Dividends proposed: BRARE.
Final dividend in respect of the year ended HE_Z-—F+-_A=T—HILFEZ
31st December 2021 of 3.0 HK cents RNEAAR B AR 3. O/%TIJJ
(2020: in respect of the year ended (ZZ2-ZF  HE_T-ZTF
31st December 2020 of 3.0 HK cents) +ZA=+— EIJtEE
per share (Note) A 3.0781L) (&) 25,008 24,909
The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend in EFERARKNEE S —F+=A=1+—
respect of the year ended 31st December 2021 of 3.0 HK cents per share. Subject HIEFESR3.08B1L2 REIRE o fF LiRZER

to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or before 24th June 2022 to
shareholders whose names appears on the register of members of the Company
on 10th June 2022.

Note:

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2021, as referred to above,
is calculated on the basis of 833,584,192 (2020: 830,307,964) ordinary shares in issue as at
31st December 2021 and at a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents (2020: 3.0 HK cents) per share.

19.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company is based on the following data:

BNig8R1T 2 IRRIBF RS ER R BiBE - ZIK"‘
EHR - —F X XA-F+mExZARR=
——E/\H+E|%§|J3A$L\ Eﬂxﬁ%ﬂ%ZHx%ﬂi

Bl R AR RS

Bfi3E

rEE T —F+ A=+ —HILEFEZRIER
HREREN-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HEHTZ

833,584,192 (=T =T 4 : 830,307,964) (X @A K &
BR3.08I(=ZZ=FF : BR3.0/8L) 2 RERSFTH -

RATRAREE SR
B

RRBBEAFA ABIESRERREERNTIR
T BEFE

19

2021 2020
—EB-—-F =BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
Profit attributable to equity holders AR B TR E AN K 5 E 2 F)
of the Company for basic and ZARRNRIRAFEE AR T
diluted earnings per share
— From continuing operation - RERFBELEER 4,132 25,336
— From discontinued operation - RE RIS ETS - 830,962
4,132 856,298
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

19.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

9. XX REFEAEEER

TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY B F )
(Continued)
Number of shares
ROBEE
2021 2020
—EBZ—F —ECTF
‘000 ‘000
TR FAR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R EESRERRT 2 @R
for basic earnings per share (Note (i)) S (FsEG)) 832,673 828,369
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BEMENE s BT BR R
— Share options (Note (ii)) — B AR (P& i) 6,238 765
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FRAGEESREERR
for diluted earnings per share LA IR T R 838,911 829,134
2021 2020
—E_—F T -TF
HK cents HK cents
I AL
Earnings per share from continuing and R B FHEAS & R I 3T
discontinued operations B AR B A
— Basic -EXK 0.50 103.37
- Diluted -8 0.49 103.28
Earnings per share from continuing operations R B FHEAS & E S B REF
— Basic - 7\ 0.50 3.06
- Diluted B3 1 0.49 3.06
Earnings per share from discontinued operations 3K [ 4% L 48 & E K SR A F
— Basic - 7 - 100.31
— Diluted - #E - 100.22
Notes: B &t

()  The 832,673,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during year ended 31st December 2021.

The 828,369,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of

(ii)

(iii)

164 Annua

ordinary shares in issue during year ended 31st December 2020.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share from continuing operations for the
years ended 31st December 2020 and 2021 assumed the exercise of the share options
of the Company granted in 2012 and 2017 but has not taken into account the effect
of the dilutive instruments issued by the Group’s associates as they are considered as
anti-dilutive.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations for
the year ended 31st December 2020 have not taken into account the effect of share
options and the convertible preferred shares granted by the Disposal Group as they are
considered anti-dilutive.

| Report 2021 i

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

T imA% 832,673,000 K AREREE =T =—
FE+ A=+ BLLFEHRDBETERER
HIINAEF & -

T imA% 828,369,000 K AKEREE—T=F
FE+Z A=+ BLFEHRDETERER
HIINAEF & -

BE_Z_ZFR_T_—F+_F=1+—
Etiﬁ%ﬁ%, BEBZ BREERT
TIBEARBR T —FR-T—+FE
M2 BREEETE - BYRBIEA KR
ERRRTZAEEERANTAYE BR
iR ARE REEIER o

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLFERE
RIMEEXBNERETRANNEILR
BRI & S B R A AT SR E R R
2 AR SRR REEER -
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

20.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. % - BMEKRSZE
Furniture Computer
Land and and and office
buildings fixtures Motor  equipment Right-of-use
tith HRK vehicles EK assets Total
REF £E RE BAERE GRAREE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL THL TAL TAL TAL

At 1st January 2020 R=B=25-A—-A
Cost or valuation A A E 290,100 31,733 1,779 169,049 14,574 507,235
Accumulated depreciation ZEE - (27,567) (1,742)  (147,603) (8,728)  (185,640)
Net book amount E’EE}% B 290,100 4,166 37 21,446 5,846 321,595
Year ended 31st December 2020 BE-E_EFt-A=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount HBAREE 290,100 4,166 37 21,446 5,846 321,595
Additions NE - 1,435 - 7,431 7,330 16,196
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HEMBAR (Fitad) - (2,894) = (14,970) (956) (18,820)
Depreciation & (10,549) (1,131) (37) (5,775) (5,889) (23,381)
Exchange realignment EHRE = (11 = (34) 17 (28)
Revaluation surplus EHEH 2,149 = = = = 2,149
Closing net book amount BRERTE 281,700 1,565 - 8,098 6,348 297,711
At 31st December 2020 RZIB-E5+-A=t—-H
Cost or valuation PRk fE (B 281,700 27,128 1,779 124,151 20,179 454,937
Accumulated depreciation ZEE - (25,563) (1,779)  (116,053) (13,831)  (157,226)
Net book amount EREE 281,700 1,565 - 8,098 6,348 297,711
Comprising: '
At cost 2% - 27,128 1,779 124,151 20,179 173,237
At valuation fhfE 281,700 = = = - 281,700
281,700 27,128 1,779 124,151 20,179 454,937
At 1st January 2021 R-ZB=-%-A—-H
Cost or valuation RASEE 281,700 27,128 1,779 124,151 20,179 454,937
Accumulated depreciation ZEE - (25,563) (1,779)  (116,053) (13,831)  (157,226)
Net book amount EEFE 281,700 1,565 - 8,098 6,348 297,711
Year ended 31st December 2021 BE-Z-_-F+t-A=1t-HLFE
Opening net book amount BRETE 281,700 1,565 - 8,098 6,348 297,711
Additions B - 2,728 - 6,615 5,739 15,082
Reassessment of lease term BIFTEMTHED - - - - 6,406 6,406
Disposal HE - - - (3) - ®3)
Depreciation by (10,630) (953) - (5,125) (6,805) (23,513)
Exchange realignment B i A% - 7 - 29 70 106
Revaluation surplus BRHRH 10,630 - - - - 10,630
Closing net book amount BRERFE 281,700 3,347 - 9,614 11,758 306,419
At 31st December 2021 R=ZB--%+=A=+—-H
Cost or valuation A fE 281,700 29,812 1,754 125,964 32,424 471,654
Accumulated depreciation ZEME - (26,465) (1,754)  (116,350) (20,666)  (165,235)
Net book amount RESE 281,700 3,347 - 9,614 11,758 306,419
Comprising: 't
At cost A - 29,812 1,754 125,964 32,424 189,954
At valuation (Y 281,700 - - - - 281,700

281,700 29,812 1,754 125,964 32,424 471,654
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

20.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings were stated at valuations made at 31st December
2021 and 2020. The land and buildings were last revalued by an independent
professional valuer, at 31st December 2021 and 2020, at market value basis
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions
for similar properties. The revaluation gave rise to a revaluation surplus net
of applicable deferred income taxes of approximately HK$8,876,000 (2020:
HK$1,794,000) which has been credited to the property revaluation reserve.
Details of fair value measurements are set out in Note 6(d).

As at 31st December 2021, if the land and buildings had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial statements at historical
cost, less accumulated depreciation, of approximately HK$31,840,000 (2020:
HK$33,904,000).

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment have been charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

20. Y% - BMERKE®

REBZ T REFTIER T =— i&_j_
TEF+ZA=+—AZHEYER - T REF
e—REBLE ¥¢5@3m3\7777¢&7?7
SE+ A=+ AEMEEEBETER
2EMG LREYMELPRFI 2ERNETE - &
1&1E¢urﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁpuﬁ SRBRELAEHABNE
8,876,000 7T (Z T =F4F : 1,794,000/7T) -
WEFARYEEGERFHEE - ARBEFEFBH
RHEEE6() °

R—_E-—F+-A=+—H WLt REF
KEEL HEEREEFELHKANKRAE
HEIEME 4 431,840,000 T( - T - T4 :
33,904,000870) 5t ARG TS HRE ©

AEBZYME  BEERBZHECHEEBR
RAPHBRAT -

2021 2020
—EZ—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Continuing operations BEREER
Cost of goods sold and services rendered SHE AR RIR AR TS 2 AR 14,364 9,871
Selling expenses HEBEM 3,258 2,609
Administrative expenses THER 5,891 9,189
23,513 21,669

As at 31st December 2021, the Group had pledged land and buildings with
carrying amount of HK$166,700,000 (2020: HK$166,700,000) to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 46.
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A6 R=F = —F+=A=+—
A AEBBRE S 54 166,700,0008 (= F
—F 4 : 166,700,000/ 7L ) < Lt RIBFE K
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

20.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 20.%% ; Jﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ(@)

As at 31st December 2021 and 2020, the net carrying amount of right-of-use RIBE—FR—F-_TF+_A=+—H A

assets included in property, plant and equipment are as follows: %% F%& ﬁZﬁﬁJ%ﬁEZBEEﬁgﬁyuT

Carrying amount Depreciation

RS e

For the year

As at 31st As at 1st ended 31st

December 2021 January 2021 December 2021

BE-Z2-_-—-F

R=ZB=—F R=B=—F +=—A=+—H

+=A=+—H —HA—H LLFE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

T Fa T

Office premises MAEYHE 11,000 5,220 6,433

Office equipment I NE 758 1,128 372

Total #axE 11,758 6,348 6,805

Carrying amount Depreciation

BREeH e

For the year

As at 31st As at 1st ended 31st

December 2020 January 2020 December 2020

HE_ZT-ZF

i 2 i e 2 +=ZA=+—H

+=-A=+—~8 —A—H IFFE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T THET FHET

Office premises FINEXYES 5,220 4,344 5,516

Office equipment YNEN G 1,128 1,502 373

Total Pk 6,348 5,846 5,889
During the year ended 31st December 2021, total additions to right-of-use assets HE—E-——&+-A=+—BILEE Y
and right-of-use assets with reassessment of lease term included in property, & mERRE T GERESERERESHEN
plant and equipment amounting to HK$5,739,000 (2020: HK$7,330,000) and RS FAEEEDRIAS,739,000E T (—F
HK$6,406,000 (2020: nil), respectively, of which all are related to office premises. — T4 : 7.330,000% 7T ) % 6,406,000 7T ( —

TODFE) REERAEYEEY -
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HZE =T =—

21.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FH—RA=t—RHLLFE

21. 1 EY

2021 2020
—E-—-F —EEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
At valuation &E
At 1st January n—A—H 54,300 55,800
Fair value loss AR BEEE - (1,500)
At 31st December R+=—A=+—~H 54,300 54,300
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated statement of WS BERN RS Bat KRR
profit or loss:
2021 2020
—EZ—fF —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Rental income (Note 8) HE WA (FizE8) 2,425 3,886
Direct operating expense arising from investment EASWA Z B EMELZ
properties that generate rental income BEELERX 373 378

The investment properties of the Group were last revalued by an independent
professional valuer at 31st December 2021 and 2020 at market value basis,
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions for
similar properties. Details of fair value measurement are set out in Note 6(d).

The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are set out in Note 42.

As at 31st December 2021, the Group had pledged investment properties with
carrying amount of HK$54,300,000 (2020: HK$54,300,000) to secure banking

facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 46.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

V5
22.GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS RN.EERETEE
Goodwill Intangible assets
Development Technical Customer
cost know-how relationships Total
BRAA ST piIE EFB% “t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT TR
At 1st January 2020 RZB-Z2F-f—-H
Cost A 766,816 19,887 2,197 123,289 145,373
Accumulated amortisation ZEBERAE
and impairment - (13,494) (2,171) (22,465) (38,130)
Net book amount REFE 766,816 6,393 26 100,824 107,243
Year ended 31st December 2020 BE-Z-BE+t-A=t-HLEFE
Opening net book amount R FE 766,816 6,393 26 100,824 107,243
Additions WE - 3,587 - - 3,587
Amortisation i - (886) - (1,478) (2,364)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HEMRBRR (i 44) (763,394) (9,035) (26) (98,902) (107,963)
Exchange realignment R (3,422) (59) = (444) (503)
Closing net book amount HARREHE = - - - -
At 31st December 2020 and R-E-ZF+-A=+-HRK
1st January 2021 “E--f-f-H
Cost B AR - 5,006 - - 5,006
Accumulated amortisation EEERAE
and impairment - (5,006) - - (5,006)
Net book amount REEE - - - - -
Year ended 31st December 2021 BE-Z-_-51+-A=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount HBREHE - - - - -
Closing net book amount BARREFE - - - - -
At 31st December 2021 RZBZ-F+-fA=+-H
Cost %N - 5,006 - - 5,006
Accumulated amortisation BB RRE
and impairment - (5,006) - - (5,006)
Net book amount BEFE - - - - -
During the year ended 31st December 2020, amortisation of approximately RNEBEE—_ZE-_FF+_A=+—RHILFE ' #y
HK$2,364,000 has been charged to “cost of services rendered” in the statement #72,364,000 7 70 2 R M 55 17(@)(1) Z 4R 1E4E
of profit or loss of the discontinued operations in Note 17(a)(i). LEENBE R [RERE 2R | B3I -
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 3. BE N TR
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed (Note) i (Bt sE) 1,172,303 1,749,392
Unlisted JEET 19,465 19,804
1,191,768 1,769,196

Note: FfaE -

The Group’s interest in listed securities represents the Group’s interest in GDH, of which

REER EMES 2 D BIEASLEN GDH 2 #h -
BRORPETER LT - R-B-_—F+-A=+— EI

its shares are listed on NASDAQ. As at 31st December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s
interest in GDH was USD562,054,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,383,175,000)
(2020: USD245,578,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,903,903,000)), which is based
on the quoted stock price of GDH on NASDAQ of USD37.97(2020: USD12.6) per share as at

RE B GDH 2 #E 2 2 A /(B 1E73562,054,0005 7T (18
E#494,383,175,0007%87T) (ZZ =4 : 245,578,000

F 7T (FE 7 491,903,903,0005 75)) »

THERR =T

31st December 2021 and is within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

T —F+-A=+—HEKRGDHBRRINRENER 2 RIE

37 97%m<f777¢

12.6%X7T) ° &
LHREEBANBERAEE -

REEDER

2021 2020
—E=—-F —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FET
At 1st January n—A—H 1,769,196 19,625
Acquisition of an associate (Note (i) g — g = R ml i s (BEEQ)) - 1,813,591
Additional interest in an associate (Note (ii)) Bt N A2 fEIMER (B EE (i) 25,909 -
Deemed disposal of partial interest in WAL S5 N R = (ML (i)
an associate (Note (iii)) (176,471) (708)
Disposal of interest in an associate (Note (iv)) B E ARy (M V) (403,147)
Share of results of associates FEARHR & A R ZEAR (30,427) (63,480)
Share of other comprehensive loss of associates — J&{f B & /A 7] H b 2 [ E5 (924) (57)
Exchange realignment RIS 7,632 225
At 31st December w+—A=+—8H 1,191,768 1,769,196

Notes:

s

@

(ii)

(iii)

The Group received 19,490,295 consideration shares in GDH upon the completion of
the Disposal on 5th March 2020. Details are set out in Note 44.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group received additional 112,275
consideration shares as a result of the post-closing adjustment in relation to the
Disposal.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, certain restricted stock units and
performance stock units granted by GDH to its employees were vested and certain
employees/warrants holders had exercised the vested stock options/warrants of GDH
and GDH had a public offering of 11.6 million shares of its common stock, which
included 5.5 million shares offered by GDH and 6.1 million shares offered by certain
selling stockholders, at a price to the public of USD15.03 per share. As a result, an
aggregate loss on deemed disposal of interests in associates of HK$176,471,000 (2020:
HK$708,000) was recognised in “other loss, net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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(ii)

(iii)

RZ=ZZT=FF = A A B 5L & Grid Dynamics
1% - ANS=[EULER 19,490,295 % 2 GDH IR IAH L (B
FHIBEFIRHIFE 44 -

BE-_T-_-—F+_A=+—HLLEE  £X&£E
it & Grid Dynamics 2 52X B 1 78 2 U B EE Sh
112,275 %2 GDHRRA (B °

BHE-_Z-—F+=-A=+—HLFE BN
GDH?%EEZ = F 2R H AR D B A R R IR
MzRNEBENERE ETES/RRETLRHEA
BT GDHE 5 Eﬁéﬂx%&wﬂx%m LA GDH
NEBRISO3ETEEAHEEL N 6BERY
BB (AP BEGDHEE 255 BB REBR
B REMERKELEZ6.1 5B T EARR
17) - BB IBERP R [ M FEIE | RETER
WAL S & A R0 H e B518 176,471,000 47T
(=Z=Z=Z4 :708,000/%7T) °
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23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group entered into an underwriting
agreement with GDH, the other selling stockholders and the underwriters. Pursuant
to which, among other things, the Group and the other selling stockholders agreed to
transfer to the underwriters, and the underwriters agreed to receive and hold from the

selling stockholders. The disposal of was completed on 6th July 2021.

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:

Country/place
of incorporation
and operations

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

23. B N R iERR )

BisE : (48)

vy BE-_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—RLFEE ~£@
EAGDH + EAhE MR R BRI 3 B 1 R IR
gt o Rt - AEEREMERBRRRAE (P EE)
MEHEEHE - REEERERERRRERR
A HERRFEIMDGDHRMD - HEER
RZBEZ—F+ARATEK °

R R ZFT_FTF+_H=+—H ' &
SEZBERRFITNAT
Percentage of nominal value

of issued ordinary share capital
held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate EMR Y REE 2 AATBERE Principal activities
BE N R B xRt ERITEBERKNZEML FEXK
2021 2020
B —ZT-TF
Unlisted associates
FLHEE QT

iN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 24% 24% Provision of engineering and
BEZREGRE CRFT) BRAF] JRFT software services
TR T2 R AR TS
ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited Thailand 49% 49% Provision of engineering and
= software services
TR T2 R AR 7S
i-Sprint Holdings Ltd. (“i-Sprint”) Cayman Islands 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding
eSS AR
i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing, and
L (BB) BH AR AT BB implementing technology
risk management products
RS 85 R B il
BREEER LT
Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software
IR EHAERHEREEAR & development, distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology
risk management products
RHEMREE - 2 Bk
XIEBM R E R EMES
i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software
il (b)) B BREE LR G development, distributing,

implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products
RMEEFHFRE - 9 - Btk
X IE B R E EE M
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23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2021 and 2020 are as

follows: (Continued)

Name of associate

BENTEE

Country/place

of incorporation

and operations

SRR R AR 2

Ev: ks

23. B N R iERR o)

SEZHBERRFBENT - (B

Percentage of nominal value
of issued ordinary share capital
held indirectly by the Company
AAREESE Principal activities
ERITEBERAZEHL FTEEH

2021 2020
B Z—ZT_TF

KRB —FRZZE_FFF+_A=F+—H " 'K

Unlisted associates (Continued)
FEHEE AT (F)

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd.

i-Sprint Innovations Inc.

i-Sprint Investment Limited

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co. Ltd

Annual Report 2021 4%

Singapore

O

Malaysia
B2RF T

The US
=S

Hong Kong
e

Thailand
Z=E

35.42% 35.42% Investment holding, provision of
developing, distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology
risk management products
REER - TRt -
DEH -~ Btk R MTER
EREMER

35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing,
implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products

REDH - Bt KRR

[EVERE IR E mm TS

35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing and
implementing technology

risk management products

1RG5 85 S B Rk AT

[RBRE IR E L ETS

35.42% 35.42% Investment holding, provision of
developing, distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology
risk management products
REER - R -
D~ Btk X ERIMER
EREMFES

35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing,
implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products

RS - B KRR

[E\Be B IR E MR
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. Bi N TR )

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2021 and 2020 are as RIBZ—FR-Z_TF+_A=+—H &K
follows: (Continued) SEZBERRFBOT - (8)

Country/place Percentage of nominal value
of incorporation  of issued ordinary share capital
and operations  held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate MR RAEE 2 AAREESE Principal activities
BEATER EEYS: 1) ERTEBERETZEML FEEK
2021 2020

B Z—ZT_TF

Listed associates

LEHEE AT
GDH The US 22.15% 38.31% Provision of enterprise-level
e digital transformation in the
areas of search, analytics,
and release automation
REENES - 91 - B
BENt (b3 BB R 75
Grid Dynamics International, LLC The US 22.15% 38.31% Provision of service in Information
e technology (“IT”) engineering
BB (BB ) TRR®
Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd Serbia 22.15% 38.31% Provision of service in computer
— Novi Beograd ERgED programming
B TR
Limited Liability Company Russia 22.15% 38.31% Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Russia” RzEHN development, consulting and
relating professional service
PR - BEREREEEERS
Grid Dynamics Poland Sp.zo.o. Poland 22.15% 38.31% Provision of service in software
| development, consulting and
relating professional service
R - B AR R ERY
Limited liability Company Ukraine 22.15% 38.31% Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Ukraine” R development, consulting and

relating professional service

IR - R RAREERE
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23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

3. B AT ER )

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2021 and 2020 are as RIB-_—FR-_BE_ZF+_-_HA=+—H K

follows: (Continued)

Country/place

of incorporation

and operations

SEZBERRFBOT - (B)

Percentage of nominal value
of issued ordinary share capital
held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate AR R AR 2 AN EEESE Principal activities
BE AR SR BxR 2 ERTEBERAZEHL FEEK
2021 2020
B —ZZT-THF
Listed associates (Continued)
EiEE QT (&)
Limited Liability Company Ukraine 22.15% 38.31% Provision of service in software
“Cometera Ukraine” B development, consulting and
relating professional service
Z;TFAE - B AR R RS
Limited Liability Company Ukraine 22.15% 38.31% Provision of service and support
“GD Ukraine” S5 on behalf of GDH and

Daxx Web Industries B.V.

The Netherlands
Gl

its customers
REKGDH R EEF
RIEREAZIE

22.15% 38.31% Provision of service in software
development, consulting and
relating professional service

HIrFIE - B AR E R

Tacit Knowledge, Ltd. United Kingdom 22.15% - Provision of global consultancy
HE services focused on digital commerce
S RMH BRI A 2 IREAR AR S
All associates have a reporting date of 31st December and held indirectly by the FBEBE N RMNFEEBBONT_A=+—H"
Company. WH AN RIEERA -
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the EREN AR R EFTAREAEEFNEEEE
directors of the Company, principally affected the results of the year or form HEYIBRAEEEEFEEERY 2AEH
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other HBEENRIMER - ARAEERE - RIEEH M
associates would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in EARNFBEREBIRENERBNITE

particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

23

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial information

of GDH Group and i-Sprint Group, which are material associates accounted for

using the equity method, adjusted for fair value adjustments on acquisition (if

any) and any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying

amount in the consolidated financial statements:

BN TR e

TR A EREARZ B 2% A 5 (GDH
SE Ri-Sprint £ H) 2 iR & B ERBIE - 138
BERYER DA BEBE(WNE) RS BRER
HEREGAVBBREARI SR

Listed Unlisted
=) LT
GDH Group i-Sprint Group
GDH&E i-Sprint &£ [E
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EB-_—F —ECTF —EB_—fF ZECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET FHERT FHT
Non-current assets ERBEE 667,395 462,819 41,000 39,784
Current assets MENEE 1,503,270 1,043,355 72,985 80,756
Current liabilities mENBE (197,645) (103,222) (75,700) (93,857)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (73,732) (80,057) (8,808) (325)
Net assets FEE 1,899,288 1,322,895 29,477 26,358
Revenue for the year/period FRHAREBA 1,643,179 696,009 119,481 102,753
(Loss)/Profit for the year/period FRHIR
(E518) & A (107,791) (165,736) 2,485 10
Other comprehensive loss FAHEEMEE
for the year/period &8 - - (2,608) (161)
Total comprehensive loss Hif, R
for the year/period SHEBEERE (107,791) (165,736) (123) (151)
Group's share of: REBEE
(Loss)/Profit for the year/period FR,
(E18) /& A (31,287) (63,490) 880 4
Other comprehensive loss FW,/ B AR H
for the year/period BB - = (924) (57)
Total comprehensive loss FA,/ M
for the year/period S HEEERE (31,287) (63,490) (44) (53)
Dividend received B E - - - -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z B ER A A
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Py — a2z
23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 3. BtE AR R )
The financial information of iN Systems (Macao) Limited, which is not a material WIEREFBEA 7B A NTREZGRF CBRFY)
associate of the Group, is as below: BRARZEHBERT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Group’s aggregate share of net assets of AEEEE—MEBE AR
an associate IR EEBER 729 749
Group’s share of: REBEEAL -
(Loss)/Profit for the year FER(ERE) HEF (20) 6
Other comprehensive income HEthemikas - -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year FRNEE(EE) WamieiE (20) 6
A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying L BERSEENRGDHER « i-Sprint& &
amount of each of the investments in GDH Group, i-Sprint Group and iN Systems REBEZGEHE CRF) BRAGE B 2RERE
(Macao) Limited are set out below: B2HERAT -
iN Systems (Macao) Limited
GDH Group i-Sprint Group BEAGNE
GDHERE i-Sprint £ 8 (M) BRATE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
“E--% —E-FF “E--f% —Z-TE —E--F% —Z-TE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AL THET T THET FHEL
Total net assets of associates ~ Hif & A G FE EMEE 1,899,288 1,322,895 29,477 26,358 3,035 3,121
Portion of ownership interests B FTIE A 2 HEH
held by Group BESES 22.15% 38.31% 35.42% 35.42% 2% 24%
Group’s share of net assets of ~ AEBEIEEE AR
associates FEE 420,735 506,801 10,440 9,336 729 749
Others EAh, (29,488) (69,764) (6,811) (5,629) - =
Goodwill Bl 781,056 1,312,355 31,407 31,648 - =
1,172,303 1,749,392 35,036 35,355 729 749
Less: Provision for impairment & : JR{E R 5 - = (16,300) (16,300) - =

Carrying amount of interests in - FA4RE B R&R TR
associates in the consolidated ~ FABSE &N BIRERS
financial statements BREE 1,172,303 1,749,392 18,736 19,055 729 749
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F+ZA=+—HILFE

. BE N T ER e

T FRZTTF+_A=+HL
FE - AEEDKIEFEREE(GASL Automated
Services (Thailand) Limited 18  FE{f 5% 85 & A A

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HZ=ZF=—

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

For the years ended 31st December 2021 and 2020, the Group has discontinued s
recognition of its share of losses of ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited.
The amounts of unrecognised share of results of this associate, extracted from

the relevant management accounts of the associate, both for the year and ZERARBF 2 AEREESE (g HER
cumulatively, are as follows: Al ERAERARE )T
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Unrecognised share of: REERPEAL
Profit for the year F A A 12 21
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 EWa= - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKEEEE 12 21

2t AR EG ML AT
2 &R 550 562

0. RERE

Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of
an associate

24.EQUITY INVESTMENT

2021 2020

—E—F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

Financial asset at FVOCI RAABEZEBEHMEZEANRSEIIRZSRMEE

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value ELEMRERE  BAREE - 598
The Group entered into the agreement with Teamsun, Pansky Technology REBEEEBRK - RABHRBR A R &ILR5A
Corporation Ltd. and Beijing Honggiao Technology Co., Ltd. to establish a BRXARAAGZHRE - RHPEKZ—RA
company in the PRC, pursuant to which the Group committed to subscribe for Al it - AEEEARE AL E AR 10,000,000

10% equity interest in the PRC company with capital contribution of Renminbi
("RMB")10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,319,000).

The Group designated its investment in this unlisted investment as financial asset
at FVOCI, as this investment is held as long-term strategic investments that is not
expected to be sold in the short to medium term.

Details of the fair value of the unlisted equity investment has been measured as
described in Note 6(d).

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the company in PRC deregistered
and the Group derecognised the equity investment.

JC(FHE 711,319,000 70 ) REZ F B A 7

10% JHE ©
REBBENZIELTREZREEEREAA
Efﬁﬁhﬁ{ﬂiﬁqﬁéﬂﬁﬁ  RERZIRE T
ERABRIEIEIRE - BEI TR EHALE -

SR LTREREZ ARBEZFE - SRHK
FE6(d).
HE_ T —F+_A=+—HBILFE  zZR+

BIR 2 ARIE R - ANEED R IERBER

o=e Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 R BB R AR
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-ZT ——

FH-—A=+—HIFE

25.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line

5. 28 s M T A

ERTAZSHBERE RAN TIRIA

items below:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost RBHERARIEZEREE
Trade receivables FEUWE 558 171,478 240,472
Other receivables and deposits H A FEUGRIE iz & 8,910 9,719
Finance lease receivables FEU B E THE R IE 4,288 6,987
Bank balances and cash RITEREES 603,947 370,521
788,623 627,699
Financial asset at FVOCI RARBEEBHMEZEIKRGESIEZ
(non-recycling) SRMEE (FRE)
Equity investment IRAEIRE - 598
788,623 628,297
Financial liabilities S@mas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEBAIEZERMEE
Trade payables ENE 5338 258,508 282,557
Other payables and accruals HAb A RIE R IERT B R 156,738 171,511
Bank borrowings RITIEE 101,099 145,938
Lease liabilities HEBE 12,132 6,436
528,477 606,442
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

‘€
26.INVENTORIES 26. 78
2021 2020
—E=—fF —TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Inventories FE
— Goods held for resale - FHHEEEZEY 81,058 80,292
— Goods pending for customers’ acceptance - BRERPEMNCED 59,300 57,110
140,358 137,402
Other contract costs E A& KIKAR 93,659 75,323
234,017 212,725
Goods held for resale and goods pending for customers’ acceptance mainly REEECENREGRFEMCENETERE
represent computer equipment and software products. MR R EE o
During the year ended 31st December 2021, the cost of inventories recognised %Zi—gi_i‘f' A=+—HILFE B
as expenses and included in “cost of goods sold” and “cost of services rendered” RARASIALET A HERA ] K& [ERERSE ZK
amounted to approximately HK$885,808,000 and HK$166,861,000 (2020: ZM Z 8 KA 5 Bl 4 £885,808,000 %8 TT K
HK$892,822,000 and HK$161,931,000), respectively. 166,861,000/8 7 (= F — T4 : 892,822,000/8
7t} 161,931,000/ 7T)
Other contract costs relate to the incremental sales commissions paid to HthAMKARARLEETHHSEPAIHE
salesperson whose selling activities resulted in customers entering into sales BHZHEABXNZEEHERS RERES
contacts and fulfillment costs that generates or enhances resources of the Group SO MR EITRAOR EL BRI E 2 A
that will be used in satisfying performance obligations and expected to be KEERZBHORAER -
recovered.
Other contract costs are recognised as expenses and included in “cost of goods Hi & WA R RS R 2 R NERS B
sold” and “cost of services rendered” in the consolidated statement of profit SRTERRBFAS - Wt AHEKRAR] R [1E
or loss in the period in which revenue is recognised. The amount of capitalised HRIG 2 A ] - FAREBEF ﬁEﬂZﬁZMK
costs recognised in profit or loss during the year was HK$285,869,000 (2020: X 7K 4 %8 /5 285,869,000 T( =8 = T 4 ¢
HK$312,258,000). There was no impairment in relation to the opening balance 312,258,000 87T) §$4K5€Z’§Zi@%ﬂ BERKIR
of capitalised costs or the costs capitalised during the year ended 31st December BE_Z_—F1+-A= JF BIEFERERE
2021 (2020: Nil). AW EBEERE(CT-TF  |) -
=
27.TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. BB 5 5K
2021 2020
—E-—F ZZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Trade receivables — gross JEWE 55078 - 4878 179,961 248,118
Less: ECL allowance B TRERE SRR (8,483) (7,646)
Trade receivables — net FEWE 5 FIE - F5 171,478 240,472
The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 days REBZRAEEPEREHZHE30R 1D§Hﬁ o
and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are REFBRBREEEZELRUSEERBRRZE
reviewed regularly by senior management. Further details on the Group’s credit 1K - %%&Eﬂ?Eﬂ@,ﬁﬂzfrﬂéi%lﬁﬁﬂﬂ’ﬁﬂiE,Hﬂ%
policy are set out in Note 6(b). & - AEBEMEEBERFFBYH R M T 6(b)
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=h -
27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 27. FE U & 5 FRIE ()
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables, is BEEER - EWESFHIBZRRITOT :
as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHExT
0 - 30 days 030Kk 87,954 117,368
31 - 60 days 31260k 47,096 59,886
61 —90 days 61290k 19,663 27,643
Over 90 days BB 90K 25,248 43,221
179,961 248,118
The movement in the Group’s ECL allowance of trade receivables is as follows: AEBERE ZFENTEHREEEBBEEEEN
T
2021 2020
—EB=—F —TTHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
At 1st January n—AR—H 7,646 2,158
ECL allowance TEHAE B EIE R 3,768 6,141
Reversal of ECL allowance TRHAE B A B RER D (2,934) (551)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKTB AR - (156)
Exchange realignment M H A 3 54
At 31st December W+=—A=+—H 8,483 7,646
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there BRERNBR 2B —MNFEE T~ U ZEINR
is no expectation of recovering additional cash. The Group does not hold any SR - AEBMY EIFHEMIRTFRIEAE
collateral as security. R e
The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies: U E SRR TS EMGHE -
2021 2020
—E=—F —TTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT
HKD BIT 158,036 226,522
usD e 4,982 6,345
RMB AR 302 546
Thailand Baht (“THB") Tk ([ZFREK]) 11,534 6,351
Macau Pataca (“MOP") SRFTE (DRI ) 1,366 2,692
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD") mas(Hmar]) 3,608 5,180
Other currencies EhE® 133 482
179,961 248,118
As at 31st December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of trade receivables R_B-_ N "Z_ZBF+_A=+—H &
approximate their fair values. W BEIE Y EESEAEE N BEMRE -
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28. FE W mt & E K18

AT AREREREFIRERHR A 2 RIEEKE

28.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their present values

at the reporting date are as follows: ERENEBRIE -
2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current receivables: JETREN FE U FRIE
Gross finance lease receivables FEM B E T ERIH AR FE 2,111 4,451
Unearned finance income RERE 2 @& WA (67) (243)
2,044 4,208
Current receivables: D PE UK IE -
Gross finance lease receivables FEUR B E TR E R 5 2,395 3,043
Unearned finance income RERELZ g & WA (151) (264)
2,244 2,779
Gross receivables from finance leases: REBERE ZERTIBHALE :
Not later than 1 year —FRA 2,395 3,043
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years —FREMFERN 1,908 2,235
Later than 2 years but not later than 3 years MEBRR=FNK 197 2,055
Later than 3 years but not later than 4 years —FERMNFA 6 161
Gross finance lease receivables FEM B E T ERIH AR EE 4,506 7,494
Unearned finance income REREZ BE WA (218) (507)
Net finance lease receivables ERmEHEEREFHE 4,288 6,987
The net finance lease receivables EUEEHEREFERIR
are analysed as follows: UTEEDH
— Not later than 1 year - —FR 2,244 2,779
— Later than 1 year but not later than 4 years - —FEREROFA 2,044 4,208
4,288 6,987
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

29.0THER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

29. HL £t FE W RRIH -

BRERFEN

E
PREPAYMENTS IE

2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Other receivables H b FE RIS 2,108 2,538
Deposits Ze 4,896 5,948
Prepayments TERRIE 12,962 8,313
Amount due from ultimate holding company BEEIERR A RIR R 832 832
Amount due from immediate holding company — EEHERL A &) /R K - 1,084
Amounts due from associates i NCTDSE= 1,501 149
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary —MRZMEB A RIRK 405 =

Other receivables, deposits and HEWRIE -« ke RN - 2%
prepayments — gross 22,704 18,864
Less: ECL allowance o TEEME EETEREE (832) (832)
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — net EAhEUIE - &e RFENFIE - F5E 21,872 18,032

As at 31st December 2021 and 2020, amounts due from ultimate holding
company, immediate holding company, associates and a fellow subsidiary are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The balances (before ECL allowance) are denominated in the following currencies:

RIBEZ—FRZZ_FFF+-_A=1+—0H ' &

RIERARIRR - HIE

R M —ERIZEMEB R B RFBEER - BN
JEENRERE - ANBREIME  REZREESR

HARBERS -

ERARIRK - BE AT

i FEATREYE BB IRAMEAT) TIA TS IEHEHE -

2021 2020

—EB-—-F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER TAT

HKD BT 13,660 12,030
THB Zebk 1,715 1,526
RMB AR 2,876 2,242
NTD e 822 978
usD =TT 1,664 541
MOP ks 1,967 1,547
22,704 18,864

As at 31st December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of other receivables
and deposits approximate their fair values.

30. CONTRACT ASSETS

As at 31st December 2021 and 2020, the balance represented contract costs
incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings.

The movement of contract assets for both years is due to the progress of the
projects and various billing patterns. As at 31st December 2021, the increase
(2020: decrease) of contract assets is mainly due to increase (2020: decrease) of
ongoing contracts during the year.
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/= 4=
31.BANK BALANCES AND CASH NBITERRESE
As at 31st December 2021, bank balances carry interest at market rates with an RNZZE-—F+ZA=+—8 ' RITERIZTIS
average interest rate of 0.03% (2020: 0.06%) per annum. MEFE - FHEFELR0.03% (ZT=TF
0.06%) °

RITFERRIEL AT EEE -
Bank balances and cash are denominated in the following currencies: ROFERRBEATIIRREE

2021 2020
—EB-—F =T=TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
HKD BT 145,699 246,461
RMB NG 59,374 4,766
NTD A 10,351 7,941
usb =TT 362,262 95,007
THB TRk 11,341 10,902
MOP P 14,807 5,354
Other currencies EhEH 113 90
603,947 370,521
32.SHARE CAPITAL 32. i A
Number
of shares Amount
ROHE x|
HK$'000
FH T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREE010EBTZEBR
Authorised: EERA
At 1st January 2020, 31st December 2020, R=-E=ZF—-H—A8 -
1st January 2021 and 31st December 2021 —ECEF+-A=+—H"
—BE-—F—-A—-HRK
—E-—H+=-H=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHZE :
At 1st January 2020 RZZE=FTF—H—H 827,314,061 82,731
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise PRI TR 3T 2 E AR
of share options 2,993,903 300
At 31st December 2020 and 1st January 2021 R=-Z_TF+-_A=+—-HK
—E-_—%—-H—H 830,307,964 83,031
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise REEIRERI TR BT 2 SRR
of share options 3,276,228 327
At 31st December 2021 R=-B-_—5+=-A=+—H 833,584,192 83,358
All the shares in issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing REFNBTHMBERMDEEARRERES A
shares of the Company in all respects. EHIRE RN =6 RS -
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33.TRADE PAYABLES

B.ENEZ

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the reporting date, based on ERESFRIERERBIRBNREEE 2Rk D
payment due date, is as follows: IR UNNE
2021 2020
—E-—F T -TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHEIT
Current BNHR 180,403 192,406
Within 30 days 30 KA 51,341 67,950
- 60 days 31 260K 13,522 6,938
- 90 days 61 £ 90K 1,473 2,199
Over 90 days #3890 X 11,769 13,064
258,508 282,557
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: REERTIA TSI EBEHE
2021 2020
—EB-_—F —ECTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
HKD BT 183,623 183,528
RMB AR 4,020 1,814
usb x7T 56,647 73,723
THB ESTS 12,350 20,498
NTD etk 1,383 2,908
Other currencies EihEH 485 86
258,508 282,557

At the reporting date, the carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair
values.

34.OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

REIRE - EBRNES
GEE=

4. H B

IR REERE RS

fEE

RIE N BT E A

2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Other payables H A FETFRIE 5,871 7,595
Accruals (Note (i) FE&H & A (FIEE () 149,591 162,258
Amount due to ultimate holding company IR B %~ R ERIE (B EE (i)
(Note (ii)) 1,276 1,250
Amounts due to associates (Note (ii)) IR 8 N A R IE (B (i) - 408
156,738 171,511
Notes: BiEE -
(i)  Asat 31st December 2021, accruals mainly included unsettled transaction costs directly () RZF=Z—F+=-A=+—H ' BFtEBEXE

BREAINZALEMEREEEZRIRAL
2,121,000% 7t ( =& = & & : 36,558,000 % 7T )
(F7E44) K& B2 FIF X T8HR4Y 11,466,000 7T
(ZZ =4 : 86,810,000/87T) °

attributable to the Disposal amounted to HK$2,121,000 (2020: HK$36,558,000) (Note
44) and provision of employee benefit expenses amounted to HK$11,466,000 (2020:
HK$86,810,000).

REBIER AR RHE D
R B RBERERREER -

Al 2 RIS A

(i)~ The amounts due to ultimate holding company and associates are unsecured, interest (i)
free and are repayable on demand.
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34.OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS contnuesy 4. HEMENFERESTEH @

The balances are denominated in the following currencies: HEARTIA TSI B’ RHE -
2021 2020
—B-—fF —T-FF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HKD BT 129,926 113,408
usb XL 13,392 47,548
RMB ARE 8,318 5,578
NTD e 1,373 1,314
THB TR 2,586 2,475
MOP BPIH 1,143 1,188
156,738 171,511
At the reporting date, the carrying values of other payables and accruals REARE - EfbERTIE R ES B A 2 BRE(E R
approximate their fair values. HARBEES -
A4
35.RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 35. T8 X 1 &8
Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to delivery TEHSZH&Z%EEU?&HE%@LWHXZ F(ERERR
of goods which is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss AR A IBm R R &hﬁiﬁﬁﬂ‘“ﬁuﬂﬂlﬂiz
upon the delivery of goods; and provision of service which is recognised in the BHR(HERNEBAEFP AN AN RS BEERE
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the service period stipulated in the BRRER) ° BAZ BN IE KB WERG] B
respective customer contract. Contract liabilities arising from billings in advance SRTELEZEHAE ARG S
of performance recognised and from receiving deposits of orders are reported as
receipts in advance.
The decrease (2020: increase) of receipts in advance as at 31st December 2021 is RZBE_—F+=—A=+—8 BlkksEzZR>
mainly due to decrease in billings in advance and deposit received from customers (ZZ=ZF : EZ)N) FZEHRAFER T I
during the year (2020: increase in billings in advance and deposit received as a ?%ZHW%T%M >ABR AT U TE (S SR8 R IR @R
result of more service orders received from customers). (ZZ=ZF : #EPIS ZRIGET EIZANAR
PR /I8 R IZ 238 hN) ©
As at 1st January 2021, receipt in advance amounted to HK$239,629,000 (2020: EA:;:f*i A—A - BiE 4 239,629,000
HK$176,533,000), of which HK$213,671,000 (2020: HK$156,090,000) has been BIT(ZZTZFF : 176,533 OOO/%TE) EREE
recognised as revenue during the year ended 31st December 2021. 213,671,0007% 7t ( = & — Z 4 : 156,090,000 %
TERBE_ZT S+ -_A=1+—HILFEMH®
RN ©
/=i
36.BANK BORROWINGS 36. RITEE
2021 2020
—E=-F —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current RENERD
Bank borrowings, secured BIEBRITEER 101,099 145,938
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36.BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 36.BRITRE @

The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows: REBRITEEERPAT -
2021 2020
—B-—fF —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHET
Within one year or on demand —FLANSIRERKEE 101,099 145,938
The bank borrowings are repayable by 60 equal monthly instalments commencing WITEER-_T—NFE=A =+t NBRESTH
from 29th March 2019 and bears interest at floating interest rate. As at 31st BRASEIHNRER  WIRFBFEFHE -
December 2021, the bank borrowings bears interest at floating interest rate and MRZB-—F+-A=+—8  RITBEUE
are denominated in HKD with an effective interest rate of 3.39% (2020: 4.11%) TTEEMN  BRFNERE339% (T _ZFF :
per annum. 4.11%) °
As at 31st December 2021, the bank borrowings are secured by: RZZBZ—F+"A=+—H  RITEELATII
BIAMEIEA -
(1) the legal charges over the Group’s land and buildings with carrying amount (1) AEBEERMEEL 166,700,000 (=T =
of approximately HK$166,700,000 (2020: HK$166,700,000) (Note 46); T 1 166,700,000/8 ) 2 L RIEF 2
SEEEAR (B3 46)
(2) the legal charges over the Group's investment properties with carrying () AEHEKMES430000BT(ZF-F
amount of HK$54,300,000 (2020: HK$54,300,000) (Note 46); 4 : 54,300,000 7C) 2 IREWHE 2 EEE
# (MizEd6)
(3) the guarantees given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group () HARFEARE IH:FWE"ﬂf’EtHZ?
up to a limit of HK$330,000,000 (2020: HK$330,000,000); = PR %8 4330,000,000 T (== 4 :
330,000,000 87C) Z &4R :
(4) assignment of rental and sales proceeds from the Group’s land and buildings (4) HBEAEEIMREFRIEEVEZASR
and investment properties; and 6 W
(5) assignment of insurance of all insurance policies (other than third party (5) HEAEELHNEBFREREMEMERE
liabilities and public liabilities) over the Group’s land and buildings and 2R (B=FEERAEEERIN) ©
investment properties.
The banking facilities of term loan is subject to the fulfilment of certain financial EHERZBITREAFEAAEEETHER
and non-financial covenants relating to certain subsidiaries of the Group, which Al BT B RIENBRFENEFEE - M
are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the EZ$§QWM RESRMERT 2 EERHE - H
Group was to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become AEBE R  FTRDEFEEREREE -

repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is up to REBTHEREETRABR - BBEZB—
the date with the scheduled repayments of the loans and does not consider it HIZTEIERER HZKE.WL\%EZ’KE.%£=
probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so MR ZEERNERT - RITPAATRETITEER
long as the Group continues to meet these requirements. TEREESER

Subject to repayment on demand clauses which can be exercised at the banks’ E?E/_—J’i\%ﬁ’ﬂ’\i’ﬂiﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ?éﬂ BRIRREFRR
sole discretion, the above bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities as at T RIBZ—FRIZBES A=+ —
31st December 2021 and 2020. B UERITEEDERRBAE
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37.DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement during the year
are as follows:

37.

e TS ERRMIEE
F+o A=+ RLER

IESE FTiS B

FAREGE BN R PTHER 2B TS
BE/ (@) 2By REESHIRMT

2021 2020

—E--F —FFF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHET

At 1st January m—HA—H (203,373) (61,958)
Tax charged to other comprehensive income BEMEEERTIE (1,754) (355)
Tax credited/(charged) to profit or loss Bigzst A (HBR) #18 2,339 (126,113)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HEMTE QR (i 44) - (15,005)
Disposal of partial interest in an associate HEBE QRS R 35,613 =
Exchange realignment PE 5 AR (741) 58
At 31st December W+—A=+—H (167,916) (203,373)

The investments in the PRC, Thailand and the US incorporated operations give
rise to taxable temporary differences arising from the distribution of profits by
way of withholding tax.

As at 31st December 2021 and 2020, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Thailand and US. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investment in a subsidiary in Thailand and US for which deferred income tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$9,281,000 (2020:
HK$8,192,000) and HK$1,133,563,000 (2020: HK$1,060,300,000), respectively
as at 31st December 2021.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31st December 2021, the Group had total tax losses
of approximately HK$16,343,000 (2020: HK$17,418,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in
respect of tax loss of approximately HK$9,246,000 (2020: HK$14,978,000)
due to unpredictability of future profit streams, of which approximately
HK$8,931,000 (2020: HK$13,161,000) will expire within 1 to 5 years,
approximately HK$215,000 (2020: HK$1,717,000) will expire within 6 to 10
years and HK$100,000 (2020: HK$100,000) with unlimited expiry date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for the consideration shares
received by a US subsidiary, GDD, from the Disposal as set out in Note 44. Such
consideration shares will be taxed until they are sold. As at 31st December 2021,
the Group had deferred tax liabilities in relations these consideration shares of
approximately HK$110,219,000 (2020: HK$147,077,000), which is calculated
based on the US federal tax rate of 21% (2020: 21%) and the applicable US
state tax rate.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z B ER A A

RENRE - T KRR Z 2 RIE L ERT
BREER  REZLAEMT TR 5K F P
B o

RZZB=Z—FRk=_F_ZTF+=-A=+—HB &
S BN RE R EBSA S Z B A TZEEE
E AR EE 2 BINRERELTEE - 22
EERA - EZ%WEQEE/&TE%XTﬁTﬁ%
EBRET - HERRERERNKBARRES
Fzﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ'\ﬁﬁﬁé%%ui@tﬂ 281,000 7T (—
T i 8,192,000 7T ) % 1,133,563,000 /&
TT(=Z =F4 : 1,060,300,0007% 7T ) I EFER
BEFTSIRALE -

AR BB iR AR IR =R A aLE AR
RIERBEE A T AR IR E BIRERBELEMER
BE -WN-_E-_—F+=-A=+—8" Zliﬁlﬁ
TRIBEI84E5E4) /516,343,000 T ( 2T 4F :
17,418,000 % 7T, ) A] R {EHEH AR AR F o AR

B T8 R AR A B SROR - aﬂzjrﬂﬁmﬁlﬁréﬁazm
9,246,000 7L (=T =4 : 14,978,000 7t )
Eﬁu VRIEFTIS I & EE - HLFR478,931,0008 7T (=
T T4 :13,161,00087L) R —E2 A FAE
B - M#7215,0008 (=T =F% : 1,717,000
,%E)Hﬂ’\/\iJriW FIH8 K2 49 100,0008 7T (=
T T4 ¢ 100,000/87T) BERE -

BN FE44FTEL BTGB HAE R —ME
B T/ A A GDD%ﬁﬁﬁ¢$mﬁzﬂxzwﬁﬁfﬁﬂx
R o ZSERORER LS TR -
——F+ZA=1+—H8 FXEEEBZSEHRHA
BZEERBEEL110,219,0008 (==
%i : 147,077,000) mw;%maﬁwmm%

\—7
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37.DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The
movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of

balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

37.RIEFT B @)

= EAASEAMRIAE ER AT IRA G R
BZEEERABER-—HBE
RS ER - RIS EE A BRI
PR B ETREE - RFR - BEMSHEE

FORITHER] -

REE (PRIER—FIRE R AR T

Accelerated
tax Share-based
depreciation Revaluation Interests in Intangible payment
and others  of properties associates assets Tax loss expenses Total
MmEHE NRHE
HEREM s ETERMER BVEE fiBEE  EEXAER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Th Thr Fin Thn Thn T Th
At 1t January 2020 R-2-25-A-R (1,535) (19829 - @17 - 10577 (61958)
Charged to other comprehensive income 52 iR - (359) = = = = (355)
(Charged)/Credited to profit o loss (I8) /3T ARBA %
from discontinued operations £iER 74 - (147.11) 310 25,609 (4,79) (125,920)
(Charged)/Credited to profit or oss (1K) /3t ARERELE
from continuing operations (Note 16) £ (it 16) (578) - - - 385 - (193)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) L EREAR (Had) (4,465) - - 20769 (25,578) (5,731) (15,005)
Exchange realignment EXAE 5 - 4 93 (30) (50) 58
At 31st December 2020 and 1t January 2021 R=Z=FF+=A=1-A
i S = (6499 o1 (170m) ; 3% - (un)
Charged to other comprehensive income ~ BEM2EREFR - (1,754) - - - = (1,754)
(Charged)(Credited to profit or oss (k) /3t A (432) - 1986 - 785 - 2339
Disposal of partial interestin anassociate ~ (HEBERRFHER - - 35,613 - - - 35,613
Exchange realignment B8 - - (141) = > = ()
At 315t December 2021 RZB=-F+ZA=1-A (6,931) (51,937) (110,219) - 111 - (167,916)
The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows: BIEFTISRZ AT -
2021 2020
—E-F —ETF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Deferred income tax assets Lkﬁﬁ SHEE 1,293 513
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSTAE (169,209) (203,886)
(167,916) (203,373)
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38.LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s

lease liabilities:

38.

e SRR

F+ZA=+—HILFE

HERE

TRENAEERERB A OTHERE

2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
Total minimum lease payments: RIRE SRR -
Due within one year —FRE|H 6,292 5,498
Due in the second to fifth years ZERFANTE 6,314 1,308
12,606 6,806
Future finance charges on lease liabilities RREEBREZVBER (474) (370)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 12,132 6,436
2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
Present value of minimum lease payments: HEBERE :
Due within one year —FRE|H 5,956 5,261
Due in the second to fifth years —ERFANTE 6,176 1,175
12,132 6,436
Less: Portion due within one year included W BREERSAER
under current liabilities b Eofsigh) (5,956) (5,261)
Portion due after one year included under BIEEIERE A ER —F1&
non-current liabilities B ER ER (D 6,176 1,175

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group entered into seven (2020:
six) lease agreements for use of office premises with remaining lease term of one
to two years (2020: one to two years). The Group makes fixed payments during
the contract periods. Two of the lease agreements contains an option for further
extending the lease period for additional two years by giving a six-month notice
and three-month notice to landlord before the end of the lease. The Group
considered that no extension or termination option would be exercised at the
lease commencement date.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group entered into two (2020:
two) lease agreements for use of office equipment with remaining lease term of
two to three years (2020: four years). The Group makes fixed payments during
the contract periods. The leases do not contain any renewal options. The Group
considered the option would not be exercised at the lease commencement date.

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the total cash outflows for the
leases are HK$8,287,000 (2020: HK$14,950,000).

BE-Z-—F+-_A=+—BIFE F5H
BRI (225 : D) ERRB—EMEF
(ZZ2_ZF: —=MF) BRERARIENEZ
HEAR - AEERAHBAERENRK o K
—“HEEARBERHEH AR THER R
18 A R ={E A BMPABLERBIRFEERZ
R AEEREERKBEEE TR ZE
e

BE_Z-—F+-A=+—BLFE F5E
BZAIMND (C22FF - M) EFRBRE=F

“EROTF ) FHERRAEREZEE
AR - AERERENHAEEENK - ZHED
BEEAEHEN - AEERHEERBASER
PITEEFLHER) -

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+— EIthFT‘; CFE
24X H 58,287,000 T (ZE T F :
14,950,000 7T) ©

o=e Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 R BB R AR
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E_T_—HF+_A=1+—HItFE

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company's share option scheme which was adopted on 8th August 2002 (the
“2002 Share Option Scheme”) was expired and a new share option scheme was
adopted by an ordinary resolution passed at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 13th March 2017 (the “2017 Share Option Scheme”).

Upon the expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, no further option can be
offered thereunder but any options granted prior to such expiry but not yet

exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable.

39. BB IR AE ST &l

ARRR-ZE_F)\ A\ BRGEREE
BEm ([ — 22 - FRRERE ) - iERE
AER T —EF=AT=AZERBHIAE L
BE AT RREMRG (2 F B
EID

mR—TT R BIELER  ARFT
SHRBIEBTAIRRE - MAARER B AR
R B BB A (9N E R I T AR AR T ©

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme

Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including Directors and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general
requirement that an option must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised but the Directors of the Company are empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Directors of the Company at its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been

granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than
the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of the options; (b) the average of the closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of a

share. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 7th August 2012.
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HEZ=ZF =

39. BB AR FEST 8l ()
—EEFERESTE ()
TREBAASESRE ST _FHERE

The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and movements in such holdings

during the years ended 31st December 2021 and 2020:

BT RAR M

—F+=f=+—AILFE

HEZBRRENBE S —F R
T+ A=+ ALEERERE S

A
2021 —s-—5
Number of options
BREsA
Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2021 the year the year the year 2021
R=B=-% R=B=-%
Grant date RHAH SRTEE -A-H FREL FREN EpfiE t-A=1-A
19th March 2012 “E-ZEZAthA HK$0.704 185,700 - - - 185,700
0.704 87
2nd May 2012 “E2-"FRACA HK$0.728 170,228 - - (170,228) -
0.728 787
355,928 - - (170,228) 185,700
Weighted average exercise NEFISRTER HK$0.715 - - HK$0.728 HK$0.704
price per share 0.7115%7 - - 0.728%% 0.704 %7
Number of options exercisable R=B=-%
at 31t December 2021 tZA=t-A
ARNERESE 185,700
Weighted average exercise price R=B=-%
per share of options exercisable T-B=1-H
at 31t December 2021 WTERNEREN HKS0.704
MEFISRITEE 0.704 %7
Weighted average remaining MEFENE 0.3 year
contractual life RHEH 03%

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z B ER A A
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39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

39. FE IR A&l

() 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —SST-FERESE®)
2020 —EoF
Number of options
g A
Exercise At st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2020 the year the year the year 2020
RIB-ZE RIZ_ZE
Grant date RtRH BRTRE -A-H ERi ERKiR EWfE TZR=1-A
19th March 2012 “E-_fZAThH HK$0.704 557,100 - (92,847) (278553) 185,700
0.704 %7
2nd May 2012 “Z--FRA-H HK$0.728 170,228 = = = 170,228
072877
727,328 - (92,847) (278,553) 355,928
Weighted average exercise MEFAERTER HK$0.710 - HK$0.704 HK$0.704 HK$0.715
price per share 0.71087 - 070457 0.704%7 071557
Number of options exercisable N
at 31st December 2020 +ZA=1+-A
AfTRMERESE 35,928
Weighted average exercise price 3
per share of options exercisable +-A=1-H
at 31st December 2020 AfTENERED HK$0.715
IEFHERTEE 07157
Weighted average remaining TSR 1.3 years
contractual life BNES 13%

The options granted on 19th March 2012 and 2nd May 2012 were vested
equally on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date.
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39. BB IR REEH Bl e

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme

2017 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 13th March
2017 and is valid and effective for a period of ten years from 13th March
2017.

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Company and/or its subsidiaries. The Board may,
at its discretion, grant options to any eligible employee, executive or officer
including Directors of the Company or its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at 13th March 2017, the date of approval of
the adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme. Unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be
achieved before the option can be exercised. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the options; (b)
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

(i) —F—tFERETE

RAARIRZZE—tF=ZA+=AKH=ZF
—CFERERTE  HBERRER R
T—t+tF=A+=RHBET+F -

T FRERET SN E MEEARAFEE
HE ERE 2 EE R I LA Bk ol
WEANEHN, SEMBLBRNERS - EF
BRARAEMNSERER  THRARISABE
S (BREARRLEMBARIZESR)XHE
BIEARBEARARAI RN - RIF-T—LFH
PRAEET B T 1R RO PR A BB AR T R ]
BITORNEE SR EEAN _T—+
F=ZRA+=AHERB T —FHERE
FEIZA)BBHITROEEZ10% ° BRER
REPRERALESN - PER 128 A BEAE
TEUAERZ2EENBLE (BEETE
R W ARITEE RO BB AR ) AT REM BT RS T
BT AR THBERRRIEHTR
AR 1% °

EREBRECANEH AR 28 KA
By ZAEREBEAST VUBTERAR
B - B2 2ENERINNERER 717
AR ER2EEAFABREZEARE
HIR KRR T A B R2EE
IREBZEFRRBE - ITEEREZH
RASAARREEZRIISET @ HEEME
RiE—EDERR L B R 1058817
15 o

TEREVHRESSETE - EETELRUT
=EHEFZBREE  QBRMHRBRERDL A
WX e A RERMIZKWHIE ()
BN ERBRERE A REEXAE
B2 PrE BIRERMIIZFHRTHE © R
PeinmEfE
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-
39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coninued) 39. BRI HERT &l o)
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —S—+tFERETE (D)
The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees TEREBSEAREE(BREER)BE-Z
(including Directors) under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and movements —t+FEREFEZERERREBZ_F
in such holdings during the years ended 31st December 2021 and 2020: T RIECTFTZA=T—HIEFEZ
SRE2EETHE
2021 —EB-—fF
Number of options
BRESA
Exercise At st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2021 the year the year the year 2021
R=B=-% R=B=-%
Grant date RHAH BRITKE -A-B FREH EREH ERfif  +=R=t-A
31st March 2017 ZE-tE=fA=1-A HK$0.970 19,600,000 - (238,300) (2,679,400) 16,682,300
0.970 787
28th April 2017 “E-tEMAZTN\A HK$0.909 7,260,000 - - - 7,260,000
0909787
13th December 2017 “E2-tE+ZAt=R HK$0.867 1,281,450 - (69,300) (426,600) 785,550
0.867 787
28,141,450 - (307,600) (3,106,000) 24,721,850
Weighted average exercise NEFHERITER HK$0.950 - HKS0.947 HK$0.956 HK$0.949
price per share 0.950 87 - 0.947 387 0.956 387 0.949 387
Number of options exercisable ~ W=ZE=—%
at 31t December 2021 TZB=1-H
UENERERE 21,455,535
Weighted average exercise pricc  R=F-—%
per share of options exercisable  T=A=+—H
at 31st December 2021 WTENEREN HK$0.952
MEFISRTEE 0.952%7%
Weighted average remaining ~ MEFIHE 5.30 years
contractual life CLES 530%
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.
39.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 39. BB IR HERT &l o)
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) Z=—tFEREFTE (@)
2020 —E-FF
Number of options
BREA

Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st

price January during during during December

per share 2020 the year the year the year 2020

e 2 e

Grant date RLRS BRITER -A-H EREL ERER Emfe  T-A=t-A

31st March 2017 “Z-t£=A=1-H HK$0.970 23,057,100 = (907,500) (2,549,600) 19,600,000
0.970 %7

28th April 2017 “E-+EMA=1+/\A HK$0.909 7,260,000 = = = 7,260,000
0.909 %7

13th December 2017 “F-+E+-A+=A HK$0.867 1,447,200 = = (165,750) 1,281,450
0.867 4T

31,764,300 - (907,500) (2,715,350) 28,141,450

Weighted average exercise METHERTER HK$0.951 - HK$0.970 HK$0.964 HK$0.950

09513 = 0.970%7 096457 0.950%7

Number of options exercisable RZZ-%%
at 315t December 2020 TZA=1-H
A TREERERE 19,787,510

Weighted average exercise price W=Z-%F
per share of options exercisable ~ TZA=+—H

at 31st December 2020 AfTiReER R HK$0.960

RSB EE 096087

Weighted average remaining IHETSHE 6.30 years

contractual ife AfES 630
During the year ended 31st December 2021, there was no share options REBZE-Z-_—F+-A=+—HILFE
granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme (2020: Nil). W88 —F —t FRERERT &I T a0 B

H(ZZ_ZTF &) o

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group recognised total RBE_Z-—F+_A=+—HILFE "
expense of approximately HK$282,000 (2020: HK$787,000) in relation AEERGEIBERTHERE-S—FHE
to equity-settled share-based payment transactions under the 2017 Share IREFTEI TARD AERI N 2 RFAZH
Option Scheme and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 282,000/ 7L (=T —F 4 : 787,000/87T)

with a corresponding credited to the share-based payment reserve. A AR An 7B EERE ST A R A BR
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THE COMPANY

40.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

40. A =) B FE AR SR 3=

2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi&xT FAET
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 4 67
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 428,893 428,893
Deferred income tax assets BEMEHEE 1,293 513
430,227 429,473
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAhEWFIE - 12e RIERFIA 205 71
Amount due from immediate holding company B A AR K - 1,084
Amounts due from subsidiaries {SIESNCIVSE N 664,618 439,744
Amount due from an associate —RIEEE A RIR K 66 63
Tax recoverable AT B I8 - 133
Bank balances and cash RITEREES 2,117 5,296
667,006 446,391
Total assets wEE 1,097,233 875,864
Equity s
Share capital [i&N 83,358 83,031
Share premium f1n i B iR 403,043 399,272
Reserves (Note) fib s (B E) 104,668 109,138
Total equity R 591,069 591,441
Current liabilities RENEE
Other payables and accruals H T RE R ERT B 17,690 9,180
Amount due to ultimate holding company IREAEIERR A R FIB 93 92
Amounts due to subsidiaries RHIE A RIFIE 488,381 275,151
506,164 284,423
Total liabilities wmaE 506,164 284,423
Total equity and liabilities BERRAE 1,097,233 875,864
Net current assets REBEETE 160,842 161,968
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBAR 591,069 591,441

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30th March

2022.

WANG Weihang
e 3

Director
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40.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40.7x2 B B AR R 3k o)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: The movement of the Company'’s reserves are as follows:

fiiE  ARAREZEBOT :

Share- Retained
Convertible based earnings/
bonds payment  (Accumulated
Special reserve reserve losses)
reserve gL SR RER REBA,/ Total
BRI E BHEE e (R3HEX) #st
(Note (i)
(FHEEG))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FEL TET FHT FET
At 1st January 2020 RZT-FF—H—H 95,513 10,209 9,024 (17,220) 97,526
Profit for the year FEREF - = = 96,966 96,966
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise IEBRER R T2 TRR
of share options - - (928) - (928)
Recognition of equity-settled RUARG AER S A2 S
share-based payments - - 787 - 787
Lapse of share options transferred BEERERMN I RBERE
to retained earnings - - (239) 239 -
Redemption of convertible bonds R AR R ES - (10,209) - 10,209 =
Final dividend for the year ended BE-T-NG+=-A=+—H
31st December 2019 and EFEZRARERERRE
special dividend - - - (85,213) (85,213)
At 31st December 2020 and RZZZZF+-A=1+—H
1st January 2021 k=Z=—%—A—H 95,513 - 8,644 4,981 109,138
Profit for the year FEREA - - - 221,233 221,233
Issue of ordinary shares upon IEERERE T TRk
exercise of share options - - (1,006) - (1,006)
Recognition of equity-settled TR RER A 2%
share-based payments - - 282 - 282
Lapse of share options transferred BEZREAMN RBRE
to retained earnings - - (58) 58 -
Final dividend for the year ended BE-T-TF+-A=t—H
31st December 2020 and HFE 7 RER S RERIRE
special dividend - - - (224,979) (224,979)
At 31st December 2021 RZB--§5+=A=+—H 95,513 - 7,862 1,293 104,668
(i)  The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between the () AARZERFERENBEFERRQT AR
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share BB A /) B 21 TIR AN M 21T 2 AR D E(E B
capital of the subsidiaries and the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired FKENB AR EESE =5 - BiEEE
in prior years. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the FE-NLN\—FERENE(REE)  HESE
contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are reasonable grounds for IBIEAAR(S N5 & 18 - B A BB A o
believing that: IR
(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities (1) ZAARBEINEENREEEIANAEES
as they become due; or BRI NEE 8
(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less than the 2) ARRBEZALBREEEAMISRE
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium BEEEDBHITHRAUREDEER Y
account. FEV I
(i) As at 31st December 2021, in the opinion of the directors, the aggregate amount (i RZB-_—F+-_A=+—B EFR

of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$96,806,000 (2020: HK$100,494,000).

B AIRSERTARABRANEEAZ#E
4 FE 4 596,806,000 T(—Z T T F ¢
100,494,000/87T) °

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z B ER A A
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41.CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash generated from operations

FH-—A=+—HIFE

NBEEHREER
(a) REEBZHESWA

2021 2020
—EB_—F —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FABT
Profit before income tax bR ET1S B A g A
— From continuing operations - REFELEER 29,909 53,389
— From discontinued operations (Note 17)  — SR B4R IHACE 75 (BisE17) - (19,768)
29,909 33,621
Adjustments for: KRR
— Share of results of associates (Note 23) & NSIE S (b E)) 30,427 63,480
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 22) — #EfZ & E#4S (FfzE22) - 2,364
— Depreciation of property, plant and - W% - BB REREE (FiFE20)
equipment (Note 20) 23,513 23,381
— Loss on deemed disposal of partial interest — R {EH SHt & A R EH S 2 B8 (FFE9)
in an associate (Note 9) 176,471 708
— Gain on disposal of partial interest in - HEHE N R R D w2 M (MR 9)
an associate (Note 9) (129,617) -
— Gain on additional interest in an associate  — B4 /A RIRESMERSE A 2 Week (MH5E9)
(Note 9) (25,909) -
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and - HEWE - BB KRBz W (FiEE9)
equipment (Note 9) (98) -
— Fair value loss on investment properties -REWHEZ AREEEE
(Note 21) (B¥aE21) - 1,500
— Provision for/(Reversal of provision for) -REFEEE (BERR) FE
obsolete inventories, net (Note 12) (B¥aE12) 63 (265)
— Interest income — FBRA (43) (839)
— Interest expenses (Note 11) - MBI H (FisE11) 3,956 8,528
— Equity-settled share-based payment - AR BERT N 2HE
expenses 282 11,635
— ECL allowance for trade receivables - BB SR BHEEEIERE
(Note 27) (M 27) 3,768 6,141
— Reversal of ECL allowance for - BB S FIE BHEEEERERE
trade receivables (Note 27) (Pf5E27) (2,934) (551)
— ECL allowance for contract assets - BB EZBHEEEIBRE 847 =
— Write off of inventories (Note 12) - FEME (i 12) 74 1,226
— Changes in fair value on financial -BARBEEBERIIRNERAEY
liabilities at FVTPL \%1“@@@ - (1,805)
Changes in working capital: EBES
— Inventories -1FE (21,429) 54,252
— Trade receivables - BB S ® 67,153 (58,861)
— Finance lease receivables - F&“Wrﬁﬂﬁﬁ%?ﬁ( 2,699 638
— Other receivables, deposits and - H eI SRR - =& RIBN KA
prepayments (3,894) 7,997
— Contract assets -AREE (16,339) 86,536
— Restricted bank deposits - ZBRHIERITIER - 556
— Trade payables - FENE S 508 (24,774) (77,913)
— Other payables and accruals - BN FRIE R ESTE A 19,811 43,829
— Receipts in advance — UL =S (43,105) 63,060
Cash generated from operations KB 2B WA 90,831 269,268
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41.CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below set out the reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities for the years ended 31st December 2021 and 2020:

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HZ=ZF=—

e SRR

F+ZA=+—HILFE

NIREREER @
(b) ETEBEENEBHNYE

TREJBE—FT—_—FR_F_FF
H=t—BLFERETHELNAENY

AR -
Financial
Bank  Convertible Lease liabilities
borrowings bonds liabilities at FVTPL Total
BONEEE
BERIIE
RITEE RRES HESE Hemas st
(Note)
CiE3)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT FHT AT FHT
At 1st January 2020 RZZE-ZF—H—H 191,140 243,657 5,945 75,017 520,759
Cash flows Reng
~ Repayment of bank borrowings - BRFTEE (45,000) = = = (45,000)
— Interest paid -BERFE (6,166) = = = (6,166)
— Payment for redemption of - BRI AR ES 2
convertible bonds - (250,700) - - (250,700)
~ Principal portion of lease payments - HE[FAE 7D = = (5,899) - (5,899)
— Interest portion of lease payments  — A& HFI S 7B - - (347) - (347)
Non-cash changes FRLED
— Finance costs - WIS 5,997 2,043 347 = 8,387
— Entering into new leases (Note 20) - AIAHTAHE (KfzE20) - 7,330 - 7,330
— Fair value changes recognised - RERBER 2 AN EEZD
in profit or loss - - - (1,805) (1,805)
- Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) - HEMBA A (Hizt44) - = (967) (61,471) (62,438)
— Derecognition of financial o I }Tz/&/ﬂ“@iﬁiﬂ
liabilities at FVTPL BRFIRNEREE = = = (10,865) (10,865)
— Exchange difference -ERER - 27 (876) (849)
At 31st December 2020 and RZZZTFF+=A=+—HRK
1st January 2021 —E=—4%—f—H 145,971 - 6,436 - 152,407
Cash flows Reng
~ Repayment of bank borrowings - BRFTEE (45,000) - - - (45,000)
— Interest paid -BRHE (3,275) - - - (3,275)
~ Principal portion of lease payments  — HE[FAEE R - - (6,521) - (6,521)
— Interest portion of lease payments ~ — F & HF 827 - - (530) - (530)
Non-cash changes FReEH
— Finance costs - MR 3,426 - 530 - 3,956
— Entering into new leases (Note 20) - A1 A& (HizE20) - - 5,739 - 5,739
~ Reassessment of lease term hEREEE e
(Note 20) (Pt5E20) - - 6,406 - 6,406
— Exchange difference -ERER - - 72 - 72
At 31st December 2021 “EZ--#+t-A=+-H 101,122 - 12,132 - 113,254

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z B ER A A
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—_ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

Do ~— BpT~ A '\ [
41.CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) NBEETREER
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) REETBELENEBNWEHEIER @)
activities (Continued)
Note: B 5E
The following table shows the breakdown of the bank borrowings and interest payable TREIR T —FR-ZF_FTF+=-A
as at 31st December 2021 and 2020: =+—BRITEEREMNTIESZHMA
2021 2020
—g-—# —gogE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Bank borrowings (Note 36) RITIEE (FiFE36) 101,099 145,938
Interest payable (included in other payables FERFLE (BT E e 508
and accruals) NETERA) 23 33
101,122 145,971
=
42.LEASE COMMITMENTS 42. HEFHE
As lessee {EE A A
At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-term leases are as RIREHIRA @ CHIE 2 HERENT
follows:
2021 2020
—EC-F —ToFF
Office Office
premises premises
N MAEYZ
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAExT
Within one year —FR 702 265
As at 31st December 2021, the Group had not committed to any lease in RZZEZ—F+-A=+—H AEEWREE
which the lease had not yet commenced. As at 31st December 2020, the EMEAERAFANEAETN N2 F
Group had committed to a lease for office premises in which the lease had not +=ZRA=4+—H  AX&BEERBEEHRHAR 2
yet commenced. The total future cash outflows for this leases amounting to NEYHEBERL - ZIHEZARARBERESRER
HK$4,113,000 in aggregate. 4,113,000 7T °
As at 31st December 2021, leases for office premises are negotiated for an RZE_—F+=-A=+—8H" fb#"ﬁff%¥2ﬁ
average term of one year (2020: one year) and the rentals are fixed over the HFEE—FEE R (T _2F : —F) -
terms of the leases. SRBOANREE °
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42.LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

As lessor

At 31st December 2021, the Group had contracted with tenants and an associate
in respect of office premises under operating leases as follows:

8. FHEFEE =

EREEA

WZBE-Z—F+-R=+—H AKEERHA
EYHEZEFENEBS K — & R BT

T~
2021 2020
—E—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Not later than one year —FR 3,328 1,996
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years —FEREFA 1,541 1,950
4,869 3,946

Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of two years (2020:
two years) and the rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

43.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

MRNEYEZ VO FIEMEER —R(ZF =
TF  mF) HENEHAREE -

43. E AR EYE

2021 2020
B T T4
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Contracted but not provided for: EHEEE S
Capital expenditure in respect of property, M - BEREEIERNFEY
plant and equipment 367 1,015
Capital expenditure in respect of investment BanTHEZIRE 2 ERAX
in equity instrument - 11,319
367 12,334
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B I EHRARMIEE

—F+ZA=+—HILFE

44.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Following the Completion as set out in Note 17, Grid Dynamics Group ceased
to be subsidiaries of the Group. The following summarises the net assets of the
Disposal Group at Completion Date and gain on disposal of subsidiaries:

44, HEME A F
&R 317 ATl 2 SE R H & 7% - Grid Dynamics &
BETBAAEBZMBAR - T Xt EEE
REK BBz EEFERLENBAR 2K

2020

—T-TF

HK$'000

FHT

Property, plant and equipment M - WE &R 18,820
Intangible assets EREE 107,963
Goodwill B 763,394
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS B E 36,959
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5018 157,916
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H B FIE - iRe RIEMFHIE 44,351
Contract assets BREE 6,974
Tax recoverable AT e R IE 2,561
Bank balances and cash RITERKRIES 324,658
Lease liabilities HEAE (967)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RAnBEEBERIIENEHEE (61,471)
Other payables and accruals EAh RN FIEREGER (93,120)
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS T B & (6,554)
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISH A& (21,954)
Net assets disposed of HESEEEFE 1,279,530
2020

—ETF

HK$'000

FHT

Consideration: RE -

Cash consideration ReRE 727,507
Share consideration (Note) AR B (P3E) 1,813,591
2,541,098

Net assets of the Disposal Group LESECEEFE (1,279,530)
Non-controlling interests FERERR R R 47,354
Release of translation reserve of the Disposal Group HH S B (B I AR PR BB 4 (1 (3,413)
Derecognition of financial liabilities at FVTPL HILRERIR AN BEERERIIENEHERE 10,865
Transaction costs directly attributable to the Disposal HHEEHEZEEBZZIKA (206,789)
Gain on disposal of the Disposal Group HERE 2 HE W 1,109,585

Note:
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The share consideration represents 19,490,295 shares in GDH. The amount was determined
with reference to the share price quote of USD12 as at 5th March 2020.
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For the year ended 31st December 2021 HE—-T—-—F+_-_A=+—HItFE

44.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44, HE R A B s
Note: (Continued) FIEE : (8)
The gain on disposal of the Disposal Group is included in the profit for the period HeEEmEy HeEWS AR 17FE Y eaBsEy
from discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as BRI TS 2 AR F o
set out in Note 17. B -
2020
—T-TF
HK$'000
FHT
Analysis of the cash flows in respect of FRHESENEESRESNNT :
the Disposal is as follows:
Cash consideration RERE 727,507
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRE RAEEEY (324,658)
Transaction costs directly attributable to the Disposal (Note) £ H & =B EHEAERE 2 X 54 (Fi &) (170,231)
Net cash and cash equivalents inflow in
respect of the Disposal HESHEEARTFHRESRA 232,618
Note:
As at 31st December 2021, transaction costs directly attributable to the Disposal amounted %:§:f¢+:ﬂ Eij P BILESAERAERZ
to HK$2,121,000 (2020: HK$36,558,000) remains unsettled and included in accruals under RHMAR2,121,000# T (=F=F%F : 36,558,000
other payables and accruals. BIT)MARZA - WEEREAENFIENEBRA -
45.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 45. R ARME
As at 31st December 2021, performance bonds of approximately RZFB-_—FF+-A=+—8 ROKER
HK$102,540,000 (2020: HK$84,848,000) have been issued by the bank on RERTEFERGNERZEOREN S
behalf of the Group to customers as security of contracts. 102,540,00078 T ( = F = 4 : 84,848,000/
7o) e
46.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 46. G E R
As at 31st December 2021, land and buildings with carrying amount of R-ZFBZ—F+-A=+—8 AEEZLi
HK$166,700,000 (2020: HK$166,700,000) (Note 20) and investment properties RiEF 2 R % %5 166,700,000 8T (ZF =
with carrying amount of HK$54,300,000 (2020: HK$54,300,000) (Note 21) were F4F 166,700,000/ 7T) (M 20) RIREME
pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings. Z PR & # /354,300,000 B L( = F - FF

54,300,000787C) (Miz21) B BIIEAREE 2 8R1T
BEZHER -
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47.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31st December 2021, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 67.67% (2020: 54.83%)
of the Company’s issued shares. The remaining 32.33% (2020: 45.17%) of the
Company’s issued shares are widely held. The ultimate holding company of the

4]1.BBEALRS
R-ZB-_—F+-_A=+—8 FBEBX
REBARRNBRGD 267.67%( T =T F:
54.83%) ' $2 32.33% (ZF=F4F : 45.17%)

Company is Teamsun. BROBEMA LS - ARBIHKIZERAE A
FERERK ©
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EHEBEA LT ZXR S
2021 2020
—E=-—-F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Nature of transaction REME
Fellow subsidiaries: ERMELR :
Service income charged by the Group AR E Bz BRTSUA 504 =
Other income charged by the Group REBEFM Z A A 9 =
Service fee charged to the Group* REEXERSE R * 449 40
The associates: BE AT
Sales by the Group ZK%.@%JE 2,353 26,701
Purchases by the Group AEEEE 4,387 5,496
Staff costs charged by the Group AEERGRZETIRY 66 70
Rental income charged by the Group AEEFULZ AU 387 377
Expenses charged to the Group AEERSHZHAXZ - 405

Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to all customers and vendors.

Rental income was transacted with reference to the rental rates prevailing in
the market.

(b) The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in Notes 29 and 34.

(c) Key management personnel remuneration are disclosed in Notes 14 and 15.

Note:

* The related party transactions in respect of service fee charged to the Group by a
fellow subsidiary above constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the directors’ report.
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(b)

(c)

EmkRBEERAMEEFPRER —SER
ZERREGRETR S ©

>E

HEWATIZEMSERNBES/KTEE

AN B BLRRE A & 2 TR A A BRI 5E 29
B340

FEERABMERNHTE 14 R 15 AHEEE -

ME -

*

MAEEXNERMBERRRGE 2 LlElEA
IRGEREER SIFEMERS (FEER LN
BAIF14AE) - EHRBIF 14AEMREZKE
RESGREHHL
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48.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 8. TEM B AT ZFF1E

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2021 and RIBZ—FR-Z_TF+_A=+—H XK
2020 are as follows: RNRIZEEMBRARFHERT ¢

Country/place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully Percentage of
establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
ML, B L ERITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HMERAK NG Principal activities
) YNGR HEYE: 1] HfER BRITREABEDL TEEH
2021 2020

—B--f _—ZT_TH

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BERL(B8) BRAH 5 55,350,000 non- products and solutions and provision
voting deferred shares" of hardware services (including

HK$55,350,002 installation and maintenance services)

2 g im and software services (including

55,350,000 f% software development, consulting

ERERERER" and professional services)

55,350,002 77T REER  HEERERLRATR

RARGHEHRTS (BRELERRE
IR Ra it IR (2 RS R E -

BERREERE)

ELM Computer Technologies Limited Hong Kong 12,000,000 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
RME R G R A A B ordinary shares solutions and provision of hardware
HK$12,000,000 services (including installation and

12,000,000 fix maintenance services) and software

Tk services (including software

12,000,000 /87T development, consulting and

professional services)

THE B XA T R
AR (AL R RRERL) &
IR (RAER R - B R

BER)

ASL Softwing Investment Holdings Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Investment holding

Limited BB HK$10 REER
IR EER AR A E 10 AR A%
10/87T
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48.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2021 and

2020 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of

incorporation/

Issued and fully

B.ETERB AT ZFHE®

mn
/N

B2 T EMBARFENT : (8)

Percentage of

B FR-EBBES-A=+—H K

establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
AL, B L EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HERE/ AT s Principal activities
) PNGTEE EX/ 2 EMER BRTREBEDH TEXK
2021 2020
B —ZT-TH

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BE RS ORM) AR AR SRPY MOP$10,000 products and solutions and provision
AR of hardware services (including
BP9 10,000 7T installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
REZR  SHEBRERRBATR
RIS (BERERRE
AR ) AR AR S (B FER R 2
BRI REERE)
ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited Thailand 1,110,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
RE shares products and solutions and provision
THB50,000,000 of hardware services (including
1,110,000 A% & &R installation and maintenance services)
Z=#% 50,000,000 7T and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
REZR  HEBRERRBATR
RIS (BERERRE
AR ) AR AR S (B FE R R 3
R REERB)
Guangzhou Automated Systems PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Sale of computer products and

Limited (Note 1)
BENMREEZESRRERAR
(BFEE1)

206  Annual Report 2021 %R

H HK$110,000,000
(2020:
HK$40,000,000)
A A
110,000,000 7T
(ZE=TF:

—=—=

40,000,000 7T)

solutions and provision of hardware
services (including installation and
maintenance services) and software
services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)

THE BREm XA BRI

B IRTS (B R RRE RS ) ]2
B RTS (BEEARE  BRK
HER)
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48.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 48.FEMB AT Z5HE @

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2021 and ®n
2020 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully

FA

N
N\
AN

Percentage of

- HFRITZTFFA=+—HB " K
A2 EEMBARFBWT : (8)

establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
SR, B L EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HEBRE VNG iE S Principal activities
o) PN HEYE: L EMER BRITRAEDL TEXK
2021 2020
B —ZT-TH
ASL Security Solutions Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding
HEES HK$0.1 REER
1REER
0.1787T
ASL Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%*  Investment holding, sale of computer
KBRS usD1 products and solutions and provision
1 RE AR of hardware services (including
E installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
REZR - HEERERRBAR R
RRMHEM RS (BELERRE
RS R PR (BB 2
BRI REERE)
ELM Technologies Holdings British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited HEERAS usD1 REZER
1R AL
(E
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
KBRS usb2 ESSTE]
2R
2ETT
Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
RBEIES' UsD2 ESSYC]
2RE B
e
Express Profits British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
Development Limited KBRS usb2 MERE
2R AR
2ETT

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z B ER A A
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48.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

E_T_—HF+_A=1+—HItFE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2021 and

2020 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully

i

FA

N
N\
AN

B.ETERB AT ZFHE®

- HFRITZTFFA=+—HB " K
B2 EEMBARFEWT : (8)

Percentage of

establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
AL, B L EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HERE/ AT s Principal activities
L) YNGR R/t EMER ERITREEDL TEXK
2021 2020
B —ZT-TH
Automated Systems Fortune British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding, international
Investment Holdings Limited HBRELEHS! usD1 trading, fund investment and
1 REER treasury management
17T REZR  BERES  EeRER
GDB International Investment British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited RERIHE USD54,650,001 REER
2R
54,650,001 %&7T
GDD International Holding US 100 common stocks 100% 100% Investment holding
Company xB USD54,650,100 REZER
100 AR % sk
54,650,100 37T
Notes: B &E

1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the PRC as a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise. The paid up capital up to 31st December 2021 was HK$95,000,000

(2020: HK$40,000,000).

2. The Group disposed its entire interests in Grid Dynamics and its subsidiaries on 5th
March 2020. Details of disposal of subsidiaries are set out in Note 44.

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, carry practically

no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the Company nor to participate in any distribution on winding up.

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.

* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the reporting period.
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1. BMNREEXEEEREERARRFHZEMAE
HEBECE - BE-T-—F+-fA=+—
H # %1 R B ZX 495,000,000 T ( — 8 = T4 ¢
40,000,000 7)) °

2. AEER-_ZE-_ZF=-ARBHEERBRGrid
Dynamics & E 88 A R 2 #as o FHIBEMIFE44S -

N ERERRERWIEFAAARSE - &S
ZERE - WERARAREFABRREASHES KT
FEERAGNRE LIRE - 2EFREELEM
DIRFEBRRER] o

bt RERRARERRE -
* ARRERFAZHBRTE -

BERR LRANIARBANHBRAREIEXERFE
EESARAEBEEFENERHN D - EER AT
HHBARMNFESRIEBNTILE -

RAFEFER - BENBARNBTERNEBSES
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49. HEMRER

49.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(i)

(i)

Acquisition of property to set up headquarters in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay area

On 28th February 2022, Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited (the
“Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the Guangzhou housing stock sale and purchase contract (the
“Contract”) with Guangzhou Dingshang Company Limited (the “Vendor”).
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Contract, the Purchaser agreed
to acquire and the Vendor agreed to dispose a property located in Tianhe
District of Guangzhou at a total consideration of RMB42,470,130 (equivalent
to approximately HK$52,700,000). For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 28th February 2022 and 3rd March 2022.

Military Action in Ukraine

On 24th February, 2022, Russian forces launched significant military action
against Ukraine, and sustained conflict and disruption in the region is
possible. GDH, the Group’s associate, has a significant number of personnel
in Ukraine and Russia. Prolonged unrest, military activities, or broad-based
sanctions, should they be implemented, could have a material adverse effect
on GDH’s financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Owing
to market concerns about rising geopolitical risk in Russia and Ukraine, the
trading price of GDH’s shares (NASDAQ ticker symbol: GDYN) has dropped
significantly after the reporting date. The Group will closely monitor the
situation and assess the recoverable amount of interest in associates
regularly.

(i)

(ii)

BEMXEURY EEREERE

R-ZT-_—F-A-+N\B  BNBREXE
EERBBERAR(TER]) (AARHEES
BHA < WERE) BEMNR RN ERA
AIMER DI ENTEEEEEAR ([#%
AR - BEFZERIERRAER - BEARE
BEMEARBHE —RBEMNTRTRZ
mE - BREAAR42,470,1307C HEE
R #%752,700,00077C) © FIBEFELHARAR]
—E-F-A-+N\BRZZE-__F=A

=HZAE .

RERMZEEZETH
R-E-_—_F_A—+WA - BEHERS
ERMEE TERNERTH  ZMEAIRET

WHBENBHRAREE - AEBZHE QA
GDHESZ BB EMHEAREAE - K
FMEREL - EZEB N ET B RHIR O
B B0 ALY GDHHI B Bk « &%
BNRESREEEATHTE - ERTIHYH
KRBTSR EHABARR EFAREE -
GDH IR E (AT ER IRZERET : GDYN) )32
SEREREBBREEZ KR - AEEEHE
PIESERIEN - W iE HRFTAEE & A RS RO AT
ek
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Particulars of Investment Properties

REYEF1S

For the year ended 31st December 2021 HEZ - —

—F+ZA=+—HILFE

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties at 31st December 2021 are as follows:

Location

i

Gross floor area (sq.ft)

BERRCFAR)

REB-—F+-A=+—H rEEZREMEF

HIR -

Use

Jjikes

Units 1 to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor
Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB

R

WH

211 5E

8%
RBIETHRRISE215REM

Car parking space No. P4 on Ground Floor
Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street
Shatin

New Territories
Hong Kong

BB

R

A

211 5R
=22

T P4 Bz
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11,744 sq.ft
11,744 7R

125 sq.ft
125 FEHR

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES



Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Information of

Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

HBRGEBERAT - TBHE - BWEAARMBEROEE

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
16/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2541 9900

Fax: (852) 2541 1338

i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited
Room 6-7, 10/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2608 6226

Fax: (852) 2645 8069

Automated Center of Excellence (ACoE)

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+)

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Service Center

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Unified Operation Center (UOC)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

BE
BEIRG (BB BRAR
HEMADH

ZOE 1158

#|aE5 1518

3% 1 (852) 2601 6998
fBHE : (852) 2601 6936

WM EEEHRARA
FEHMRLA

20 1155

EEES 1612

B ¢ (852) 2541 9900
fEH : (852) 2541 1338

ZilFE (B8) RHEAR AR
EETADE

ZE 115
EEES10186-7 %

o (852) 2608 6226
{8H : (852) 2645 8069

BE) R =i 0 (ACOE)
HEMADH

ZOHE 1157
#|EES 1518
3% 1 (852) 2601 6998
fBHE : (852) 2601 6936

ZEREER L+ (SOC+)
FEHMRLA

20 1155

EEES 151

B ¢ (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936

ARAG L

EBEFADHE

ZOE 1158

E|ERES 1518

B (852) 2601 6998
{55 : (852) 2601 6936

fRAEEF L (U0C)
HEMADH

ZOHE 1157
#E|aES 1518
3% 1 (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936
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MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
14/F, No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 202 203 8111

Fax: (86) 202 203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
14/F, No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 202 203 8111

Fax: (86) 202 203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Room (01, 02, 03, 08) 302A, 3/F,

No.136 Linhe Middle Road,

Tianhe District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510630)

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)

Room 809, 810, 811,

Lingnan Tiandi Commercial Plaza,

No. 29, Zumiao Road, Chancheng District, Foshan, China
(Postal Code: 528000)

Tel: (86) 757 8203 1609

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Room 1509, 1513A, 1513B, F2 Building,
Lugu Enterprise Plaza, No. 27 Wenxuan Road,
Yuelu District, Changsha, China

(Postal Code: 410000)

Tel: (86) 731 8289 5651

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd

Room A 0909 Shougang International Tower
No. 60 Xizhimen North Street

Haidian District, Beijing, China

(Postal Code: 100082)

Tel: (86) 108 273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd

Room A 0909 Shougang International Tower
No. 60 Xizhimen North Street

Haidian District, Beijing, China

(Postal Code: 100082)

Tel: (86) 108 273 6009

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd, Zhuhai Office
4/F, Block B-2

Southern Software Park

No.1 Software Road

Zhuhai, Guangdong, China

(Postal Code: 519080)

Tel: (86) 756 632 2668

Fax: (86) 756 632 2660

P E A it

BENREEEE BRI AR AT
FEEMNTES R

MR 1855 1412

(B4 : 510100)

E:E ¢ (86) 202 203 8111

{EH : (86) 202 203 8000

HEINE A0 (ODEC)
PEEMNTHEER

WA 18557 1418
(Eb4% © 510100)

% ¢ (86) 202 203 8111
&5 : (86) 202 203 8000

YEINE A AL (ODEC)
Fp B M T 0] [

AN 136 5%

318 302A (01, 02, 03, 08 &)
(Eb4% : 510630)

YEINE AL (ODEC)

FRE G L TSR
1EEARE 29 9%

SR A KE 809, 810, 8115
(Ef4% : 528000)
T © (86) 757 8203 1609

YEINE R L (ODEC)

hEESTEER
SCHEFER 27 57

BADEESF21R1509, 1513A, 1513B %
(Eb4% : 410000)
B :% ¢ (86) 731 8289 5651

It RLZAERHAREE AR

1t R E [ PA B PI4E K% 60 57
IR EHBEERKEIE09HE
(4% : 100082)

E:% : (86) 108 273 6009

T (L) B BREFT AR
b = e P B P9I K 60 57
IR EHBEEKEIE 09 E
(Ep4% © 100082)

T © (86) 108 273 6009

I REMFEHEARETARKED QA
BB RE REFE B 157

37 BN E B2 IR P8

(EB4% : 519080)

B % ¢ (86) 756 632 2668

{8H : (86) 756 632 2660
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MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

Security Operation Center SOC?
Rua de Lagos, Telecentro, 4/F
Taipa, Macau

Tel: (853) 8891 5000

Fax: (853) 8891 3031

TAIWAN

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited
9F, NO.19, RuihuSt., NeihuDist.,
Taipei City 114067, Taiwan (R.0.C.)
Tel: (886) 2 2659 8598

Fax: (886) 2 2659-8569

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

!

BE) R4 CBPY) BRAR
SRPIR £ A ES 180 9%
REREERD

141 0-RE

3% 1 (853) 2878 6392
fBHE : (853) 2878 6390

BERFRE CRP) AR AR
JRPIR £ A E5 180 %%
REEEERDL

141RE

3% 1 (853) 2878 6392

fEH : (853) 2878 6390

IR EMZ 2 EF L SOC?
SRPY AT RrET T
BrAKNIE4E

3% ¢ (853) 8891 5000
{8H :(853) 8891 3031

=P
BEREEEEMBBRAR
aitmAHE

A 199k OF

T3 © (886) 02 2659 8598
{85 : (886) 2 2659-8569

R E

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

EiE : (662) 185 3206

B8 : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

EiE : (662) 185 3206

{EH : (662) 185 3207
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i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

SINGAPORE

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Chai Chee Road

#08-01 ESR BizPark @ Chai Chee (Lobby 1)
Singapore 469004

MALAYSIA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 379 325 688

Fax: (60) 379 315 688

NETHERLANDS

Daxx Web Industries B.V.
Zaandijkerweg 8, 1521 AX Wormerveer
Amsterdam, Netherlands

Tel: (31) 075 302 0011

POLAND

Grid Dynamics Poland Sp.zo.o.
Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd Floor
Krakéw, 30-062, Poland

Tel: (48) 733 732 767

Rzeznicza 28, 2nd floor, 50-130,
Wroctaw, Poland
Tel: (48) 733 732 767

Aleja Grunwaldzka 413, 4th floor,
Gdansk, 80-309, Poland

SERBIA

Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd - Novi Beograd
115 Bulevar Mihajla Pupina
Belgrade, Serbia
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RUSSIA {5 28 5

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Russia” Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Russia”

Representative Office

Business Center Senator
Chapaeva Street 15, Liter A
Russian Federation

Tel: (7) 812 640 3876

Representative Office

145A Rabochaya St., Floor 6
Saratov, Russian Federation
Tel: (7) 845 267 4878

UKRAINE

Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”

Representative Office

Business Center Olimpiyskiy
72 Velyka Vasylkivska St, 26th Floor, Ukraine

Representative Office

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 728 5233

Representative Office

5A Pidmurna str, 8-10 floors,
Lviv, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 032 242 0475

Daxx Web Industries B.V.

Representative Office

Forum Kinetik, Kurenivs'kyi Ln
12 Kyiv 04073, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 044 227 7650

Representative Office

Teatralny Lane, 11/13
Kharkiv 61057, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 714 0430

REPER

Business Center Senator
Chapaeva Street 15, Liter A
Russian Federation

Eih 0 (7) 812 640 3876

REMREE

145A Rabochaya St., Floor 6
Saratov, Russian Federation
E 55 ¢ (7) 845 267 4878

Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”

REPEE

Business Center Olimpiyskiy
72 Velyka Vasylkivska St, 26th Floor, Ukraine

REWEE

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, Ukraine
E:5 ¢ (38) 057 728 5233

REPEE

5A Pidmurna str, 8-10 floors,
Lviv, Ukraine
E&E 1 (38) 032 242 0475

Daxx Web Industries B.V.

REWER

Forum Kinetik, Kurenivs” kyi Ln
12 Kyiv 04073, Ukraine
Eih ¢ (38) 044 227 7650

REPEE

Teatralny Lane, 11/13
Kharkiv 61057, Ukraine
E5E ¢ (38) 057 714 0430
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Representative Office

Sviatoslava Khorobroho St 12, 2nd floor
Office 204, Dnipro 49000, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 056 785 6829

UNITED STATES

Grid Dynamics Holdings Inc.

Tacit Knowledge, LLC

5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 520
San Ramon, CA 94583, United States
Tel: (1) 650 523 5000

Grid Dynamics International, LLC
5345 Towne Square Drive,
Suite# 275, Plano, United States

i-Sprint Innovations Inc.
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
Tel: (1) 201 604 3545
Fax: (1) 732 422 0178

MEXICO

Tacit Knowledge Latin America, S. de R.L de C.V.
Av. Américas 1545, Piso 7 Colonia Providencia,
Guadalajara Jal, 44630

Mexico

Tel: (52) 333 615 4413

UNITED KINGDOM

Tacit Knowledge Ltd

10 Midford Place London, W1T 5AG, London, United
Kingdom

Tel: (44) 020 740 480 40

MOLDOVA

Tacit Knowledge SRL

29, Sfatul Tarii str. Eighth Floor MD-2012, Chisinau,
Moldova

Tel: (373) 228 569 85

Annual Report 2021 4%
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A Member of the Teamsun Group

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BEBRAEERBERAA

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
ERDHEZOE 11 REIEES 1542
E75:(852) 2601 6998 H K : (852) 2601 6936
#g3k : http://www.asl.com.hk
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